PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MISSION STATEMENT

‘The Mission of the Pajaro Valley Unified School District is to educate and to suppott
learners in reaching their highest potential. We prepate students to pursue successful
futures and to make positive contributions to the community and global society.

January 16, 2013
REGULAR BOARD MEETING

CLOSED SESSION - 6:00 p.m. — 7:00 p.m.
PUBLIC SESSION - 7:00 p.m.

DISTRICT OFFICE
BOARDROOM
292 Green Valley Road, Watsonville, CA 95076

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: PURSUANT TO 8B 343, BOARD PACKET DOCUMENTS ARF AVAILABLE FOR
YOUR REVIEW AT THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS:

¢ Superintendent’s Office: 294 Green Valley Road, Watsonvilie, CA {4th Floor)

€ On our Webpage: www.pvusd.net

Notice to the Audience or Public Comment

Members of the audience are welcome to address the Board on all items not listed on this agenda. Such comments are
welcome at the “Visitor Non-Agenda [tems™.

Members of the audience wiil also have the opportunity to address the Board during the Board’s consideration of each item
on the agenda.

Individual speakers will be allowed three minutes (unless otherwise announced by the Board President) to address the
Board on each agenda item. You must submit this card prior to the discussion of the agenda item you wish to speak
to; once an item has begun, cards will not be accepted for that item. For the record, please state your name at the
beginning of your statement. The Board shall limit the total time for public input on each agenda item to 20 mirutes, With
Board consent, the President may increase or decrease the time allowed for public presentation, depending on the topic and
the number of persons wishing to be heard. The President may take a poll of speakers for or against a particular issue and
may ask that additional persons speak only if they have something new to add.

Note: Time allotment for each item is for the report portion only; it is not an anticipation of the total time for the discussion
of the item.

We ask that you please turn off your cell phones and pagers when you are in the boardroom.

Please Note that Reporting out of Closed Session willi Take Place AFTER Action Items,

1.0 CLOSED SESSION OPENING CEREMONY IN OPEN SESSION — 6:00 P.M.
1.1 Call to Order '

1.2 Public comments on closed session agenda.
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2.0

3.0

4.0
5.0

6.0

7.0

CLOSED SESSION (AND AFTER REGULAR SESSION IF NECESSARY)
21 Public Employee Appointment/Employment, Government Code Section 54957
a. Certificated Employees (see Attached)
b. Classified Emplovees (see attached)
2.2 Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/l.eaves
23 Negotiations Update
a. CSEA
b. PVFT
c. Unrepresented Units: Management and Confidential
d. Substitutes — Communication Workers of America (CWA)
2.4 Claims for Damages
2.5 Pending Litigation
2.6 Anticipated Litigation
2.7 Real Property Negotiations
2.8 6 Expulsions

OPENING CEREMONY —MEETING OF THE BOARD IN PUBLIC - 7:00 P.M.
3.1 Pledge of Allegiance

32 Welcome by Board President
Trustees Kim De Serpa, Leslie DeRose, Maria Orozco, Karen Osmundson, Lupe Rivas, Jeff
Ursino and President Willie Yahiro.

3.3 Superintendent Comments

34 Student Recognition
- Wendy Martinez — Mintie White Elementary School
- Isabella T. Bettercourt — Aptos Jr. High
~ Melvin Tangonan — Lakeview Middle School
- Andrea Franco — Pajaro Middle School
- Mariana V. Gareia — Rolling Hills Middle School

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

a) Minutes for December 3, 2012, Annual Organizational Meeting

b) Minutes for December 11, 2012, Special Meeting, Selection of Officers and Change to Meeting
Schedule.

HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS BOARD REPRESENTATIVES REPORT

VISITOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS

Public comments on items that are not on the agenda can be addressed at this time. The Board President
will recognize any member of the audience wishing to speak to an item not on the agenda on a matter
directly related to school business. The President may allot time to those wishing to speak, but no
action will be taken on matters presented (Ed. Code Section 36146.6).
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If appropriate, the President or any Member of the Board may direct that a matter be referred to the
Superintendent's Office for placement on a future agenda. (Please complete a card if you wish to
speak.)

8.0 PUBLIC HEARING CALIFORNIA SCHOOL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION (CSEA),
CHAPTER 132 SUNSHINE PROPOSAL TO THE PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL
DISTRICT
8.1 Report on CSEA Sunshine Proposal for 2012-13 School Year to PVUSD

Reported by Sharon Roddick, Assistant Superintendent Human Resources
8.2 Pubtlic Comment
8.3 Board Comments/Questions

9.0 EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATIONS COMMENTS - PVFT, CSEA, PVAM, CWA 5 Min. Each

100 CONSENT AGENDA
Information concerning the Consent items listed above has been forwarded to each Board Member prior
to this meeting for his/her study. Unless some Board Member or member of the audience has a
question about a particular item(s) and asks that it be withdrawn from the Consent list, the item(s) will
be approved at one time by the Board of Trustees. The action taken in approving Consent items is set
forth in the explanation of the individual item(s).

10.1  Purchase Orders November 29, 2012 — January 9, 2013
The PO’s will be available in the Superintendent's Office.

10.2  Warrants November 29, 2012 — January 9, 2013
The warrants will be available in the Superintendent’s Office.

10.3  Approve Migrant and Seasonal Head Start Budget Revision ~ End of Year.
104 Approve Contract for Measure L Bond Program Management.
10.5  Approve Certification of November 6™ Measure L. School Bond Election.

10.6  Approve Williams Uniform Complaint Quarterly Report for October, November and December
2012, Number of Complaints: Zero.

10.7  Watsonville High School Lighting Retrofit Project
The administration recommends approval of the Consent Agenda.
11.0 DEFERRED CONSENT ITEMS

12.0.  REPORT, DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS

12.1  Report, discussion and possible action on 2011/12 District Audit.
Report by Brett McFadden, CBO. 10 min. report; 10 min. discussion

12.2 Report, discussion and possible action to Appoint Members to Board Standing Committees and
Organizations.

Community Advisory Commiitee — SELPA

District English Learners Advisory Commitiee (DELAC)

Fringe Benefits

GATE Advisory Committee

Governmenial Relations

Drop Our Rates

SR L b
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12.3

12.4

7. Migrant Head Start Policy Advisory

8. Pajaro Valley Prevention and Student Assistance (PVPSA)
9. Graduation Rates/Scholarship

10. SPECTRA

Report by President Yahiro 2 min. report; 10 min. discussion
Approve CSEA Sunshine Proposal FOR 1012-13 to PVUSD

Reporr given under item 8.0

Report, discussion and possible action to Approve 1% Reading of the Student Calendar for
2013-2014 School Year

Reported by Sharon Roddick, Assistant Superiniendent Human Resources 3 min. Pres; 5 min. discussion

13.0 REPORT AND DISCUSSION ITEMS
13.1  Report, demonstration and discussion on Canine Detection Program.
Report by Murry Schekman, Assistant Superintendent. 10 min. veport; 10 min. discussion
13.2  Report and discussion on Update on Governot’s Proposed 13-14 State Budget.
Report by Brett McFadden, CBO. 10 min. report; 10 min. discussion
13.3  Report and discussion on Safety Procedures and Emergency Protocols
Report by Dorma Baker, Superintendent 10 min report; 10 min. discussion
14.0 ACTION ON CLOSED SESSION
15.6 GOVERNING BOARD COMMENTS/REPORTS
16.0 UPCOMING BOARD MEETINGS/REMAINING BOARD MEETINGS FOR 2012
All meetings, unless otherwise noted, take place at the District Office Boardroom, 292 Green Valley
Road, Watsonville, CA. Closed Session begins at 6:00 pm; Open Session begins at 7:00 pm.
Comment
February | # 13
= 27
March = 13 = Approve 2" Interim Report
w 27
April s 1)
= 24
May = g .
= 22 = Approve 3" Interim Report
June = 12 =
= 26 & 13-14 Budget Adoption
July = *  No Meetings Scheduled
Aungust = 14
= 28
September | » 11 ®  Unandited Actuals
= 25
October = 0
= 23
November | = I3 .
December | = 11 = Approve 1% Interim Report
Annual
Organiza
tion Mtg.
17.0 ADJOURNMENT
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
CLOSED SESSION AGENDA
January 16, 2013

2.1 Public Employee Appointment/Employment, Government Code Section 54957
a. Certificated Employees
b. Classified Employees

New Hires — Probationary

1 Accounting Specialist II
3 Behavior Tech
1 Bus Driver
2 IA L
t . Network Engineer
wHiee
2 Coordinator of Academics
1 Counselor -
I Teacher
New Substitutes

No;ae “““ w
Pl‘O[IQ)ﬁOIlS

None
Rehires

None

Administrative Appointments

None

Transfers

Extra Pay Assignments
28 Coaches

Extra Period Assignments

None

Leaves of Absence

2 Bus Driver
I Cafeteria Asst.
1 Dir. Finance
| 1A'}
P2 IAH
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L OA 1l
1 Sr. Trénslator
12 Teachers
2 Resource Specialists
I Psychologist
| Retirements |
I Inst. Assist. 1

1 Teacher

Resignations/Terminations

None

Supplemental Service Agreements

39 Teachers
1 | Speech Lang. Therapist

Miscel

laneous Actions

Separations From Service

f Network Engineer

1 Parent Ed. Specialist H
1 IA I

1 Teacher

Cafeteria Assistant

3
6 Campus Safety Coordinator
WS Enrichment Specialist
----- 15 IA General |
! 1 Office Assistant [
2 Office Assistaﬁt I
1 Student Data Specialist
1 Translator
Exempt
6 | Childcare
4 Migrant OWE
1| Pupil
1 Safety Monitor
7 Student Helper
6| Workability I
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5 Yard Duty

Provisional
1 Site Computer Support Tech
Limited Term - Substitute ‘7
3 BehaviorTeh
2 Bus Driver
8 | 1A Gen
3 — IA][ ““““““
1 Warehouse Delivery Worker
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December 5, 2012

BOARD ANNUAL ORGANIZATION MEETING

UNADOPTED MINUTES

CLOSED SESSION — 6:00 p.m. — 7:00 p.m.

PUBLIC SESSION - 7:00 p.m.
DISTRICT OFFICE
BOARDROOCM
292 Green Valley Road
Watsonville, CA 95076

1.0 CLOSED SESSION OPENING CEREMONY IN OPEN SESSION — 6:00 P.M.

1.1 Call to Order

President DeRose called the meefing of the Board to order at 6:03 pm at 294 Green Valley Road,

Watsonville, CA.

1.2 Public comments on closed session agenda.
Jenny Vasquez, parent, addressed the Board about student expulsion case #12-13-028 requesting a

second opportunity for her 12 vear oid son stating that he made a mistake.

2.0 CLOSED SESSION (AND AFTER REGULAR SESSION IF NECESSARY)

2.1 Public Employee Appointment/Emplovment, Government Code Section 54957
a. Certificated Employees
b. Classified Employees

New Hires

2 Primary Teacher

New Substitutes

None

Rehires

| None

! Promotions

None

New Hires Probationary

[
! None

Administrative

1 i HR Director, Certificated

Transfers

None

Extra Pay Assignments

7 Coaches

Extra Period Assignments

H
. None

Leaves of Absence
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2 Behavior Tech
...... 2 Bus Priver
1 Cafeteria Assistant
1 mlnetructlonai Assistant [
1 Instructional Assistant II
1 Academic Coordinator
. | E] ementary Teadm
Retirements

None

Resxgnatmns/’l’ ermmatwns

J

Speci l Izducaz‘zon f eacher

Supplemental Scrvnce Ag1 eements

|

! Academic Coordinator

22

Primary Teacher

25

Secondary Teacher

1

. Program Director

4

Program Specialist

6 ]

t Special Education Teacher

Miscel

ianeous Actmns

1

Cafeteria Assxstants

Separations From Servme

! Admzmsz‘mz‘zon Secretary H
After School Program
Nons e

lelted Term Projects

Ml Aecount Specialist II
1 Behavior Technician
1 Cafeteria Assistant
5 Campus Safety Coordinator
1 Childcel:em -
1 Commumty Serwces Liaison |

Dl Computer Systems Teehnselan Mello Ceni:er
] Custodian |
1 Custodian 11

24 . Enrichment Speeia]ist
26 . Instruct;onal Asszs%ant - (_;enerai Eé
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2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

1 hlstruc{f'or.i;f ‘Assistant éf

ml ihsifuctionai Assistant Migrant — Children Center
1 Migrant Outreach Speciall‘i;i“ o

2 Office A551<;tant I
1 MOfﬁce Assistant 11
3 Office Assistant TII

| l | Parent Education Specialist

3

Limited Term — Substitute

. Translator

1 Behavior Tech
2 Cafeteria Assistant
2 Camp;s”é;fety éoordinators
2 Instructional Assistant l o
1 I'nstruc‘rnmi;r;aﬂ]m}issistant Migrant — Childreﬁméenter
1 Instructor/Driver o N
. Exempt
| 2 Babysitter
8 Childcare
24 Migrant OWE
4 Pupil
3 Student Heii)ers
48 Workability
2 Yw-dD s
Fes—
1 Instructional Assistail;;:”d‘e”ﬁé‘rai Ed
1“ Cz;mpus Safety Coordinator

Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Leaves

Negotiations Update

a.
b.
c.
.

CSEA
PVFT
Unrepresented Units: Management and Confidential

Substitutes — Communication Workers of America (CWA)

Claims for Bamages

Existing Litigation

Pending Litigation
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2.7 Anticipated Litigation
2.8 Reai Property Negotiations
2.9 7 Expulsions

3.0 OPENING CEREMONY — MEETING OF THE BOARD IN PUBLIC - 7:00 P.M,
President DeRose opened the meeting of the Board in public at 7:09 pm.,

3.1 Pledge of Allegiance
Trustee Ursino led the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3.2 Welcome by Board President
Trustees Kim De Serpa, Doug Keegan, Karen Osmundson, Jeff Ursino, Willie Yahiro and President
Leslie DeRose were present.

President DeRose welcomed all to the meeting.

3.3 Superintendent Comments
Superintendent Dorma Baker welcomed everyone to the meeting and said she was looking forward to
all the recognition and to welcoming our new trustees,

3.5 Student Musical Presentation by Lakeview Middle School
President DeRose welcomed students from Lakeview Middle School.

Teacher: Stephanie Gelman; Assistant James Blackwell
Program:
Bells Are Ringing by Jerry Estes
All 1 Want For Christmas by Maria Carey
Feliz Navidad by Jose Faliciano

Students:

Ebony Diaz Daniel Meza Eleanore Leveque Katrina Torres
Kaila Palac Andrea Mendoza Emma Arroyo Jasmine Paniagua
Heidi Nunez-Avalos  Xochitl Colin Juan Carlos Vargas Fatyana Martinez
Desmond Aguilera Ulyses Angon Corey Andrews Sebastian Ruiz
Andres Alvarez Darian Gutierrez Davian Quintana

David Villalobos-Montes

Note from teacher: We would like to thank our principal Ken Woods for helping to move
equipment and create this opportunity for us!

3.4 Student Musical Presentation by Watsonville Charter School for the Arts
President DeRose welcomed students from Watsonville Charter School of the Arts,

Teachers. Shervl Gentry and Robert Krietzman

Ms. Gentry 2" Grade Mr. Krietzman 2nd Grade
Anhar Alhomaidi Celeste Bravo-Anderson
Nora Cole Sophia Cunha

Bear Cruz-Hallett Victor Gomez

Shawki Farhat Derick Hernandez
Andrew Fernandez Elizabeth Lopez

Nolan Friesell Melanie Lopez

Ariana Gonzales Alex Magdaleno

Noa Hudson Esmeralda Martinez
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Amanda Hurtado-Tyner Hailey Ortega

Adrian Leon Noe Ortiz
Miguel Lopez Alejandro Padilla
Sophia Ocegueda Darren Silva

Laura Ortiz-Meza
Charlotte Ramirez
Jesus Rocha-Meza
Destin Vasquez

3.7 Student Recognition
Administrators, teachers, family members and friends honored the following students:
- Daniel Acevedo — Calabasas Elementary School
- Gustavo Carrera — Ann Soldo Elementary School
- Doris Teresita Rojas Garcia — Hall District Elementary School
- 6" Grade Conflict Managers — Rio del Mar Elementary School
Students Johnny Staka, Jack Jeffrey and Luke Smith were honored for their three years of
continuous contribution to the Conflict Manager Program at Rio Del Mar.

Each student aiso received a congratulatory token on behaif of McDonalds Restaurant and the Register
Pajaronian.

3.8 Jacob Young Financial - Teacher of the Month Award for November 2012

Tina Robin, Servicing Manager of Jacob Young Financial, spoke about the award for teacher of the
month and classified employee of the month. She commented on the process for nominating and
selecting employees for these awards.

- Shireen Goundargi, H.A. Hyde Elementary School
Michael Burman, principal at HA Hyde, spoke about his experience with Ms, Goudarzi, noting that as a
teacher he had learned a lot from her teaching practices. Mr. Burman added that many of her
colleagues continue to learn from her. He commended her for her wonderful work.

3.6 Jacob Young Financial — Classified Employee of the Month Award for November 2012

- Marina Candor, ESL Registrar, Adult Education
Dr. Nancy Bilicich, Director of Adult Education, spoke about Marina Candor, who is recognized as an
extremely dedicated employee.

President DeRose called for a moment of silence in honor of Mr. Louis Bilicich, Dr. Bilicich’s father, who
recently passed away.

Dr. Bilicich noted that her father was a wonderful man who worked 47 years at Watsonvilie High School.

4.0

ACTION ON CLOSED SESSION
2.1 Public Employee Appointment/Employment, Government Code Section 54957

a. Certificated Emplovees
Trustee Keegan moved to approve the certificated employee report with the addition of 1Diretor of
Human Resources, Certificated Personnel, under Administrative Appointments, 1 teacher under
Resignations and 1 primary teacher under Leaves of Absence. Trustee De Serpa seconded the motion.
The motion passed unanimously.

b, Classified Employees
Trustee Keegan moved to approve the classified employee report with the addition of 1 Administrative
Secretary I under Separations from Service. Trustee De Serpa seconded the motion. The motion
passed unanimously.

2.9 7 Expulsions
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5.0

6.0

12.0

Action on Expulsions

Trustee Osmundson moved to approve the recommendation of the Administrative Panel for the
following expulsion case:

12-13-013

Trustee Yahiro seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Trustee Osmundson moved to approve the recommendation of the Administrative Panel for the
following expulsion case:

12-13-028

Trustee Ursino seconded the motion. The motion passed 5/1/0 (De Serpa dissented).

Trustee Osmundson moved to approve the recommendation of the District Administration for the
following expulsion case:

12-13-029

Trustee Yahiro seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimousiy.

Trustee Osmundson moved to approve the recommendation of the District Administration for the
following expulsion case:

12-13-630

Trustee Yahiro seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Trustee Osmundson moved to approve the recommendation of the Administrative Panel for the
following expulsion case:

12-13-031

Trustee Ursino seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Trustee Osmundson moved to approve the recommendation of the District Admindstration for the
following expulsion case:

12-13-032

Trustee Ursino seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Trustee Osmundson moved to approve the recommendation of the District Administration for the
following expulsion case:

12-13-034

Trustee Yahiro seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
Trustee Ursino moved to approve the agenda. Trustee De Serpa seconded the motion.

President DeRose asked for a rearrangement of the agenda as follows so that the current board can take
action on action items: #6, #12, #13, #14, address the Financial Corporation Agenda, and finish with
item #8.5. In addition, President DeRose asked to pull item #8.3 so the new board can have the
opportunity to select their officers at a future meeting. All other report and discussion items would be
heard after the seating of the new board of trustees.

Trustees Ursino and De Serpa amended the motion and second to include the request to rearrange the
agenda. The motion passed unanimously.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

a) Minutes of November 14, 2012

Trustee De Serpa moved to approve the minutes for November 14, 2012, Trustee Yahiro seconded the
motion, The motion passed upanimously.

CONSENT AGENDA
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Trustee Keegan moved to approve the consent agenda with special recognition to donation from Mr. Brian
Cicero. Trustee Yahiro seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

13.0
None,

14.0

12.1  Purchase Orders November § - 28, 2012
12.2  Warrants November 8 — 28, 2012

12.3  Accept with Gratitude donation from Mr. Brian Cicero of 20 HP Computer and Monitors
for Pajaro Valley High School, an estimated value of $6,379.72.

12.4  Approve Resolution #12-13-08, Report on the Use of Developer Fees for 2011-2012.
12.5  Approve 2012-13 School Improvement Plans for Student Achievement.

12.6  Approve Pacific Coast Charter School’s Request to Revise MOU — Enroliment
Procedures.

12.7  Approve of Program Management and Construction Management Firms to Provide
Services on Upcoming Projects.

12.8  Approve of Architect Firms to Provide Services on Upcoming Projects.

DEFERRED CONSENT ITEMS

REPORT, DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS
14.1  Report, discussion and pessible action to Approve First Interim Budget Report.

Report by Brett McFadden, CBO.
Brett McFadden reported briefly on the district budget process beginning with the adoption of the
budget by the first of July and ending with either a 2" interim report by March 15 or a third interim
report if required by the COE to cover financial activity through the end of June. Mr. McFadden
reported that, with the passage of Proposition 30, the district is able to submit a positive report for
certification to the COE. The multi-year assumptions include no cost of living adjustment for 2012-13
and 2013-14 and a 2.3% COLA for 2014-14, 10% annual increase to employee health and welfare
benetits and 10% for retirees, continuation of categorical program flexibility through 2014-15 and the
elimination of the state’s K-3 class size reduction. While the projection is positive for a while, there is
the concern of an overall structure deficit, which is not different from other districts. Mr. McFadden
noted that the district is looking in anticipation to the governor’s budget proposal as it seems that
California’s fiscal situation is improving. In conclusion, Mr. McFadden noted that there is optimism as
to the fiscal situation but that the district should continue to move forward with caution.

Public comment

Jack Carroll, teacher, stated that the projections are based on flat funding for the next 3 years but that it
does not factor in the increase in Prop 39 that is granted with passage of Prop 30. He added that there is
legislative reason to believe that there will be additional money in the future. He added that there are
currently district funds which can be used to reduce caseloads with specialists as well as re-instating
class size reduction.

Bill Beecher, community member, commented that there is a warning on the report because the district
is deficit spending. Prop 30 said that funds will be put aside but the governor’s budget may reveal
further reductions,

Nikki Lewen, teacher, submitted letters singed by Physical Ed teachers asking to reduce class loads for
classes adding that the individual needs of students are not being met.
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Board participated with comments and questions.

Trustee Ursino moved to approve this item. Trustee Yahiro seconded the motion. The motion passed
unanimoustly,

The Board President recess from Board of Trustees meeting and reconvenes as Board of Directors for the
Pajaro Valley Unified School District Financing Corporation.

Presidend Die Rose closed regular meeting and opened as Board of Directors for the PVUSD Financial
Corporation.

The Board President reconvenes the Board of Trustees meeting.
President DeRose reconvened the Board of Trustees meeting.

Continuation of Beard of Trustees agenda:

8.0

8.0

ANNUAL ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING

8.5 Approve 2013 Board Meeting Schedule

President DeRose proposed to add a special meeting for either Monday, December 10 or Tuesday,
December 11, to select the new officers of the board.

Trustee Yahiro moved to approve the 2013 board meeting schedule with the addition of a special
meeting on Tuesday, December 11%. Trusted De Serpa seconded the motion. The motion passed
unanimously.

ANNUAL ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING (continued)
8.1 Recognition of Outgoing Board Members
President DeRose thanked former trustee Nichols for her 12 years of service.

Sandra Nichols commented about her experience on the Board.
Superintendent Baker stated that Ms, Nichols is an amazing advocate for students.

Eduardo Montesinos, City of Watsonville Mayor, offered Ms, Nichols a proclamation on behalf of the
City Council.

President DeRose thanked trustee Doug Keegan for his eight years of service and for being a role model
on the board.

Trustee Keegan said serving on the board has been an honor and a positive experience. He welcomed
new members Lupe Rivas and Maria Orozeo and suggested that the constant mantra and guiding
principles be the welfare of students.

President DeRose and Superintendent Baker presented trustees Nichols and Keegan a gift on behalf of
the district.

Public comment:
Rebecca Garcia, community member, expressed her support for Maria Orozeo and Lupe Rivas.

8.2 Swearing in of Newly Elected/Reelected Members of the Board:

Honorable Judge Morse administered the oath to the newly elected and re-elected trustees:
- Maria Orozco (new trustee)
- Karen Osmundson (reelected)
- Lape Rivas (new trustee)

8.3 Election of Officers of the Board and Appointment of Representative to the Board Agenda
Review Committee
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1. President

2. Vice President/Clerk

3. Board Agenda Review Committee - Third Member
This item was pulled.

RECESS - 5 Minuate Break to Enjoy a Cake
President DeRose called for a short recess to enjoy some cake in honor of outgoing and incoming trustees.

8.4 Seating of New Officers of the Board of Trustees
President DeRose reconvened the board of trustees meeting after the break. New members of the Board
of Trustees took their seat.

9.0 HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS BOARD REPRESENTATIVES REPORT
President DeRose stated that student trustees had to leave the meefing to study.

10.0  VISITOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS
Rhea DeHart, community member, spoke about honoring classified staff and commented on the passing of
Louis Anthony Bilicich, who worked 47 years at WHS as a custodian.

The following teachers spoke in favor of class size reduction: Caryn Lane, Susan Karz, Susie Brown, Josefina
Castrellon (read a letter signed by many teachers at Amesti Elementary School), Sarah Leonard and Karen
Richmond.

Angel Mejia, community member, spoke about his concern for the high ratios of students to specialized
assistance.

Lisa Olson, speech language pathologist, read a letter on behalf of Denise Muir, a parent, in support of lower
case loads for specialists and professionals, such as speech pathologists.

Rosario Castillo, parent, advocated for her son, who needs one-on-one help and who is currently expelled from
PVUSD schools until April, and requested an earlier re-admittance.

Connie Bishop, teacher, bid farewell to outgoing trustees and welcomed new ones. She asked the board to
please take an active look at special education. She neted that there is too much spent in meetings.

Kenneth Janke, teacher, spoke of his impression that trainings are taking too much time away from students.

11.0 EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATIONS COMMENTS - PVFT, CSEA, PVAM, CWA

Jack Carroll, PVFT, thanked the outgoing and incoming trustees. Ms. Carroll stated that some class sections
seem to over the contract limits. He stated that the surplus of $7.5 million for three vears can be used now fo
improve some things. Measure L and Prop 30 will also allow revenues to increase. He added that adult
education teachers also need training and additional funding.

Brett Knupfer, PVAM, saluted trustees Keegan and Nichols for their advocacy for the students. He welcomed
trustees Orozco and Rivas and congratulated trustee Osmundson on being reelected. He commented on the
importance of teamwork for the board and for sites as well. Mr. Knupfer noted that the Comprehensive
Accountability Framework is a plan on how to achieve goals and it is working. He added that the sites are
working hard to prepare for the impiementation of common core standards.

15.0 GOVERNING BOARD AND SUPERINTENDENT COMMENTS/REPORTS
Trustee Ursino commented on attending the annual CSBA conference stating that it was an excellent event.

Trustee Rivas stated that she too had attended the conference, and found it to be productive and came away
appreciating more the importance of the work of trustees.

Board Annual Organization Meeting December 5, 2012 Unadopted Minutes Page 9 of 10



Trustee Orozco commented that she visited the leadership class at Roiling Hills and it was a positive
experience.

Trustee Osmundson reported that she had attended the On the Same Page event at the Mello Center noting that
it is a vital and wonderful program.

At 10:30 pm, trustee Yahiro moved to extend the meeting until 11:00 pm. Trustee De Serpa seconded the
motion. The motion passed 4/1/2 {Osmundson dissented; Orozco, Rivas abstained).

Trustee Yahiro commented that PYUSD is in a wonderful community that supports its students and the passage
of Measure L at 68.9% is a clear indication. He added that trustees have an obligation to make right on the
community’s trust.

Trustee De Serpa spoke about the positive effects of RT1 at Valencia. She added that commen core standards
will help students become better learners. She expressed her concern for Special Education. She thanked Doug
Keegan for his work adding that he has been her mentor on the board.

President DeRose reported that CSBA conference was very successful. She appreciated that the Executive
Assistant was able to aftend the conference. She encouraged trustees to take a look at CSBA’s links about the
conference.

16.0 UPCOMING BOARD MEETINGS/REMAINING BOARD MEETINGS FOR 2013
All meetings, unless otherwise noted, take place at the District Office Boardroom, 292 Green Valley
Road, Watsonviile, CA. Closed Session begins at 6:00 pm; Open Session begins at 7:00 pm.
The schedule is to be approved under item 8.5,

President DeRose reminded ali of the special meeting on Tuesday December 11 at 7 pm.

17.0 ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting of the board adjourned at 10:35 pm.

\Z)Wm/,é;A

Dorma Baker, Superintendent
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1.0

2.0

3.0

December 11, 2012
SPECIAL MEETING
SELECTION OF OFFICERS AND 2013 MEETING SCHEDULE
UNADOPTED MINUTES
7:00 p.m. — 8:00 p.m.
DISTRICT OFFICE
HUMAN RESOURCES CONFERENCE ROOM
294 Green Valley Road
Watsonville, CA 95076

OPENING CEREMONY - MEETING OF THE BOARD IN PUBLIC - 7:00 P.M.
President DeRose called the special meeting of the Board in public to order at 7:.01 pm at 294 Green
Vailey Road, Watsonville, CA,

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance
Trustee Orozeo led the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.

1.2 Welcome by Board President
Trustees Kim De Serpa, Maria Orozeo, Karen Osmundson, Lupe Rivas, Jeff Ursino, Willie Yahiro and
President Leslie De Rose were present.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
Trustee De Serpa moved to approve the agenda. Trustee Rivas seconded the motion. The motion passed
unanimously.

REPORT, DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS
Superintendent Dorma Baker recognized the work of board president DeRose stating that she was a
remarkable leader.

Public comment:
Bill Beecher, community member, mentioned that the task of the president of the board is important.
Leadership and vision qualities shouid be taken into account.

Dan Hernandez, community member, commented on transition of non-English speaking students into
English, which should be 1 — 3 years. He noted that these are tough times for public leaders.

Jack Carroll, teacher, commented on the functionality of the agenda committee. He noted that Board
Bylaw 9322 allows members of the public to request items to be included on the agenda. In 2010 he
submitted an item which has not been placed on the agenda vet.

31 Election of Officers of the Board and Appointment of Representative to the Board
Agenda Review Committee
1. President
President DeRose thanked all for their support and asked trustees interested in being president
to voice their interest. Trustees Osmundson and Yahiro expressed their interest.

Trustee De Serpa nominated trustee Yahiro for president. Trustee Ursino seconded the motion.
A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed 6/1 {Osmundson dissented).

Trustee DeRose passed the gavel to president Yahiro.
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3.2

2. Vice President/Clerk
President Yahiro asked for nominations for VP/Clerk.

Trustee DeRose nominated trustee De Serpa. Trustee Osmundson seconded the motion. A roll
call vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously.

3. Board Agenda Review Committee - Third Member

President Yahiro appointed trustee Orozco to the Agenda Review Committee. Mr. Yahiro
noted that her participation on the committee would balance representation of the district’s
areas.

Report, discassion and possible action on 2013 Board Meeting Schedule

Report by Dorma Baker, Superintendent.

Superintendent Baker commented that there was a request to move the meeting from January
23" 1o January 16",

Trustee Ursino moved to approve the change to the board meeting schedule. Trustee Orozco
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

4.0 ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 7:45 pm.

\Oaw?wg/é

Dorma Baker, Superintendent

Special Meeting
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8.0 & 123

Date: January 16, 2013

Item: California School Employees Association (CSEA), Chapter 132 Sunshine
Proposal for the 2012-2013 school year, to the Pajaro Valley Unified School

District (PVUSD), for Public Hearing

Overview: Government Code Section 3547, the Rodda Act, requires initial bargaining
proposals to be presented for public comment. This public hearing provides the
opportunity for public comment related to the initial bargaining proposal from

CSEA to PVUSD.

Recommendation:  The Board accepts public comment and accepts CSEA's Sunshine Proposal to
PVUSD.

Prepared By:  Sharon Roddick, Assistant Superintendent Human Resources

l !
Superintendent's Signature: @)V e »,//)ﬂ/ﬁ‘ ‘




California School Employees Association
Pajaro Valley Chapter #132

Area C » Region 48

December 7, 2012

Chapler
Leticia Oropeza
Sm{:miigen? The California School Employees Association and its Chapter
ent Services s ’ « .
leticia_oropeza@prusd.net #132 hereby submits l:hﬁ foilpw:nng list of articles from the
831-786-2100 ext, 2841 master contract to be “Sunshine” under the EERA 35479(a)
for the school year 2012-2013.
Victoria Borba
1¢t Vice President
o Transportation
ekl burbelpasd. net 1. Article XIII-Evaluation
CSEA wanis to assure employees do not receive poor evaluations
Esther Morillo due to shortage of staff at all sites.
2nd Vice President
AVC]
esther merillo@prusd.net
B31-728-6225 cxt. 4962 2. Article XIV-Health & Welfare
Marisa Hernandez CSEA has an interest in maintaining and reinstating loss of previous
Secretary health care services.
Secondary Education
marisa hemendes@pvusd.net
831-786-2100 ext. 2540
Diana Martinez 3. Article XV-Pay & Allowances
Trias}z;;-ﬁr In order to attract and retain employees CSEA will propose a fair and
dizna_martines@pvusd.net equitable pay raise.
831-728-6270 ext. 4078
Zenaida Castillo . )
CPRO 4. Article XIX- Professional Growth
i SELPA CSEA has an interest to increase the points earned.
zenaida castilo@pyasd.net
831-786-2100 ext. 2823
Robin Butterwo 5. Article XXVII-Transportation
SELPA CSEA has an interest fo review the field trip assignments

robin butterworth@ovusd.net
831-786-2100 ext. 2794



PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Item No: 10.3

Date:  January 16, 2013

Item: Migrant & Seasonal Head Start Budget Revision — End of Year

Overview: This is a request to the grantee for an end-of-year budget revision. The grant
year is March 1, 2012 — February 28, 2013. This budget revision takes savings,
principally from personnel and fringe benefits, and reallocates them to identified
areas of Program need. Among other activities, the Program's “off season” is
when center repair and facility projects can take place.

Recommendation:  Approve Migrant & Seasonal Head Start End of Year Budget Revision

Budget Considerations:

Funding Source:

Budgeted: Yes: % No: D

Amount: See attached request for budget revision to funding source

Prepared By: Carole L. Clarke, Director, Migrant & Seasonal Head Start

Superintendent’s Signature: \é)g e /fj,m_é.
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§ sEducation

MHS/RHS/EHS

DELEGATE BUDGET REVISION REQUEST

Prograst Year 20122013

:%" ) s Basic X
g Stanisiaus County T&TAL
G Oﬁ:;ce Of Non-Federal 1

Administration 3
Cther: [

Defogate: .  Pajare Valley Unified Schoel District
FederaliState 1 Cutrent Reguested | Requested
Claysification Dascription 1 Anproved Budget 1 Changes +i | Revised Budget
&4 - Personnal
1000 Cerificalsd 1,171,696 34 314 1,205,810
2000 Classified 1,122,919 (145,547) 977,372
Sub-Total 2,284,515 {111.233) 2,183,282
65 - Fringe Banefits
3108 STRS 56,667 (2,354} 94303
3200 PERE 184,364 (28,158} 166,186
3300 OQASDMedicare 104,088 {15,888} 88,208
3440 Healthfweifare/Other Benefits 1,036,889 {168,884} 867,255
3500 54 121478 (27 568} 93,807
3600 Workers Comp 81,875 11,747 736822
3700 Hatiree Benefits 31,345 59,646 100,991
Sub-Totat +,636,424 (162,292) % 474 185
5¢ - Travel {out of service area) - Staff
5741 Travel (hon-local) 12,228 (8,656) 2.862
Sub-Total — 12,228 {8,666} 2 582
84 - Equipment {Over $25,000 - Needs. Prior ACF Approval)
Sub-Total - - -
Be - Equipment {Over 35,000}
Inferpretation Units - 15,060 45,000
Hearing Screening machines - 10,000 10,000
Sub-Total - 25,000 25,000
8e - Supplies -
Replacement Cffice Equipment 5000 9848 14,648
Instructional Supplies 104,330 81,087 165417
Ciher supplies 81,362 73,1714 164,533
Food sarvices supplies 28,629 3971 32,540
Sub-Total 278,321 147,817 377,438
&f « Contracts
Family Chid Care Homes 1,704,774 (8,211) 1,688,563
Sub-Total 1,704,774 {5,211} 1,658 563
mennvaﬁonmenstmction {Naeds prior ACF approvaly*
Sub-Total - - M
Gh - Other
Travel local) 13,332 (6,320) 7,812
Membership 1,200 750 2250
Insurance-llabiity, Fire  Student 11,000 (11,300) -
Utilities, Telenhone 5 BBE {1,730} 4,845
Rentals, Leases & Repsirs 62,000 140,202 202,202
Cansultants 58,350 {19,472} 38,878
Eield Trips - - -
Qiher Bewvicss & Oper. Expenses 50,767 21 567 72,334
Distriot Bervices 85,840 {7,434) 78,208
Sub-Total 286 244 % 16,584 405,828
6 - Indiroct Costs
Ingirgot Costs 162,488 162,486
Sub-Total 162,486 - 162,488
Grand Totals 6,526,992 [ B.328,882
*May require pfiar Reglonal Office Ap_g'l;nval . / /3 7 W(/
Delegate Director {f;éu/m%ifx K /&L& ' Pollcy Committee Chair: / @
Date: L2 L i Policy Committee Approval Dater” (2 5E3~ 2500
Grantee Director: Board Approval:

Rate: Board Approval Bate:

Wardalory  Ravised 3/0% GHF-6



Pajaro Valley Unified School District/Migrant & Seasonal Head Start Program

End of Year Budget Revision

2012-2013
SAVINGS $289,402
Principal Saving Sources
Savings in Salaries/benefits: $273,525

Health/Disabilities Manager Position

Nutrition Coordinator Position

Site Supervisor position vacant for part of the season
Teachers covered part of the season by substitutes
Instructional Aide to work with children with disabilities
One part time Family Service Worker

Savings in Out- of -Area Travel 59,666

Cancelation of the National Migrant and Seasonal Head Start Conference
and Family Child Care Forums

Savings in Family Child Care Home Reimbursements $6,211

Recommended Principal Areas to spend saved funds

Equipment over $5,000 $25,000

Simultaneous Interpretation Equipment

Hearing Screening Machines

Supplies and Materiais $147,817

Instructional materials and other necessary materials for program operations
Replacement of office printers; fax machine; center fax/copiers

Custodian equipment

Classroom supplies

Children’s books

Parent training materials

Emergency supplies

Health supplies

Other $116,584

Center repairs, maintenance, projects (for example, ramp replacement, shed replacement, asphalt,
fencing, gates, center hand washing/sinks, repair water-damaged flooring, paint, torn shade canopies,
playground surfacing, other items noted in safety inspection reports

Contingency funds for unforeseen expenses
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Date:

Ttem:

Overview:

Recommendation:

Funding Source:

PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Item No: 104

January 16, 2013

Approve contract for Measure L. Bond Program Management Services

At its meeting in November, the Board of Trustees unanimously approved the
selection of Total School Solutions as the district’s Measure L bond program manager.
The board further authorized district staff to negotiate a contract for such services.

. Attached is the proposed contract and exhibits subject to the board’s approval. Staff

negotiated a contract that is favorable to the district’s needs, addresses possible
liabilities and risks, with a fee structure below industry standards. Furthermore, the
contract reflects the comprehensive elements and complexities of the district’s
upcoming bond program. The Measure L bond program will be a large program with
dozens of construction and modernization projects occurring simultaneously
throughout the district. The program management contract reflects this challenge and
provides assurances that the district can accomplish its goals and objectives according
to the bond language and within an expedited timeframe. Funds for this activity were
included in the Measure L. bond program approved by voters and calculated in the
2012 Facility Master Plan and Needs Assessment.

TSS personnel] will report to and operate under the direction of the district’s Director
of Management, Operations, and Facilities and the Chief Business Officer.

Adopt contract with Total School Solutions for bond program management services as
submitted

Budget Considerations:

Measure L bond funds, no General Fund

Budgeted: Yes

Amount: Fixed fee percentage based on bond funds expended

Prepared By: Brett W. McFadden, Chief Business Officer

Superintendent’s Signature: @Qy’m /ﬁ,{}/i/




AGREEMENT FOR PROGRAM MANAGEMENT
SERVICES RELATED TO DISTRICT BOND PROGRAM

This Agreement for Program Management Services is made as of the 16" day of
January in the year 2013, (Effective Date) between the Pajaro Valley Unified School
District (DISTRICT), a California public school district, and Total School Solutions
(PROGRANM MANAGER), for the District's Measure L bond program (Program).

WITNESSETH:

That for and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties
hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1. - DEFINITIONS

1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions for words and/or phrases
shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits:

a.

Agreement. The Agreement consists exclusively of this document and ali
identified exhibits thereto.

As-Built Drawings ("As-Builts"): A final set of drawings prepared by the Design
Teams that incorporates all changes from all Record Drawings, sketches, details,
and clarifications.

Bid Set: The plans, drawings, and specifications and other documents prepared
by licensed design professionals and approved, where required, by the DSA
which are used by the District as the basis for soliciting and receiving bids for the
construction of a project.

Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to the DISTRICT for the construction
of all elements of a Project, as adjusted at the end of each design phase for a
Project in accordance with this Agreement. The Construction Cost Budget does
not include the compensation of the Design Teams, the PROGRAM MANAGER,
the Construction Managers, the cost of the land, rights-of-way, financing or other
costs which are the responsibility of the DISTRICT.

Consultant(s): Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), subcontractor(s), or
agent(s) to the PROGRAM MANAGER.

Construction Managers: Construction Managers retained by the DISTRICT to
provide construction management services for individual Projects.

Contractors: The contractors for the individual projects.

Design Teams: The Project Architects and consultants contracted by the Project
Architects in the course of preparing and implementing the project
documentation.

DSA: The Division of the State Architect.

AGREEMENT FOR PROGRAM MANAGEMENT doc Page 1



Master Program Budget: The total cost to the District of all elements of the
Program including compensation of the Project Architects, the Construction
Managers, and the PROGRAM MANAGER. The Master Budget shall also
include all construction costs for each project which shali be the Construction
Cost Budget. The Construction Cost Budget shall be a subcategory of the Master
Pragram Budget. The Master Program Budget does not include the costs of land,
rights-of-way, financing, DISTRICT staff labor, or other related costs that are the
responsibility of the DISTRICT.

Master Program Schedule: The combined schedules of all projects included in
the Program. The Master Program Schedule shall indicate the estimated project
expenditures and the schedule of anticipated revenues.

Master Plan: The Facilities Master Plan for the Program as approved by the
District Board.

. Project: Any individual School project listed on the Master Program Schedule.

Project inspector (Pl): A DSA certified and approved Project Inspector as

' required by Section 4-333 of Part 1, Title 24 of the California Code or

Regulations.

Program: All work and all projects performed and funded in whole or in part by
Measure L funds, the state facilities funds, developer fees and any other funds
used to supplement or augment Measure L funding.

Project Architects: Architects of Record retained by the District to provide
project services for particular Projects.

Record Drawings: Any document prepared and submitted by District
contractor(s) that records the changes made during the construction process on
a Conforming Set including changes necessitated by change orders.

Service(s). All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the
PROGRAM MANAGER is required to perform and that are required by, or
reasonably inferred from, the Agreement,

Work: The services of the PROGRAM MANAGER as described in Exhibit A.

ARTICLE 2. RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF PROGRAM MANAGER

1.

Scope: The PROGRAM MANAGER shall provide the services described herein and
under Exhibit A for the Program.

Coordination: In the performance of the PROGRAM MANAGER's services under
this Agreement, the PROGRAM MANAGER agrees that it will maintain such
coordination with DISTRICT personnel and/or its designated representatives as may
be needed and desirable.

AGREEMENT FOR PROGRAM MANAGEMENT.doc : Page 2



3.

PROGRAM MANAGER's Services: The PROGRAM MANAGER shall act as the
DISTRICT's agent to render the services and furnish the Work as described in
Exhibit A, commencing with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the
DISTRICT representative.

ARTICLE 3. PROGRAM MANAGER STAFF

1.

The PROGRAM MANAGER has been selected to perform the work herein because
of the skills and expertise of key individuals.

The PROGRAM MANAGER agrees that the following key people in PROGRAM
MANAGER'’s firm shall be associated with the Project in the following capacities:

i.  Principal-in Charge: Tahir Ahad
ii.  Program Director: Dennis L. Dunston
ii.  Deputy Program Manager: Romeo Tabaranza

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall not change any of the key personnel listed above
without prior written approval by the DISTRICT, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld, unless said personnel cease to be employed by the
PROGRAM MANAGER. In either case, the DISTRICT shall be allowed to interview
and approve replacement personnel.

if any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the
DISTRICT, then upon written notice the PROGRAM MANAGER shall immediately
remove that person from the Project and provide a temporary replacement, the
PROGRAM MANAGER shall within twenty (20) work days provide a permanent
replacement person acceptable to the DISTRICT.

The PROGRAM MANAGER represents that the PROGRAM MANAGER has no
existing interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could
conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services required under this

Agreement and that no person having any such interest shall be employed by the
PROGRAM MANAGER.

ARTICLE 4. SCHEDULE OF WORK

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall commence work under this Agreement upon receipt
of a Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the work diligently as described in Exhibit A.

ARTICLE 6. MASTER BUDGET AND CONSTRUCTION COST BUDGET

1.

The PROGRANM MANAGER hereby accepts the DISTRICT's established Master
Program Budget for the Program. In accordance with Exhibit "A", the PROGRAM
MANAGER shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the
Master Program Budget for the DISTRICT at the beginning of the Program and at the
completion of each design phase for each Project.
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The PROGRAM MANAGER shall work with the DISTRICT to establish the
Construction Cost Budget for each Project in conformance with the Master Program
Budget.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall work cooperatively with the Project Architects and
Construction Managers during the Master Planning Phase, the Pre-Design,
Schematic Design Phase, Design Development Phase, and Construction Documents
Phase, as described in Exhibit A, so that the construction cost for each Project will
not exceed the Construction Cost Budget as much as reasonably feasible, for that
respective Project as adjusted subsequently with the DISTRICT's written approval.

Evaluations of the DISTRICT's Master Budget, Construction Cost Budget, and
preliminary and detailed cost estimates prepared by the PROGRAM MANAGER,
represent the PROGRAM MANAGER's best judgment as a professional familiar with
the construction industry.

The Construction Cost Budget for a Project will be established by the PROGRAM
MANAGER with the DISTRICT as part of work in the Pre-design and Master
Planning phases as described on Exhibit “A." This cost includes building construction
costs ("hard costs") and allowed design contingencies.

The Construction Cost Budget for a Project shall be reconciled with the Master
Program Budget and the Design Team’s Construction Cost Estimate and adjusted at
the completion of each design phase.

ARTICLE 6. FEE AND METHOD OF PAYMENT

1.

The DISTRICT shall pay the PROGRAM MANAGER compensation as shown on
Exhibit B, Fee Schedule.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall bill its work under this Agreement on a monthly
fixed fee basis in accordance with the attached Fee Schedule, Exhibit B.

If the DISTRICT suspends the Program for more than 90 consecutive days, the
PROGRANM MANAGER shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice
of such suspension. When the Program is resumed the PROGRAM MANAGER shall
be compensated for actual and reasonable expenses incurred in the interruption and
resumption of the PROGRAM MANAGER's services. The PROGRAM MANAGER's
fees for the remaining services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted if
the suspension of program services necessitates additional effort or costs.

The PROGRAM MANAGER's fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full
compensation for all of PROGRAM MANAGER's work incurred in the performance
hereof, including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel, offices, per diem
expenses, any other direct or indirect expenses incident to providing the services,
and any other items specified in Exhibit A.

Reimbursable expenses shall be billed at 110% of the PROGRAM MANAGER's
actual costs. Allowable reimbursable expenses shall be presented to the DISTRICT
for prior approval, and shall include: office equipment, office supplies and
furnishings, postage, hard hats, first aid equipment, project signage, and other items
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approved by the DISTRICT. The DISTRICT shall provide a central office for the
PROGRAM MANAGER. The DISTRICT may provide job site trailers, with necessary
appurtenances, or it may request that the PROGRAM MANAGER provide same, in
which case those costs shall be charged to the DISTRICT as reimbursable
expenses, but those costs shall not be limited to the budgeted amounts in the Master
Program Budget and pre-approved by the DISTRICT.

ARTICLE 7. PAYMENT FOR EXTRA WORK OR CHANGES

1.

Any charges for extra work shall be paid by the DISTRICT as described in Exhibit B
only upon certification that the claimed extra work was authorized in advance by the
DISTRICT and that the work has been satisfactorily completed.

ARTICLE 8. OWNERSHIP OF DATA

1.

After Completion of each Project or after termination of this Agreement, the
PROGRAM MANAGER shall deliver to the DISTRICT a complete set of Project
records, including without fimitation all documents generated by the PROGRAM
MANAGER, copies of all documents exchanged with or copied to or from all other
Program participates, and all closeout documents. Said Program records shall be
indexed and appropriately organized for easy use by the DISTRICT personnel.

ARTICLE 9. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

1.

if the PROGRAM MANAGER fails to perform the PROGRAM MANAGER's duties
as required herein, or if the PROGRAM MANAGER fails to fulfill in a timely and
professional manner the PROGRAM MANAGER's material obligations under this
Agreement, or if the PROGRAM MANAGER shall violate any of the material terms
or provisions of this Agreement and fails to resolve such material default within thirty
(30) working days, or if the default cannot be resolved within thirty (30) working days
commence to resolve such default, diligently pursue such resolution, and complete
the resolution within a reasonable time following written notice and demand from
DISTRICT, the DISTRICT shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, in whole
or in part, at the DISTRICT’s discretion, upon the DISTRICT giving a 30-day written
notice thereof to the PROGRAM MANAGER. The DISTRICT shall also have the
right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own convenience.
Termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the parties
arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of such termination.

The PROGRAM MANAGER has the right to terminate this Agreement if the
DISTRICT does not fulfill its material obligations under this Agreement and fails to
resolve such material default within 45 (forty-five) days, or if the default cannot be
resolved within 45 (forty-five) days, commence to resolve such default, diligently
pursue such resolution, and complete the resolution within a reasonable time
following written notice and demand from PROGRAM MANAGER. Such termination
shall be effective after receipt of written notice from PROGRAM MANAGER to the
DISTRICT.

The DISTRICT retains the right to terminate, either for convenience or for cause,
upon giving a 30 days notice, PROGRAM MANAGER's performance on any of the
Projects, or as Program Manager. The PROGRAM MANAGER agrees to continue to
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perform all non-terminated portions of this Agreement in that case, and the Parties
agree that PROGRAM MANAGER's compensation shall be adjusted accordingly.

ARTICLE 10. INDEMNITY CLAUSE

1.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall defend, indemnify and hold the DISTRICT, its
directors, officials, officers and employees free and harmiess from any and all claims,
demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any
kind, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, to the extent
that any of the above are caused by the willful misconduct or negligent acts of the
PROGRAM MANAGER, its officials, officers, employees, subcontractors,
consultants or agents in the performance of the Services, the Program, the Projects
or this Agreement including the payment of all consequential damages which are
reasonably foreseeable to the PROGRAM MANAGER.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree
that may be rendered against the DISTRICT, its directors, officials, officers and
employees in any such suits, actions or other legal proceedings to the extent caused
by the above agreement to indemnify.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall also reimburse the DISTRICT for the cost of any
settlement paid by the DISTRICT arising out of any such claims, demands, causes of
action, costs, expenses, liabilities, losses, damages, injuries, suits, actions, or other
legal proceedings to the extent caused by the above agreement to indemnify except
the damages DISTRICT has paid arising out of its own negligence. The PROGRAM
MANAGER shall reimburse the DISTRICT, its directors, officials, officers and
employees for any and all legal expenses and costs, including expert withess fees,
incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity hereto
provided to the extent caused by the above agreement to indemnify except to the
extent that the DISTRICT has paid for damages arising out of its own negligence.

The DISTRICT shall cause Contractors, subcontractors, or consultants to indemnify
and hold harmless the PROGRAM MANAGER from and against any and all claims,
demands, suits, damages, including consequential damages and damages resulting
from personal injury or property damage, costs, expenses and fees that are asserted
against the PROGRAM MANAGER and that arise out of or result from wrongful acts
or omissions by the District staff, Contractor and consuitants in performing the Work.

ARTICLE 11. FINGERPRINTING

1.

Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, the DISTRICT has determined on the
basis of scope of work in this Agreement of this Project, that the PROGRAM
MANAGER and its subcontractors and employees will have only limited contact with
pupils at most. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall promptly notify the DISTRICT in
writing of any facts or circumstances which might reasonably lead the DISTRICT to
determine that contact will be more than limited as defined by Education Code
section 45125.1 (d).

ARTICLE 12. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DISTRICT
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1. The DISTRICT shall examine the documents submitted by the PROGRAM
MANAGER and shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the
process of the PROGRAM MANAGER's services as follows:

a. The DISTRICT shall provide to the PROGRAM MANAGER complete information
regarding the DISTRICT's requirements for the Program.

b. The DISTRICT shall furnish legal, accounting, contract review and insurance
counseling services as may be necessary to protect the DISTRICT's interests.

c. If the DISTRICT observes or otherwise becomes aware of any fault or defect in
the Project or the PROGRAM MANAGER's services, or any nonconformity with
the Contract Documents, the DISTRICT shall give prompt written notice thereof
to the PROGRAM MANAGER,; failure to give such notice shall not be deemed to
be a waiver.

d. The DISTRICT shall retain Design Professionals and Construction Managers
whose services, duties and responsibilities shall be described in a written
agreement between the DISTRICT and Design Professionals or the DISTRICT
and the Construction Managers. The terms and conditions of said agreements
shall not be changed without written notification to the PROGRAM MANAGER.
The DISTRICT shall furnish a copy of the Owner-Architect Agreement and the
Owner-CM Agreement and any amendments to the PROGRAM MANAGER, that
designate the contractual responsibilities of all parties.

e. At the request of the PROGRAM MANAGER, sufficient copies of the Contract
Documents shall be furnished to the PROGRAM MANAGER to permit the timely
performance of services, by the DISTRICT at the DISTRICT's expense.

f. The DISTRICT shall, in a timely manner secure, submit and pay for necessary
approvals, easements, assessments, permits and charges required for the
construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent
changes in existing facilities, subject to PROGRAM MANAGER's and/or the
Design Professional(s) duties to recommend.

g. The DISTRICT shall send to the PROGRAM MANAGER and shall require the
Design Professionals to send to the PROGRAM MANAGER, copies of all notices
communications sent to or received by the DISTRICT or Design Professionals or
Construction Managers relating to a Project. During the Construction Phase of
the Projects, the DISTRICT shall require that the Contractors and Construction
Managers submit copies of all notices and communication relating to the Projects
directly to the PROGRAM MANAGER.

h. The DISTRICT shall designate an officer, employee or other authorized
representatives to act in the DISTRICT's behalf with respect to the Program. The
DISTRICT's representative for the Program shall be available during working
hours and as often as may be required to render decisions and to furnish
information in a timely manner.

i. The DISTRICT shall provide timely and accurate accounting information and
project expenditures for all projects within this Program and covered under this
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Agreement in order for the PROGRAM MANAGER to provide the DISTRICT
required reports.

j- The DISTRICT shall be responsible for the management, coordination, and
administration of the Bond Oversight Committee and its website.
Notwithstanding the preceding, the PROGRAM MANAGER shall cooperate and
assist the DISTRICT with providing information and reports to the Bond
Oversight Committee. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall attend all Bond
Oversight Committee meetings and assist the DISTRICT in preparing material
and information for the Bond Qversight Commitiee.

k. The DISTRICT shall be responsible for all contracting functions, which includes
but is not limited to, bid opening, determining responsiveness of bids,
responsibility of bidders and awarding of contracts in accordance with California
Public Contract Code and the Education Code and any other applicable laws.
Notwithstanding the preceding, the PROGRAM MANAGER shail advise and
assist the DISTRICT with respect to bid opening, determining responsiveness of
bids, responsibility of bidders and awarding of contracts in accordance with
California Public Contract Code and the Education Code and any other
applicable laws.

I, The DISTRICT shall be responsible for all contracting functions, which includes
but is not limited to, selection, negotiation and award of professional and other
specialty contracts in accordance with California Public Contract Code and the
Education Code and any other applicable laws. Notwithstanding the preceding,
the PROGRAM MANAGER shall advise and assist the DISTRICT with respect to
selection, negotiation and award of professional and other speciaity contracts in
accordance with California Public Contract Code and the Education Code and
any other applicable laws.

m. The DISTRICT shall provide written direction signed by the Associate
Superintendent of Business Services or the Director of Maintenance, Operations
and Facilities with regard to any issues arising out of this Agreement.

n. The DISTRICT shall prepare any Board items to be presented at the Board
meetings. Notwithstanding the preceding, the PROGRAM MANAGER shali
review and assist the DISTRICT with respect to preparing Board items, including
preparing reports, summaries, background and substantiating information for the
Board agenda items/meetings.

o. The DISTRICT shall be responsible for submission and approval process of any
design documents through the Division of State Architect. Notwithstanding the
preceding, the PROGRAM MANAGER shall assist the DISTRICT in expediting
timely response and approval of any design or construction material submitted
for projects under this Program.

ARTICLE 13, LIABILITY OF DISTRICT
1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, the DISTRICT's obligations under this

Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this
Agreement.
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2. Any and all costs incurred by the DISTRICT, or for which the DISTRICT may become
liable, to the extent caused by negligence of the PROGRAM MANAGER in its
performance hereunder, shall be paid to the DISTRICT by the PROGRAM
MANAGER as provided for herein and/or under California law.

ARTICLE 14. INSURANCE

1. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall comply with insurance requirements for this
Agreement, set forth in Exhibit C.

2. The DISTRICT shall be given 30 days notice prior to cancellation or reduction of
coverage amounts of any of the insurance.

3. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall provide certificates of insurance and
endorsements to the DISTRICT prior to commencement of the work of this
Agreement as required in Exhibit C.

4. The PROGRAM MANAGER, as agent of the DISTRICT, shall be named as an
additional insured in any insurance policy obtained by the DISTRICT for the Project.

5. The DISTRICT shall require the contractors to name the PROGRAM MANAGER as
additional insured in all insurance policies obtained by the contractors for the project.

6. The DISTRICT and the PROGRAM MANAGER shall provide the other with copies of
certificates for all policies obtained for the Program. Each party shall provide the
other thirty (30) days of notice of cancellation, non-renewal or endorsement reducing
or restricting coverage.

ARTICLE 15. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES

The PROGRAM MANAGER warrants that it has not employed or retained any company
or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the PROGRAM
MANAGER, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay
any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the
PROGRAM MANAGER, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any
other consideration contingent on or resulting from the award or making of this
Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the DISTRICT shall have the right
to annut this Agreement without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract
price or consideration or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission,
percentage fee, gift, or contingency.

ARTICLE 16. ENTIRE AGREEMENT/MODIFICATION

This Agreement, including the Exhibits hereto, supersedes all previous contracts and
constitutes the entire understanding of the parties hereto. The PROGRAM MANAGER
shall be entitted to no other benefits than those specific herein. No changes,
amendments or alterations shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both parties.
The PROGRAM MANAGER specifically acknowledges that in entering into this
Agreement, the PROGRAM MANAGER relies solely upon the provisions contained in
this Agreement and no others.
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ARTICLE 17. NON-ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT

In as much as this Agreement is intended to secure the specialized services of the
PROGRAM MANAGER, the PROGRAM MANAGER may not assign, transfer, delegate
or sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of the PISTRICT and any
such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without the DISTRICT's prior written
consent shall be considered null and void. Likewise, the DISTRICT may not assign,
transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of the
PROGRAM MANAGER and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease
without the PROGRAM MANAGER's prior written consent shall be considered null and
void.

ARTICLE 18. LAW, VENUE

1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the
validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall
be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California,

2. Santa Cruz County, California, in which the DISTRICT is located shall be the venue
for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or
by reason of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 19. ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION

All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation,
application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the
first method of resolution. If this method proves unsuccessful, then all claims; disputes or
controversies as stated above may be decided through arbitration, if agreed to by all
parties.

ARTICLE 20. SEVERABILITY

If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the
provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected,
impaired or invalidated thereby.

ARTICLE 21. EMPLOYMENT STATUS

1. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall, during the entire term of the Agreement, be
construed to be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended
nor shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, joint venture
relationship, or to allow the DISTRICT to exercise discretion or control over the
professional manner in which the PROGRAM MANAGER performs the services
which are the subject matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the
services to be provided by the PROGRAM MANAGER shall be provided in a manner
cansistent with all applicable standards and regulations governing such services.

2. The PROGRAM MANAGER understands and agrees that the PROGRAM
MANAGER's personnel are not and will not be eligible for membership in or any
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benefits from any DISTRICT group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or
for membership in any DISTRICT retirement program or for paid vacation, paid sick
leave or other leave, with or without payer for other benefits which accrue to a
DISTRICT employee.

Should a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State
Employment Development Department, or both, determine that the PROGRAM
MANAGER is an employee for purposes of collection of any employment taxes, the
amounts payable under this Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both
the employee and employer portions of the employment tax due (offsetting any
credits for amounts already paid by the PROGRAM MANAGER which can be
applied against this liability). The DISTRICT shall then forward those amounts to the
relevant taxing authority.

Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by
the PROGRAM MANAGER for the DISTRICT, upon notification of such fact by the
DISTRICT, the PROGRAM MANAGER shall promptly remit such amount due or
arrange with the DISTRICT to have the amount due withheld from future payments to
the PROGRAM MANAGER under this Agreement (again, offsetting any amounts
already paid by the PROGRAM MANAGER which can be applied as a credit against
such liability).

A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two paragraphs
shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other
purposes of this Agreement, the PROGRAM MANAGER shall not be considered an
employee of the DISTRICT. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should any court,
arbitrator, or administrative authority determine that the PROGRAM MANAGER is
an employee for any other purpose, then the PROGRAM MANAGER agrees to a
reduction in the DISTRICT's liability resulting from this Agreement pursuant to
principles similar to those stated in the foregoing paragraphs so that the total
expenses of the DISTRICT under this Agreement shall not be greater than they
wouid have been had the court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determined that
the PROGRAM MANAGER was not an employee.

Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or
entities not a party to this Agreement.

ARTICLE 22. REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTIES BY PROGRAM MANAGER

1.

3.

The PROGRAM MANAGER represents that the PROGRAM MANAGER is properly
licensed and/or certified under the laws and regulations of the State of California to
provide the special services that it has herein agreed to perform.

The PROGRAM MANAGER represents that it is aware of the provisions of the Labor
Code of the State of California, which require every employer to be insured against
liability for workers compensation or fo undertake self-insurance in accordance with
the provisions of that code, and it certifies that it will comply with those provisions
before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement.

The PROGRAM MANAGER represents that, to extent California or Federal law
relating to prevailing wages apply to the PROGRAM MANAGER's employees under
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this Agreement, it will comply with the said law and indemnify the DISTRICT for the
PROGRAM MANAGER's failure to do so.

ARTICLE 23. COST DISCLOSURE - DOCUMENTS AND WRITTEN REPORTS

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall be responsible for compliance with California
Government Code section 7550, if the total cost of the Contract is over five thousand
dollars ($5,000).

ARTICLE 24. COMMUNICATIONS

Communications between the parties to this Agreement may be sent to the foliowing
addresses;

DISTRICT:

Pajaro Valley Unified School District
294 Green Valley Road
Watsonville, CA 95078

PROGRAM MANAGER:
Total School Solutions
4751 Mangels Boulevard
Fairfield, CA 94534

ARTICLE 25 - OTHER PROVISIONS

1. Neither the DISTRICT's review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the services
required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any
rights under this Agreement, and the PROGRAM MANAGER shall remain liable to
the DISTRICT in accordance with this Agreement for all damages to the DISTRICT
caused by the PROGRAM MANAGER's failure to perform any of services furnished
under this Agreement to the standard of care as stated in this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in the dates
indicated below:

Dated: Dated:
Pajaro Valley Unified School District Total School Solutions
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
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EXHIBIT A
RESPONSIBIHTIES AND SERVICES OF PROGRAM MANAGER

! PROGRAM MANAGEMENT SERVICES

PROGRAM MANAGER shall provide the following program management services with
respect to the entire Measure L Building Program:

A. GENERAL

1. Provide work that shall comply with professional standards and applicable
requirements of federal, state, and local law;

2. Advise the DISTRICT as to the regulatory agencies that have jurisdiction over the
Projects, and as to coordination with and implementation of the requirements of the
regulatory agencies, including without limitation the Division of the State Architect
(DSA), the California Department of Education (CDE) and the Office of Public School
Construction (OPSC);

3. Contract for or employ, at the PROGRAM MANAGER's expense sub-consultants to
the extent deemed necessary for the PROGRAM MANAGER's services. Nothing in
the foregoing shall create any contractual relationship between the DISTRICT and
any sub-consultant employed by the PROGRAM MANAGER under terms of this
Agreement;

4. Cooperate and communicate with other professionals employed by the DISTRICT,
including without limitation the Design Teams and Construction Managers for the
design coordination and management of construction work related to the Program;

3. Chair, conduct and take minutes of periodic coordination meetings involving the
DISTRICT, the Design Professionals, Construction Managers and Contractors during
the course of the projects. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall invite the DISTRICT
and/or its representative to participatie in these meetings. The PROGRAM
MANAGER shall keep meeting minutes to document comments generated in these
meetings, but shall not be responsible for analyzing design or construction issues
raised in said meetings;

6. Be responsible for the coordination with all Master Plans, studies, reports and other
information provided by the DISTRICT to the PROGRAM MANAGER. The
PROGRAM MANAGER shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any
errors or omissions in materials it generates;

7. Maintain a log of all meetings, site visits or discussions held in conjunction with the
Program, with documentation of major discussion points, observations, decisions,
guestions or comments. These shall be furnished to the DISTRICT andior its
representative for inclusion in the overall program documentation;

8. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall coordinate transmittal of documents to regulatory
agencies for review and shall advise the DISTRICT of potential problems in
completion of such reviews;

9. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall assist the DISTRICT in the preparation of
information for a Website for public access to show all aspects of each Project and
the Program, including budget, cost, schedule, workforce, participating contractors,
opportunities and further direction refated to the Program status;
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10. When requested in writing by the DISTRICT, the PROGRAM MANAGER shall
provide written evaluation of the Project Architects’ and/or the Contractors'
performance under the requirements of the Construction Documents;

11. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall be responsible for the coordination of all activities
related to the DISTRICT's Labor Compliance Program;

12. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall be responsible for coordinating and monitoring
activities relating to the DISTRICT's project labor agreements, if applicable, including
meeting with unions and Contractors, and coordinating all activities related to award
and preconstruction as set forth in the project labor agreements;

13. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall coordinate the work of the DISTRICT's Hazardous
Material consultants in relation to each of the projects in the Program. The
PROGRAM MANAGER shall assist in selecting consultants, coordinate work of the
consultants and assist the DISTRICT in coordinating the work product of Hazmat
consultants into the project bid documents;

14. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall coordinate all aspects of moving, facilities
transitions, furnishings and equipment relocations and building preparation for
construction and occupancy. This shall include assistance with selection
management and coordination of movers, vendors, and others involved:

15. Communications to Board: The PROGRAM MANAGER may be required to attend
meetings of the DISTRICT's Board of Trustees, and to provide updates as directed
by DISTRICT staff,

16. Community Outreach: Assist the DISTRICT in encouraging participation in the
DISTRICT's Program with respect to small local husinesses, women-owned
businesses, minority-owned businesses and disabled veterans owned businesses;

17. For all meetings the PROGRAM MANAGER is required to attend as part of this
Agreement, DISTRICT will ensure the PROGRAM MANAGER is provided adequate
advance notification of such meetings.

18. The PROGRAM MANAGER is not responsible for;
A. Ground contamination or hazardous material analysis;

B. Any hazardous material testing, design or abatement however, it shall
coordinate and integrate its work with any such information provided by
DISTRICT as stated above;

C. Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA",
except that the PROGRAM MANAGER agrees o coordinate its work with
that of any CEQA consultants retained by the DISTRICT, and to provide
current information for use in CEQA compliance documents;

Historical significance report;

Soils investigation;

Geotechnical hazard report;

Topographic survey, including utility locating services;

T O mMmo

Other items specifically designated as the DISTRICT's responsibilities
under this Agreement;

I. Inspection Services;
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J. Any other testing services not identified above;

COST CONTROLS

1.

In consultation with the Design Teams, the PROGRAM MANAGER shall review the
payment applications submitted by each Contractor or Construction Manager (as
applicable), vendors and consultants, and determine whether the amount requested
reflects the progress of the party’s work. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall make
appropriate adjustments to each payment application and shall prepare and forward
to the DISTRICT a Progress Payment Report. The Report shall state the total
contract price, payments to date, current payment requested, retention and actual
amounts owed for the current period. Included in this report shall be a Certificate of
Payment that shall be signed by the PROGRAM MANAGER and delivered to the
DISTRICT;

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall prepare and implement methods to budget and
track all expenditures on each Project. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall generate
monthly reports, to the DISTRICT reflecting this information.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall coordinate with The DISTRICT staff and assist the
DISTRICT staff with the processing of the payments of all Design Professionals,
Construction Managers, vendors and contractors involved in the Projects, including
purchase requisitions and recommending invoices for payment, and attending any
related meetings;

SCHEDULES

1.

Based on information provided by the DISTRICT, the PROGRAM MANAGER shall
prepare a Master Program Schedule of projects. This schedule shall be based on
information on the availability of funding and priorities provided by the DISTRICT.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall monitor and coordinate with Design Teams and
Construction Managers adjustments and updates to the Master Program Schedule
and distribute copies to the DISTRICT, Construction Managers and Design Teams.
Recommendations for such adjustments to the Master Program Schedule shall be
made to the BISTRICT, and upon the DISTRICT's approval, shall be incorporated by
the PROGRAM MANAGER;

The PROGRAM MANAGER shail develop methods to track and report on schedule
status for each project and for the overall Program. Based on information provided
by the Construction Managers and the Design Teams, the PROGRAM MANAGER
shall develop master schedules and milestone schedules for each Project, and shall
repert on same each month to the DISTRICT.

PROGRAM SERVICES

General: The PROGRAM MANAGER shall monitor and advise the DISTRICT as to
all material developments in the Program and the Projects. The PROGRAM
MANAGER shall develop and implement with DISTRICT approvai reporting methods
for schedules, cost and budget status, and projections for each project in the
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DISTRICT's Program. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall be the focal point of all
communication to and from construction contractors/Construction Managers and
shall be copied on all communications between DISTRICT and its Design
Professionals,

2. Project Scope: The PROGRAM MANAGER shall develop the initial scope of all
projects based on the Facilities Master Plan and input from the DISTRICT. The
Project Scope will be verified by the Design Teams and Construction Managers prior
{o commencing desigh work.

C. PRE-DESIGN AND PROGRAMMING PHASE SERVICES
1. PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT

Upon final execution of the Agreement with the DISTRICT, the PROGRAM
MANAGER shall:

a. Participate in a general Project kick-off meeting to include the PROGRAM
MANAGER, Design Teams, Construction Managers and DISTRICT staff;

b. Surveys of Existing Facilities: Evaluate reports and surveys regarding
existing conditions, including geotechnical and hazardous materials
issues. Develop proposed scopes of work for each site in conjunction
with the DISTRICT, Project Architects and Construction Managers. Assist
the DISTRICT with establishing pricrities for each site;

¢.  Educational Specifications: Assist the DISTRICT with developing and
refining Educationail Specifications, but the PROGRAM MANAGER shall
not be responsible for drafting same;,

d. Project Schedule: Develop with the DISTRICT and Design Teams, the
overall Master Program schedule and schedules for each project.
Schedules will include phasing plans and other approaches developed
with the DISTRICT, Design Teams, Construction Managers and input
through public meetings;

e.  Master Budget: The PROGRAM MANAGER shall assist the DISTRICT in
balancing the intent and purpose of the Program with the funds initially
budgeted. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall develop a preliminary
construction cost model utilizing unit costs for each major component.
Prepare preliminary cost estimates for each project along with any the
DISTRICT requested alternates;

f.  Implementation Plan: Assist the DISTRICT with preparing, implementing,
updating and revising the Master Plan. However, this assistant shall not
include an overall revision or update to the Facilities Master Plan. The
implementation Plan will incorporate project scopes, budget, and
schedule as developed in this phase. The implementation Plan shall set
forth in detail preliminary scopes of work at each site, cost estimates for
each project, phasing plan(s) and schedules, and ranking of priorities.
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D. PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE

1.

Provide overall coordination of the Projects; serve as the focal point of
communication, transmitting information to the DISTRICT and Project Team on
general aspects of the projects, including planning, scheduling, cost
management, progress reporting, design review, dispute resoclution, and
documentation. All communications from the contractors/construction managers
to the DISTRICT and project Design Team shall be copied to the PROGRAM
MANAGER. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall receive simultaneous copies of all
written communications from the DISTRICT or the project design teams to the
contractors;

Develop and implement the DISTRICT approved implementation procedures,
forms, and reporting requirements for the projects that involve all members of the
project teams, inciuding the DISTRICT, design professionals, construction
contractors, and Construction Managers (if applicable).

Provide input to the project teams on value engineering studies conducted by
others at the Design Development Phase. Coordinate with the DISTRICT and
Design Professionals. Forward recommendations to the DISTRICT concerning
revisions to the Master Program Budget and the Project Construction Cost
Budgets that may result from design changes and construction.

Manage, coordinate and reconcile constructability reviews of each project
prepared by the Construction Manager at the Design Development Phase and at
90% completion of Construction Documents. The constructability review shall
include review of the design documents for clarity, consistency; constructability
and coordination. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall also make
recommendations to the DISTRICT with respect to constructability, construction
cost, sequence of construction, construction duration and separation of the
contracts for various projects into categories of the work. However, the
PROGRAM MANAGER is not responsible for providing, nor does the
PROGRAM MANAGER control, the project design or the contents of the design
documents. The PROGRAM MANAGER's actions in reviewing the project
design and design documents and in making recommendations as provided
herein are advisory only to the DISTRICT. The Architect is not a third party
beneficiary of the PROGRAM MANAGER's work described in this paragraph
and the Architect remains solely responsibie for the contents of design drawings
and construction documents;

Develop the schedules of the Program and each Project through the completion
of construction, as directed by the DISTRICT, in coordination with the Design
Teams and Construction Managers and advise and consuit with the DISTRICT:

Establish schedules for the soils consultant, for any hazardous materials testing
and other consultants, and review costs, estimates, and invoices of each;

Develop and implement a management control system to support such functions
as planning, organizing, scheduling, budgeting, reporting progress and identifying
and documenting problems and solutions for each Project. The system will allow
for monthly progress reports to the DISTRICT regarding the schedule for the
Program and the Projects;

Organize initial planning workshop(s) to create baseline parameters for the
Projects, to define overall building requirements, project strategy, conceptual

EXHIBIT A SCOPE.doc Page 6



10.

budget and schedule. Pursuant to understandings reached at these meetings,
the PROGRAM MANAGER will develop an implementation plan that identifies
the various phases of the Projects, coordination among phases, and budget and
time constraints for each phase of the Projects. The plan will include a detailed
strategy, master budget and master schedule as well as identification of critical
events and milestone activities:

Attend all planning, programming, and master site planning meetings relating to
the Program;

Review updated cost estimates for each Project provided by the Design Teams
at the Schematic Design, Design Development, and Construction Documents
Phases; coordinate with Design Teams and Construction Managers and
reconcile cost estimates with the program budgets.

E. PRE-BID PHASE

1.

F.

In conjunction with the Design Teams and Construction Managers coordinate the
project schedule and construction milestone schedule with the Master Program
Schedule for each Project. In consultation with the DISTRICT and according to
DISTRICT approved policies, procedures, and standards, implement procedures,
forms, and reporting requirements for the Projects. Establish, accordingly, a
communications procedure for the Projects that allows for decision making at
appropriate levels of responsibility and accountability;

Work with the Design Teams and Construction Managers to modify or add to
standard, special, or general conditions for contract(s) that might be needed for
unique project or bid package conditions, for DISTRICT approval;

Work with the Design Teams and Construction Managers to separate the
construction phase for the projects into bid packages;

If requested by the DISTRICT, the PROGRAM MANAGER shall assist with
creating alternates for the bid documents, including estimates for such alternates:

BIDDING AND AWARD PHASE

Attend pre-bid conferences to assist the Design Teams and Construction
Managers with famifiarizing bidders with the bidding documents, and any special
systems, materials or methods and with project procedures. Field questions from
bidders regarding DISTRICT standards and procedures, referring questions
related to specific project issues to Design Teams and Construction Managers as
required. Coordinate responses with Design Teams for inclusion in project
addenda prepared by the Design Team;

Review the bid analysis prepared by the Design Team and Construction
Managers. Advise the DISTRICT on compliance of bidders with DISTRICT
requirements and of bids with bid requirements. Report and recommend to
DISTRICT after review and evaluation;

Attend pre-award conferences with successful bidders conducted by the Design
Teams and the Construction Managers;
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10.

1.

12.

13.

14,

Attend preconstruction meetings; Advise the DISTRICT, Design Teams,
Construction Managers and contractors on District Standards;

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall assist the DISTRICT and the Design Teams in
the assembly, delivery and execution of the Construction Documents.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall assist the DISTRICT in verifying that the
Contractors have secured all necessary permits, bonds, insurance, labor
affidavits and waivers as required by the Construction Documents. Such action
by the PROGRAM MANAGER shall not relieve the Contractors, the Design
Teams or the DISTRICT of their responsibilities to comply with the provisions of
the Documents;

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall schedule and coordinate all tasks of the
Bidding and Award Phases in accordance with the Master Plan, Master Program
Schedule and Master Program Budget, which shall all be revised and kept
current as necessary;

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall coordinate with the Design Teams and the
Construction Managers to develop standardized bidding procedures and bid
documents for the Projects;

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall assist the DISTRICT, the Design Teams and
the Construction Managers in developing lists of possible bidders for each project
and generate bidder interest and actively market the DISTRICT's projects;

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall implement and administer prequalification of
bidders in accordance with applicable law. This service shall include the
following:

a.  Preparation and distribution of prequalification questionnaires;
b.  Receiving and analyzing completed questionnaires;

c. Interviewing references of possible bidders, bonding agents and financia!
institutions; and

d.  Preparing recommendations for the DISTRICT.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall review bidders lists for each bid package
prepared by the Design Teams and the Construction Managers for approval by
the DISTRICT;

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall track the costs for all bidding expenses and
shall report to the DISTRICT at regular intervals on the status of the expenses.
Project and construction budgets shall be adjusted as directed by the DISTRICT;

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall assist the DISTRICT in preparing all
necessary bidding information and bidding forms required by the DISTRICT and
shall assist the DISTRICT in preparing the Contracts for Construction to maintain
consistency throughout the Program. This shall include a review of all
specifications to ensure that they require the Contractor to provide operation
manuals and adequate training for the DISTRICT in the operation of mechanical,
electrical, electronic data equipment and hardware of all types, and other
systems installed by the Contractors.

The PROGRANM MANAGER shall review and monitor compliance by the Design
Teams and Construction Managers with the District Standard documents and
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15.

16.

17.

18.

provide lists of DISTRICT specific inventory materials to be provided at the end
of the projects by the Contractors such as extra furnace filters, lighting fixture
lamps, floor tiles, ceiling tiles, interior paint, exterior paint, etc.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall receive from the Design Teams a copy of all
addenda. The PROGRAM MANAGER, in conjunction with the Design Teams
and Construction Managers, shall ensure that a copy of all addenda is distributed
to each bidder receiving construction documents for the projects.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall assist the DISTRICT in conducting the bid
opening and shall assist in evaluating the bids for responsiveness and price. The
PROGRAM MANAGER shall make recommendations to the DISTRICT
concerning the acceptance or rejection of bids.

In consultation with the DISTRICT and Design Teams, the PROGRAM
MANAGER shall participate in pre-construction conferences conducted by the
Design Teams and Construction Managers during which the PROGRAM
MANAGER shall review the organization, communication protocols, security,
responsibilities and other general procedures for each Project.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall assist in scheduling and coordination of all
tasks of the Award and Bid Phase in accordance with the Master Plan, Master
Program Schedule and Master Program Budget. The Master Program Schedule
and Master Program Budget shall be revised and kept current as necessary.

G. CONSTRUCTION PHASE

1.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall keep the DISTRICT informed of the progress,
timeliness, cost, and quality of the work with detalled monthly reports that include
sequential pictures of the progress of construction;

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall monitor program costs and shall work to
ensure that projected costs for each project will not exceed the approved budget
for that project and provide the DISTRICT timely notice of any potential increase
in costs in excess of approved budgets.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall develop and implement procedures with the
assistance and confirmation of the Design Teams for the review and processing
of construction contractor(s) applications for progress and final payments for all
construction contracts. Coordinate the submittal, review, verification and
processing of payment applications for progress and final payment for all
construction contracts. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall track all payments in
the overall program budget.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall assist the DISTRICT in selecting and retaining
special consultants and testing laboratories and coordinate their services.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall establish and implement standardized
procedures, in collaboration with the Design Teams, for expediting the
processing and approval of shop drawings; product data, samples, and other
submittals for each contract.

Based on information provided by the Construction Managers, the PROGRAM
MANAGER shall prepare and distribute monthly project status reports for each
active project and the Program, including updates on project activities, progress
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10.

11.

12.

of work, outstanding issues, potential problems, status of requests for information
("RFI's"), change orders and submittals.

In cases where issues cannot be resolved at the project level the PROGRAM
MANAGER shall assist the DISTRICT in interpreting and deciding matters
concerning the performance of the Project Architects, Construction Managers
and Contractors under the requirements set forth in the Construction Documents
upon written request from the DISTRICT, a Project Architect, Construction
Manager or a Contractor. The PROGRAM MANAGER's response to such
requests shall promptly be made in writing.

Interpretations and decisions of the PROGRAM MANAGER shall be consistent
with the infent of, and reasonably inferable from, the Construction Documents
and shall be in writing or in the form of drawings and shall normally be provided
within five (5) Working Days from the date a request for interpretation or
information is received by the PROGRAM MANAGER.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall report to the DISTRICT known deviations from
the Construction Documents and from the most recent construction schedules
and budgets submitted by the Contractors.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall, on a monthly basis, review the progress for all
projects, shall review the Construction Manager's evaluation of the percentage
complete of each construction activity as indicated in the Contractor's
Construction Schedule. The Construction Manager's evaluation shall serve as
data for input to the periodic PROGRAM MANAGER’s Schedule Report that
shall be prepared and distributed to the DISTRICT. The report shall indicate the
actual progress compared to scheduled progress and shall serve as the basis for
the progress payments to the Contractor.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall review and distribute the Progress Payment
Reports prepared by the Design Teams to the DISTRICT for each project. The
reports shall state the total construction price, payment to date, current payment
requested, retention and actual amounts owed each period.

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall prepare and distribute Project Cost Reports on
a monthly basis during the Construction Phase for each Project. The Reports
shall specify actual project and construction costs compared to the DISTRICT
approved Construction Cost Budget for each Project and overall Master Program
Budget.

H. SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

1.

Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Substantial Completion, if any, the
PROGRAM MANAGER shall coordinate with the Project Architect(s), the
Construction Manager(s) and Project Inspector(s), to ensure that a list of
incomplete work or work which does not conform to the requirements of the
contract documents (punch list) is prepared. This list shall be attached to the
Certificate of Substantial Completion, if any.

FINAL COMPLETION

EXHIBIT A SCOPE doc Page &



1. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall consult with the Design Teams, the Pl and the
DISTRICT as to when a project and the contractor's work on a project are finally
completed. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall assist with the preparation and
filing of the Notice of Completion with the County Recorder.

J. FINAL DOCUMENTS

1. The PROGRAM MANAGER shall assist in securing and transmitting to the
DISTRICT required guarantees, keys, manuals, record drawings, and daily logs.
The PROGRAM MANAGER shall also forward all documents and plans {o the
DISTRICT upon completion of the Program and ensure all such plans and
documents are well organized for any appropriate audit or review of the program.

K. WARRANTY

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall assist with the development of a Warranty Inspection
and Warranty Work procedure that all contractors are to follow.

EXHIBIT A SCOPE.doc Page 10



EXHIBITB
FEE SCHEDULE

The Program Manager's compensation shall be based on the total Program
Funding defined as funding from all sources available to the Measure L Building
Program and managed as a part of the Program Management services including,
but not limited to:
¢ Measure L bond sales, interim financing mechanisms including Bond
Anticipation Notes (BANs) and Capital Appreciation Bonds (CABs) or
other mechanisms;
o State facilities funding including New Construction, Modernization,
Seismic Mitigation and other State sources;
e Developer Fees;

The Program Duration shall be until all projects in the Measure L Building
Program are compieted but no longer than 6 years from the effective date of the
agreement.

The Program Manager's compensation shall be 3% of the Program Funding.
Compensation for the first 12 months of the program commencing with the
effective date of the agreement, shall be 0.5% of the anticipated funding paid in
12 equal increments. Compensation for the remaining 72 months shall be 2.5%
of the planned funding paid in equal monthly increments. The total Program
Funding shall be reviewed yearly on the anniversary date of this agreement and
adjustments to the compensation made as additional funding sources are
identified and secured.

EXHIBIT BFEES I Page 1



EXHIBITC
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

The PROGRAM MANAGER shall purchase and maintain insurance that will protect the
PROGRAM MANAGER from the claims set forth below that may arise out of or result
from the PROGRAM MANAGER’s performance of services or failure to perform
services required by this Agreement:

A Claims under Workers' Compensation, disability benefits and
other similar employee benefits acts that are applicable to the work performed;

B. Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational
sickness or disease or death of PROGRAM MANAGER’s employees, agents or
invitees;

C. Claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any
person;

D. Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability
coverage that are sustained (1) by any person as a result of an offense directly related to
the employment of such person by the PROGRAM MANAGER or (2) by any other
person;

E. Claims for damages, other than to the work itself, because of
injury to or destruction of tangible property, including loss of use therefrom; or

F. Claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any
person or property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of any
motor vehicle.

The PROGRAM MANAGER’s comprehensive general and automobile liability insurance
shall be written for not less than the following limits of liahility:

Comprehensive General Liability

Personal Injury: Property Damage:
$1,000,000.00 Each Occurrence $1,000,000.00 Each Occurrence
$1,000,000.00 Aggregate $1,000,000.00 Aggregate

Comprehensive Automobile Liability

Bodily injury: Property Damage:
$1,000,000.00 Each Person $1,000,000.00 Each Occurrence
$1,000,000.00 Each Occurrence

Errors and Omissions Insurance — Prior to commencement of services under this
Agreement, PROGRAM MANAGER shall furnish to the DISTRICT satisfactory proof that

EXHIBIT C INSURANCE Page 1



the PROGRAM MANAGER has, for the period covered by this Agreement, errors and
omissions insurance on an occurrence basis with limits of at least $1,000,000.00 and a
deductible not more than $10,000.

Each policy of insurance above shall operate as primary insurance., The DISTRICT, its
Board of Trustees, employees and agents shall be named as additional insureds under
the policies. A copy of the policies shall be provided before any work is commenced
under this Agreement. Policies shall not be canceled or reduced in coverage without 30
days prior written notice to DISTRICT.
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Date:

ftem:

Overview:

Recommendation:

PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Item No: 10.5

January 16, 2013

Approval of Resoluticn # 12-13-09 entering election results into the
minutes and certifying to the Board of Supervisors of Santa Cruz and
Monterey counties all proceedings in the November 6, 2012 General
Obligation Bond Election

On November 6, 2012 the District’s 2012 Proposition 30 General Obligation Bond
Election was duly held and conducted for the purpose of voting a measure for the
issuance of bonds of the District in the amount of $150,000,000 (Measure L).

This resolution acknowledges the Board of Trustee’s receipt from the Registrars of
Voters/County Clerk-Recorder of the Counties the Canvass Certificate and Official
Statement of Results (the “Canvass”™) of the Bond Election.

It appears from the Canvass, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit “A” that more than
fifty-five percent of the votes cast on Measure I. were in favor of issuing the
aforementioned bonds. Passage of the measure authorizes the district to begin issuance
of bond series for purposes described in the official bond language approved by voters.
All bond language was submitted into the voter information pamphlet and made
available to voters district-wide.

Upon approval of the action, the Board of Trustees has sixty days to establish and
appoint the Measure L Citizens” Oversight Committee,

Approve Resolution # and Exhibit A as submitted

Prepared By: Brett W. McFadden, Chief Busmess Officer

N ’
Superintendent’s Signature: <_/ J . 0 /ﬁz@,{,




PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RESOLUTION NO. _12-13-09

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE PAJARO
VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOGL DISTRICT ENTERING ELECTION
RESULTS INTO THE MINUTES AND CERTIFYING TO THE BOARDS
OF SUPERVISORS OF SANTA CRUZ AND MONTEREY COUNTIES
ALL PROCEEDINGS IN THE NOVEMBER 6, 2012 GENERAL
OBLIGATION BOND ELECTION

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Pajaro Valley Unified School District (the
“District”) previously adopted a resolution requesting each of Santa Cruz County and Monterey
County (the “Counties”) to call an election for general obligation bonds (the “Bond Election™) to
be held on November 6, 2012; and

WHEREAS, such resolution was duly delivered to the Registrar of Voters/County Clerk-
Recorder of the Counties; and

WHEREAS, notice of the Bond Election was duly given; and

WHEREAS, on November 6, 2012, the Bond Election was duly held and conducted for
the purpose of voting a measure for the issuance of bonds of the District in the amount of
$150,000,000 (“Measure L™); and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the District has received from the Registrars of
Voters/County Clerk-Recorder of the Counties the Canvass Certificate and Official Statement of
Results (the “Canvass™) of the Bond Election; and

WHEREAS, it appears from the Canvass, a copy of which is attached hereto as
Exhibit “A,” that more than fifty-five percent of the votes cast on Measure L were in favor of
issuing the aforementioned bonds.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE PAJARO VALLEY
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT DOES HEREBY FIND, DETERMINE AND CERTIFY AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That entry be made upon the minutes of the meeting that Measure L has been
approved by more than fifty-five percent of the votes cast at the Bond Election.

Section 2. That all proceedings of the District in connection with the Bond Election have
been accomplished according to law.

Section 3. That the Secretary of the Board is hereby requested to deliver a copy of this
Resolution with the Canvass to the Santa Cruz County Superintendent of Schools and the Clerk
of the Board of Supervisors of the County.



ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this 16th day of January, 2013.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE PAJARO
VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

President

ATTEST:

Secretary



STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

)ss
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY )
1, , do hereby certify that the foregoing
Resolution No. was duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Pajaro Valley

Unified School District at a meeting thereof held on the 16th day of January, 2013 and that it was
so adopted by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTENTIONS:

By:

Secretary



EXHIBIT A

Official Canvass and Statement Results

December 5, 2012

County of Santa Cruz

Total Votes  32.161 Percentage  100%
Yes 22,171 68.14%
No 9,990 31.06%
County of Monterey

Total Votes 2,143 Percentage  100%
Yes 1,474 68.78%
No 669 31.22%



PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Item No: 10.5

Date: January 16, 2013

Item: Williams Uniform Complaint Quarterly Report
(October, November and December 2012)

Overview and  All school districts have been required to adopt a complaint system as a part of
Rationale: the Williams Settlement.

On a quarterly basis, Williams’ complaints must be reported to the board and
the county superintendent. The report must include the number and types of

complaints received and how they were corrected.

During this quarter there were zero Williams Complaints filed.

Recommendation: Approve Williams Quarterly Report as Submitted.

Prepared By:  Sharon Roddick, Assistant Superintendent, HR

Superintendent’s Signature: @pr/m- fort




DISTRICT:

QUARTERLY DISTRICT STATUS REPORT OF UNIFORM COMPLAINTS
TO THE COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 2012

Paiaro Valley Unified School District Date Reported to District Governing Board: January 16, 2013

INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

IT,

180

A} Insufficient text books or instructional materials in classroom:

# of Complaints
0

# of Comptlaints Resolved

# of Complaints Unresolved”

e Explanation:

B) Insufficient textbooks or instructional materials to take home:

# of Complaints
0

# of Complaints Resolved

# of Complaints Unresolved*

¢ Explanation:

) Textbooks or instructional materials in poor or unusable condition:

# of Complaints
0

# of Complaints Resolved

# of Complaints Unresolved*

¢  Explanation:

TEACHER VACANCY OR MISASSIGNMENT

A) No assigned certified teacher at beginning of semester:

# of Complaints
0

# of Complaints Resolved

# of Complaints Unresolved*

*»  Explanation:

B) Teacher lacking credentials or training to teach English Language Learners (ELL) with

More than 20% Eil in class:

# of Complaints
0

# of Complaints Resolved

# of Complaints Unresolved*

¢ Explanation:

) Teacher instructing class lacking subject matter competency:

# of Complaints
0

# of Complaints Resolved

# of Complaints Unresolved”

e  Explanation:

FACILITIES

A) Conditions pose an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of students/staff:

# of Complaints
0

# of Complaints Resolved

# of Complaints Unresolved®




Item No: 10.7

Dhate:

ftem:

Overview:

Recommendation:

Funding Source:

Superintendent’s ib@;/nﬂ /hpds
Signature Dorma Baker

January 16 2013

Watsonville High lighting retrofit project.

Project is 1o replace HID lighting in the old gym and different shop with energy efficient T8 fluorescent lighting.
This is a joint project with UCSC and the district.

The Watsonville High School (WHS) lighting retrofit was originally conceived by Ben Oberhand (UCSC student),
Andy Shatney (UCSC Staff, Energy Analyst) and Dan Johnston (Watsonville High School teacher). Ben was both an
intern of Power Save Green Campus (PSGC) and IDEASS. The goal of PSGC is to reduce energy consumption while
IDEASS (Impact Designs Engineering and Sustainability through Student Service) is a program where students
develop projects within their areas of interest cooperatively with community mentors and experts in the field, Using
these two programs, Ben undertook a two-prong approach at WHS which: (1) fooked for potential energy efficiency
projects; and (2) educated WHS students about energy efficiency and sustainable practices,
After auditing WHS, under direction from Andy Shainey and Steve Okamura (PVUSD, Energy Education Manager),
a Carbon Fund grant was proposed to upgrade sixty inefficient high intensity discharge (HID) fixtures to efficient T8
high bay lighting. The Carbon Fund is a UCSC student funded program to reduce greenhouse gases and spread
awareness about Climate Change. The Carbon Fund mission reads:

“The commitice strives for a sustainable future by working to mitigate

Climate Change through funding and participating in projects to reduce

greenhouse gas emissions, conduct relevant research, or carry out education

and behavioral change programs. The Committee’s commitment is foremost

to the campus and its students, but alse to the wider community as Climate

Change is a threat without boundaries.”
The WHS project was awarded $18,600 by the Carbon Fund and is also eligible for another $9,364 in PG&E rebates.
The project is expected to save approximately 54,000 kWhiyearly and $8000 annually in energy costs, while
eliminating 13.27 tonnes of CO2 annually. A similar Carbon Fund project was recently completed at the UCSC East
Field House Gym. The upgrade replaced eighteen 175 watt metal halide (MH) and twelve 250W MH fixtures with
twetve 315W induction fixtures {with integrated motion and daylight sensors). The project cost $35,000, saved
19,762 kWh/vearly and $2700 annually ir encrgy costs while eliminating 4.84 Tonnes of CO2 annualty. The project
also significantly increased the quality of lighting (pre-retrofit lighting levels were an uneven 20 foot-candles (fe),
whereas post-refrofit levels are an even 40fc.). It is expected that the WHS project will match or exceed those of the
UCSC project by saving more energy, enhancing visual comfort, while at the same time reducing maintenance costs.

Staff recommends accepting project with UCSC and PG&E we estimate a total district cost at $7,036 and this project
would be less than & one year ROI. (Return on Investment)

Budget Considerations: N/A

PG&E rebate §9,364, UCSC grant $18,600 and
District cost $7,036 differed maintenance

Budgeted: Yes: x No: D
Amount: $7,036
Prepared by: Rick Mullikin, Director of M/O/F

Steve Okamura, Energy Manager
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Ttem No: 12.1

Date:  January 16, 2013

Item: Review and adoption of 2011-12 Annual Financial Audit

Overview: The District is required to have an anmual audit by an independent auditor who
examines the records of the district and the procedures used in processing fiscal
transactions and maintaining financial records. The Audit of the 2011-12 fiscal year
was performed by Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co. and is presented to the Board for review
pursuant to Education Code Section 41020.3

41020.3 “By January 31 of each year, each school district governing board and county board of
education that services as the governing board of a school district shall review at public
meeting, the annual audit of the school district for the prior year, any audit findings of any
management letter issued by the auditor, and any description of correction or plans to correct
any exceptions or management letter issue. This review shall be placed on the agenda of the
meeting pursuant to Section 351457

Opinions of the Auditor

Recommendation:

Prepared By:

The audit indicates the following:

In the opinion of the Auditor, the District’s financial records represent the true
financial condition of the District and that there are no material weaknesses in
the internal control over financial reporting.

In the opinion of the Auditor, the District has complied, in all material respects
with State laws and regulations and with the requirements of each of the
Federal programs operated.

Findings and Recommendations

The Auditor did not note any significant findings and/or recommendations. There were
minor administrative / compliance items noted, but these did not significantly alter the
District’s financial status or compliance with federal and state statutes. This is a
noteworthy accomplishment given the complexity school finance and the high number
of categorical programs administered by the District. Summary of findings and
recommendations can be found in the last section of the audit.

Adopt action acknowledging review and implementation of the 2011-12 Annual
Financial Audit as submitted.

Brett W. McFadden, Chief Business Officer
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Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Gg., LLP

Certified Public Accountanis

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Governing Board
Pajare Valley Unmified School District
Watsonville, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Pajaro Valley Unified School District (the District) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in'the
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the District's management. Our
responsibility 15 to express opinions-on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial andits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptrolier General of the United States; and Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local
Educational Agencies 2011-2012, issued by the California Education Audit Appeals Panel as regulations. These
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable agsurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures i the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as'well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In. our opmnion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the Pajaro Valley Unitfied School District, as of Jure 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position,
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accouniing principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 14, 2012, on
our constderation of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
reportis to describe the scope of our testing of internal controlover financial reporting and compliance and the
resulfs of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed m accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our-andit.
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison, and other postemployment information be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
15 required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain Hinited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally aceepfed in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses fo our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not cxpress an opinion or provide any assurance on the
miformation because the limited procedures do not proviude us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Our audit wes conducted for the purpose of forming opinions onthe Anancial statements that colleciively
cornprise the District's financial statements. The sepplementary information lsted in the table of contents,
including the Schedule of Expenditures or Federal Awards which is required by the TS, Office of Management
Budget Circular A-133, dudits of State, Local Governmments, and Non-Profit Organizations, is vresented for
purposes of additicnal analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such nformation is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
ofher records sed to prepare the financial statements. The informetion has been subjected o the anditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statemments and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly 1o the underlying accounting and othier records nsed to prepare the
financial statemenis or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in aceordance with
auditing standards generally accepied in the United States of America. In our opimion, the supplementary
mformation listed in the table of contents and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated in
all material respects in relation fo the financial statements as a whole.

&/Qmmé@@@;/ﬁ e

Palo Alto, Califorma
December 14, 2012



PAJARG VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOQGL DISTRICT

294 Green Valley Road, Watsonville, CA 95076
{(831) 786-2100

MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis section of the 201172012 Annuat Financial Audit summarizes the
District’s financial performance during the 2011-2012 fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, The District™s financial
systems and reporting adhere to standards and requirements prescribed under the Goveinmcmal Aceounting
Standards Board {GASRB), State Board of Education, federal law, and the California Education Code,

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financial Statements

The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the Pajaro Valley Unified School District
(the'Districty using the integrated approach as preseribed by GASB Statement Number 34,

@

&

The Government-Wide Financial Statements present the financial picture of the District from the
economic Tesources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting, They present major
governmental activities in accordance with accrual accounting. These statements mclude all assets of the
District (including capital assets), as well as all liabititles (including long—terr debt). Additionally,
certamn climinations have occurred as prescribed by the statement in regards to inter-fund activity,
pavables, snd receivables.

The Fund Financial Statements include statements for each of the three categories of activities:
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

The Governmental Activities are prepared using the current finaneial resources measurement focus and
modified accrual basis of accounting.

The Proprietary Activities are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the acerual
basis of accounting.

The Fiduciary Activities are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the acerual
basis of accousnting.



PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2012

The Pajaro Valley Unified School District is the primary governmental agency represented in this audit. The
District also includes five charter schools established and overseen pursuant to the Education Code, They include
Linscott Elementary, Watsonviile School of the Arts, Pacific Coast Charter School, Alianza Charter School, and
Academic Vocational Charter Instifute. Financial information for the charter schools is'included in the special
revenue, charter schoel fund of the District. Separately issued financial statements for the charter schools are not
prepared.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF THE PAST YEAR
REPORTING THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

The Statement of Net Assers and the Stotement of Aciivities

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Aciivities report information about the District as a whole and
its-activities. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, All current
year revenues and expenses are taken into account regardiess of when cash is received or paid.

These two staternents report the District’s net assets and changes in them. Net assets are the difference between
assets and fiabilities. These statements are one measure of the District’s financial health and position. Over time,
increases or decreases in the District’s net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or
deteriorating, Other factors to consider are changes in the District’s property tax base and the condition of the
District’s facilities.

Overall, these factors are subject fo significant influences from state and federal education funding policies. Asa
result of current economic conditions, they have undergone dramatic fluctuations over the past five fiscal yvears.
These changes have largely been unforeseen and unprecedented. Projections indicate this condition will continue
overthe next two fiscal years.

The relationship bétween revenues and expenses is the District’s operating results. Since the Board’s
responsibility is to provide services to all students, and not to generate profit as commercial entities do, one must
consicer other factors when evaluating the overall health of the District. The quality of the instructional program,
academic achievement among students, and the safety and condition of s¢hod! facilities are important components
in the evaluation of District effectiveness.

In the Starement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we include the District activities as follows:

Governmental activities - All of the District’s services are reported in this category. This includes the education
of kindergarten through grade twelve students, adult education students, the operation of child development
activities, other student services, and the on-going effort to improve and maintain buildings and sites. Property
taxes, state education funding, user fees, interest income, federal, state and local grants, as well as general
obligation bonds, finance these activities.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2012

REPORTING THE DISTRICT'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS

Fund Financial Statemenis

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the District as a
whole. Some funds are required to be established by state law and by general obligation bond covenants. In
addition, District leadership establishes many other funds to provide appropnate fiscal control and accountability
to manage money for particular purposes. Specified funds will also provide legally required reporting
demncnstrating the District’s comphiance with state and federal education funding requirements and other
legal/statutory guidelines.

Governmental funds - Most of the District’s basic services are reporled in governmental fands. These focuson
how money flows into and out of those fundsand the balances left at year-end. Specific funds are reported using
an accounting method calied modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets fhat
can readily be converied to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the
District’s general government operations and the basic services it provides, Govemmental fund information helps
determmine whether there are more-or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance
District programs. The differences of resnlts in the governmental fund financial staiements compared to those in
the government-wide financial staterents are explained in a reconciiation following each governmental fund
financial statement.

FPraprietary funds - When the District charges users for the services it provides, whether to outside customers or
to other departments within the District, these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary
funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets. The District uses internal service funds to report
activities that provide supplies and services for the District’s other programs and activities - such as the District’s
Self-Insurance Fund. The internal service fund is reported with governmental activitics in the government-wide
financial staterments.

THE DISTRICT AS TRUSTEE

Reporting the District s Fiduciary Respongibilities

The District 1s the frustee, or fiduciary, for funds held on behalf of others, such as funds for associated student
body activities, scholarships, and employee retiree benefits. The Districi’s fiduciary activities are reported in the
Staternerits of Fiduciary Net Asgets. We exclude these activitics from the Distriet’s other Gnancizl statements
because the District cannot use these assets (o finance its general operations. The District is responsibie for
ensuring that the assets reported i these funds are used for their intended purposes.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2012

THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Net Assets

The District’s niet assets were $133.5 million and $137.1 million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and
2011, respectively. Of this amount, $16.0 million and $14.2 million were unrestricted for fiscal years ending June
30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Restricted net-assets are reported separately to show legal constraints from debt
covenants and enabling legislation that limit the School Board’s ability to use those net assets for day-to-day
operations. Our analysis below focuses on the net assets (Table 1) and change in net assets (Table 2y of the

Drstrict’s governmental activities.

TABLE1
Governmental Governmental
Activities Activities
2012 2011
Current and other assets 3 89,785,515 % 83,559,297
Capital assets 153,271,695 165,552 354
Total Assets 245,057,210 249,111,651
Current liabilities 27,642 308 31,650,645
Long-term debt 83,952,956 %0,358,047
Total Liabilifies 111,595,264 112,008,692
Net assefs

Invested in capital assels,
net of related debt 94,219,122 103,628,451
Restricted 23,156,199 19,263,020
Unrestnected 16,046,625 14,211 448
Total Net Assets 5 133,461,946 § 137,162,959

The $16.6 million in unrestricted net assets of governmental activities represents the accumulated results of all
past years” operations, 1t means that if the District had to pay off all of its bills today including all of our non-
capital liabilittes {compensated absences as an example) we would need $16.0 million.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Changes in Net Assets

The results of 2011-2012 general operations for the District as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities.
Table 2 takes the information from the Statement and rearranges it slightly so total revenues and expenses for the

year.

TABLE 2
Governmental Governmental
Activifies Activities
2012 2013
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services S 1.002,192  § 960,175
Operating grants and confributions 78,624,347 75,120,938
Capital grants and contributions 235 (242,904}
General revenues:
Federal and state sources 74,167,926 T4473,737
Property taxes 532,189,694 51,125,005
(3ther general revenues 5,956,370 5,300,560
Total Revenues 211,974,764 206,746,531
Expenses
Instruction refated 166,559,971 165,718,486
Student support services 25,343,361 22,697,696
Administration 2,777,150 5,265,074
Maintenance and operations 17,093,838 15,587,640
Other 3,839,457 4,164,013
Total Expenses Z¥5.5615,777 213,432,909
Change in Net Assets 5 (3,641,013 § {6,686,378)

Governmental Activities

As reported in the Statement of Activities, the cost of all of governmental activities in 2011-2012 was 5215.6
million. However, the amount that District taxpayers ultimately financed for related activities through local taxes
was only $136.0 mitlion. This is because $79.6 million was paid by those benefiting from District programs or by
other governments and organizations who subsidized certain programs with grants and coniributions. The District
paid for the remaining "public benefit” portion of its governmental activities with $74.2 million in state and
federal funds and with other revenues, such asinterest and general entitlements.
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In Table 3, we have presented the net cost of each of the District’s Targest functions - (fotal cost less revenues
generated by the activities). As discussed above, net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the
Distriet’s taxpayers by each of these functions. Providing tis infonmation allows members of the public to
consider the cost of cach function in comparison 1o the benefits they believe are provided by that function.

IABLESZ
Net Cost Net:Cost
of Services of Services
2012 2011
Instrection and instruction related $ 107432765 % 107 482 029
Pupit services BEY96T5R 0,065,564
Gieneral admimstration 1,133,026 3,137,554
Maintenance and operations 16,452 803 15,011,895
Other 2,073,651 2,927 658
Totals §OI36989,003 5 137,594,700

GENERAL FUND HIGHEIGHTS

As the District ended the 2011-2012 fiscalyear, govermmental funds reported an ending fund balance of $58.2
mitlion. The unassigned fund balance was $34.1 million. Thisreflected a $6.3 milhon merease in the General
Fund ending balance as compared o the District’s estmated ending balance earlier in the fiscal year. This
increase was largely onc-time in nature. The District’s ongoing funding remamed relatively constant throughout
the fiscal year. The ressons for the incresse inclede:

¢ New state deferrals of state edocation funding

= Lower overall expenditures due to continued “belt tightening™ by school sites and programs
= Implementation of less expensive and more efficient operational practices

o ADA/Enroliment Increase in K-12 grades

e  Extension of state categorical Jexibility

e Decrease in projected ransportation expenditures

+«  SELPA revenue increase due 1o moreased ADA

¢ Decrease in projected SELPA expenditures

= Legal/utility expenses lower than anticipated

= Use of remaimng ARRA/EG Jobs Fund to baclkdill specific General Fund positions

Recent national and state economme conditions have created significant chalienges to the Distiiet’s fiscal and
programmatic infegrity. In 2008-09, the District experienced an approximately 20 percent reduction in ongong
state education funding. This was the result of fundimg reductions enacted by the state in 2008-09 and 2009-18.
This forced the District to implement more than $18.5 mitlion in program and. personne! reduciions since 2008-
49, The District has not recetved a cost of Hving adjustment since 2007-G8. The 2011-12 fiscal year marked the
fifth straight vear the Distnict was forced (o operate with reduced funding while operating expenses continued
merease, The Distnet’s 2011-12 average student funding was at levels lower than it was in 2006-07.
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The passage of Proposition 3¢ in November of 2012 is cause for cautious optimism. The District avoided a
possible ongoing reduction to state education funding should the initiative have failed. The passage of
Proposition 30 did not result in any additional revenus, but it did serve to stabilize education funding overall and
keep the District’s 2012-13 revenues status quo with the previous fiscal year. Finally, out-year projections
indicate that the state’s budget picture vould improve thereby improving opportunities for additional state
education funding in the future.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At Jome 30, 2012 and 2011, the District had $155.3 million and $165.6 million, net of depreciation in a broad
renge of capital assets including land, buildings, and furniture and equipment. This-amoeunt represents a net
decrease (including additions, deductions and depreciation) of just under $10.3 millien, or 6.2 percent, from last

VEAr.

TABLE 4
Governmental Govemmental
Agtivities Activities
2012 2011

Land K 17,855,144 § 17,055,144
Construction i progress 503,667 3,650,529
Buildings and improvements 261,065,637 257,061,833
Fquipment 4.548.819 4 397,666
Accumulsted depreciation (127,901,512} {116,542 81K)

Fotals & 155,271,695 % 165,552,354

This year’s additions to capital assets of $1.1 million {excluding depreciation) are primarily from the completion
of the Distriet’s remaining Measure J general obligation bond projects. Measure I was enacfed by District voters
in 2002, All proiects have been completed within the required ten-year timeline and per requirements of the bond
language. The District is awaiting final sign off from the state for these remaining projects and will conduct a
final performance and financial audit once final approval 1s recerved from the state.

10
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Long-Term Debt

At the end of this year, the District had $57.5 million in bonds outstanding. The District’s Jong-ferm debt is
surpgnarized below.

TABLE 5
Years ending 2012 2011

Certificates of participation $  2,595431 0§ 2,709,534
General obligation bonds 37,472,813 58,161,068
Bond premimmn 644,681 705,793
Accumulated vacation - net 1,974,195 1,795,225
Supplemental employees retirement plan 8,370,838 7,108 859
Capital leases 330,648 620,506
Other post croployment benefits 17,197,592 13,895.304

Totals § 88,591,198 % 84,996,289

The State limits the amount of general obligation debt school districts can issue to 2.5 percent of the assessed
value of all taxable property within a district’s legal boundaries.

Other financial obligations include compensated absences payable, certificates of participation, capital Jeases and
other long-term debt. We present more detailed information regarding the Distriot’s long-term tabilities in Note
8 ofthe financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF FISCAL YEAR 2011-2012 ARE NOTED RELOW:

California’s engoing fiscal crisis continues to create significant fiscal and programmatic challenges for school
districts across California and in the District. Fiscal Year 2011-12 marked the fifth straight year the district has
had to endure ongoing state education cuts and continued uncertainty regarding it future fimances, The effects of
the Great Recession condinued to hamper California’s economic growth and its ability to adequately fund public
education. As a result, all California school districts went through the year with great uncertainly.

Ii there was a theme for district’s cumrent fiscal situation it would be “‘cautious optimism.” Over the past five
years, the district has taken proactive steps to control deficit spending, while protecting ite core instructional
programs. This has not been an easy task. All eraployees, schools, and programs have been adversely impacted
in one measwre or another. The past five years have witnessed an unprecedented $18.5 million in ongoing
spending reductions and no increases in state funding to offset cost mcreases.

11
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The District’s mgjor accomplishments for 2011-12 include:

s Continued protection-of funding for vital student services such as libraries, athletics, after-school
enrichrment, school counselors, and home-to-school transportation

e Maintained gverall funding and staffing for core instructional and operational programs at current levels
with no budget related layoffs and/or position eliminations

e Restoration of five nstroctional days and elimination of employee furlonghs

»  An expanded educational services program that inclodes services for teacher and administrator
professional development, mtervention programs for English learners and other at-risk students, and
improving academic standards and accountability

e Prioritized critical deferred maintenance programs for facility repairs and improvements across the disizict

@ Maintained a vibrant instructional technology program, with expanded services in Aptos area schools,
while maintaining federal E-Rate funding in Watsonville area schools

¢ Engaged in improved and ongoing fiscal transparency and communication on fiscal, budget, and facility
plansing matters

The District also continued to maintain strong reserves and fund balances. This forethought on behalf of the
Board of Trustees provided increased flexibility to protect vital instructional programs in the midst of
unprecedented reductions in state education funding. So much so, that the Diistrict and its employee organizations
were able to reach agreement earlier this year o restore instructional days and employee furloughs that were
reduced two vears ago. This was not an option available to many other school districts in the region.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

In comsidering the District Budget for the 2012/2013 year, the District Board and managernent used the following
criteria:

The key assumptions in our revenue forecast are:

1. No COLA fundmg for revenue imit funding with a 22 pereent deficit factor,

2. State grants received no COLA including Special Education.

3. The sweeping of most State grants in Tier 111

4. Exbaustion of all Federal ARRA and Education Jobs Fund dollars.

5. Developer fee collections have been reduced substantially due to a decrease in development i the

surroumding area.

6. The Ddstrict’s ADA has been projected 50 less than prior year due 1o the fact Ceiba College.
Preparatory Academy (newest Charter School) continues to grow.

7. Employee benefits will be increased by 10%.

2. Step and Column increases are reflected.
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CONTACTING THE DISTRICTS FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The annual financial report is designed to provide District citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances and accountability for the public funds it administers under law. For-
additional information and/or questions about this report or other District financial activities, please contact:

Brett'W. McFadden

Chicf Business Officer

294 Green'Valley Road, Watsonville, CA 95076
Brett mcfadden@pvusd.net

Helen Bellonzi

Dhrector of Fiscal Services

294 Green Vialley Road, Watsonville, CA 95076
Helen bellonz{@pvasd.net
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012
Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Depasits and investrments § 40,856,555
Receivables 46,643,628
Prepaid expenses 1,880,552
Sioreg inventorics 404,780
Capital assets not depreciated 17,558,751
Capital-agsets, net of accumulated depreciation 137,712,944

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Interest payable
Deferred revenue
Claim habilities
Current portion of long-term obligations
Nonourrent portion of long-term obhigations
Total Linbilities

KET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets; net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Capital projects
Special revennes
Self-Insurance
Legally restricted
Unrestricted
Total Met Assels

The accompanvine notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
&

14

245,057,210

4.283,700
824,591
3,222,641
14,673,134
5,659,096
82,932,102

111,585,264

94,219,122

2,088,731
739,942
5,819,759
9415417
5,132,350
16,046,625

$ 133,461,946




PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Functions/Programs

Program Revenues

Net (Expenses)
Revennes and
Changes in’
Net Assets

Charges for
Services and

Operating
Grants and

Capital
Girants and Governmental

Governmenial Aetivities:
Instrisction
Instruction-related activities:
Supervision of Instruction
Instructional Hbrary, media, and
technology
School site administration
Pupil services:
Home-to-school fransportation
Food services
Al other pupil services
Administration:
Data processing
Al other administration
Plant services
Amncillary services
Commumity services
Interest on Iong-term obligations
Other outgo

Total Governmental Activities

Subtotal, General Revenues

{hange in Net Assets
Net Assels - Beginning
Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kxpenses Sales Contributions  Contributions Aetivities
§ 128253405 % 84,827 % 40,850,413 % 235§ {87,317,930)
20,546,169 37,327 15,377,063 - (5,138.,77%)
3,535,524 5,724 2,675,274 - {854,526
14,224 873 889 05,454 - {14,128,530)
5,558,278 62,228 2643 813 - {3,252 237
8,769,596 710,813 8,445,081 - 386,298
10,615,487 5,694 4,578,974 - (6,030,819
1,247,385 - - - {1,247 385y
1,528,765 22,706 1,621,424 - 114,359
17,095,838 5,744 637,291 - {16,457,803)
764,484 2,512 132,075 . {629,897
15,776 177 7,291 - (8.308)
3,013,305 - - - (3,013,305
45,892 63,557 1,560,194 - 1,577,859
§ 215615777 % 1,002,192 § 7624347 § 235 {135,989,00r3)
£zeneral revenues and subventions:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 48,150,195
Property iaxes, levied for debt service 3,806,248
Taxes levied for other specific purposes 7337258
Federal and State aid not restricted to specific PUrposes 74,167,926
Interest and investment camnings 146,579
Miscelianeous 5,843 761

132,347 950

(3.641.013)
137,102,959
§ 133461946




PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2012
MNon Major Total
General Cafeteria Goverpmental Goveramental
Hund Fund Funds Funeds
ASSETS
Deposils and mvestments $ 6093523 % 2,283,616 % 8299882 § 16,677,021
Receivables 41,802,548 1,569,557 2,971,863 46,343 968
Due from other fonds 925,000 - 528,359 1,453,359
Prepaid expenses 1,880,552 - - 1,880,552
Stores inventories 196,697 207,783 - 404,780
Total Assets $ 0898620 § 4060936 0§ 11,800,104 0§ 66,759,680
LIABILITIES AND
FUNB BALANCES
Liabilitias:
Accounispayable § 3016342 5§ 75,7961 % 621,387 % 3,713,490
Due to other funds 245,403 1,165,800 221,723 1,632,926
Deferred revenue 2,068,169 - 234477 3,222,641
Total Linbillties (6,249 914 1,241,561 1,077,582 8,569.057
Fund Balanees:
MNonspendable 2,197,549 207,783 - 2405332
Restricted 5,132,350 2,611,612 6,653,628 14,397,500
Comunited 3,190,803 - 4,068,894 7,259,697
Unassigned 34,128,004 - - 34,128,004
Total Fund Balances 44 648,706 2,818 305 10,722,522 58,190,623
Fatal Liabilities and
Fund Balances $ 50,898620 F 4,080,056 % 11,800,104 §  66,750.6R0

The sccompanying notes are an mtegral part of these financial statements.

1%



FPAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Net Assets are Different Because:

Total Fand Balance - Governments! Funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not roported s assets in governmental
funds.
The cost of capital assets is
Awcurnulated depreciation is
Net Capital Assets

In governmental fimds, unmatured interest on long-term debt s
recogmzed i the period when it is due. On the government-wide
statements, unmatured interest on long-term debt is recognized
when it is incurred.

An infernal service fund is used by the District's managementto charge
the costs of the self insurance programs to the individual funds. The
assets and habibities of the internal service fund are included with
governmental activities.

Long-term habilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the
funds.
Long-term ligbilities at year end consist of:
Bonds payable
Unameortized bond premium
Certificates of participation
Capital leases payable
Compensated absences (vacations)
Supplemental employee retirement plan
OFEB obligations
Total Long-Term Liabilities
Total Net Assets - Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staternents,
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F 58,198,623

$ 283,173,207
(127,801,512)

155,271,693

(824,591}

9415417

57,472,813
644,681
2595431
339 648
1,870,195
8,370,838
17,197,592

{BE,591,198)

$ 133,461,946




PAJARCO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2012

REVENUES
Revenue Hmdl sources
Federal sources
Other state sources
Other Jocal sources
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Instruction-related activities:
Supervision of mstruction
Instractional Hbrary, media and technology
Sehool site adrmnisiration
Puptl services:
Home-{o-school fransportation
Food services
Al other pupil services
Adrmpistration:
Data processing
AT other administration
Plant services
Facility acquisition and construction
Ancillary services
Community services
Oriher ouigo
Dbt service
Frincipal
Interest and other
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expendiures
ther Financing Seurces {{ses)
Transfersin
Transfers out
Net Financiog Seurces (Uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
Famnd Balance - Beglaning
Fund Batanee - Ending

MNonmajor Tatal
Ceneral Cafeteria Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
3 91453887 % - % 7704403 % 99158296
29,660,532 8,060,760 6,465,681 44,186,773
52,086,940 651,687 5,661,866 58,440,493
3308313 756,975 5,914 558 8979 847
176,560 472 9,509,422 25,746,515 211,765,409
105,202,820 - 13,246,337 118,449,257
16,752,273 - 270,782 16,123,055
2,508,950 - 380,689 3,258,639
9465918 - 3,773,681 13,238,599
5,545,583 - - 5,545,583
32,804 8,129.303 70 8,162,177
8.044 637 - 833,325 9,879,962
1,160,986 - - 1,166,986
4,379,186 211,089 300,292 4,890,561
14,162,871 2,208 2033822 16,198,991
143,973 96,487 528,913 768373
706,174 - 3,359 711,533
13,283 - 1,4G0 14,683
45 892 - - 435,892
316,675 - 1,833,286 2,149,961
87,959 - 1,869,372 20587331
169,971,078 8439177 27279328 205,689,583
6,538,354 1,070,245 {1,532,813) 6,075,826
5171020 - 753,103 1270123
(753,103 - {75%,19%)
(Z236,083) - 752,103 1,020
6,302,311 1,670,245 {779,710) 6,592,846
38,346,395 1,749,150 11,502,232 51,597,717
5 44648706 § 2819395 F 10,722,527 §F 58,190,623

The aceompanying neles are an Integral part of these financial statements.
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Total Net Change in Fund Balapees - Governmental Funds 5 6,592,846
Amounts Reported for Governmental Astivities in the Statermnent of
Activities are Different Because:

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in

govermmental funds as expenditures; however, for governmental activities,
these costs are shown in the statement of net assets and allocated over

themr estimated useful lives as annual depreciation expenses in the

staternent of activities,

This 1s the amount by which depreciation excesds capital outlays in the period:

Depreciation expense
Capital cutlayy

$(11,358,694)
1,078,035

Net Bxpense Adjustiment (10,280,659)

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, such as

compensated absences (vacations) are measured by the amounts earned

durmg the year. Inthe governmental funds, however, expenditures Tor

these items are measured by the amount of financial resourcesused

(essentially, the amounts actually paid). Vacation used was less than

the amounts earned by $174,570. (174,970)

Arnortizationol bond premium is 2 revenue source in the statement of
activities, but is notrecognized in the governmental finds. 61112

Payment of capital leases is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but it reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and
does not affect the statemerst of activities. 280,858

Payment of the principal of certificates of participation is an expenditure
m the governmental funds, but reduces the ong-term labilities in the
statement of net assets and does not affect the statement of activities. 114,103

Payment of the poncipal of general obligation bonds is an expenditure

m the governmental funds, but reduces the long-term liabilities in the
statement of net assets and does not affect the statement of activities, 1,755,000

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PAJARGC VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Interest on long-term debt is recorded as an expenditure in the funds
when it is due; however, in the statement of activities, inferest expense
is recognized as the inferest accrues, regardiess of when 1t1s due.

49,659
Acereted interest on capital appreciation bonds ismot recorded in the
governmental funds, but it mereases the bond principals in the statement
of net assets and increases mterest expense in fhe statement of activities. (1,066,745)
v > -~

Contributions to the retiree benefit trust fund are recorded as an expense
in the governmmertal fmds when paid. However, the difference between
the apnual yequired contribution and the actual contribution made, #fless,
is recorded in the statement of activities as ap expense. The actual
amount of the contribution was less than the annual required contribution. (3,302,288)
Obligations for supplemental employes retirement plan (3ERPY is not recorded

in the governmental funds, but it mcreases the long-term habilities m the

statement of net assets and increases expenses in the statement of activities.

(4,611,435)
Supplemental employes retirement plan payment is an expenditure i the
governmental funds, but i decreases the long-term Habilities in the
statemment of net asseis.and does not affect the statement of activities. 3249 456
An iternal service fund is used hy the District's management to charge the
costs of the various insuranice programs to the individoal funds.
The net revenue of the internal service fund is reported with governmenial
actrvities, 3,562,050
Change in MNet Assety of Governmental Activitioy 5 {3.641.01%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

ASSETE
Carrent Agsets
Deposits and investrnents
Receivables
Dmue from other funds
Total Current Assets

LIABILITIES
Corrent Liabilities
Accounts payable
Clairy labilities
Total Carrent Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Restricted
Total Net Asseis

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
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Govermmenial
Activities -
Internsi
Service Fund

$ 24179534
259,660
178,567

24,658 761

574,210
14,673,134

15,243,344

9415417

P 8415417




PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPRIETARY FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES

IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2012

OPERATING REVENUES
In-district contributions
Total Opersiing Bevenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Payroll costs
Supplies and materials
Claims gud inserance expense
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Transfers out
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Change.in Net Assets
Total Net Assels - Beginning
Total Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service Fund

§ 42 888,448

472,888,448

272,278
325
38,571,941

38,844 544

4,043,904

65,166
(517,020)

(451,854)

3,592,050
5,823,367

5 2415417




PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Govermmental
Activities -
Internai
Service Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from user charges i 42,408771
Cash payments to employees for services {272,278)
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services {325%
Cash payments for insurance ¢laims (37,941,955)
Net Cash provided by Operating Activities 4,194,663

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers out (517,026}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest on investments 65,166
Net'increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,747,809
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning 20,436,725
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending 3 24,175 534

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating incarme $ 4,043 904
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used} by operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Receivables (299,660}
Due from other funds (179,567}
Azerued habilities (176,912)
Claims habilities 306,898
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5 4,194,663

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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PAJARC VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012
Refiree
Benefits Scholarship Agency
Trust Trust Foads
ASSETS
Deposits and investments $ 3057093 % 2015534 3 689627
Accounts receivable - 1,000 -
Total Assets 3,057,003 2,016,554 % 689,627
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 300660 174413 § -
Due to student groups - - 689,627
Total Lizhilities 300,660 174413 & 689,627
WETE ASSETS
Restricted 2756433 1,842 141

Total Net Assets

$ 2,756,433

$ 1,842,141

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IJN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Retiree
Benefits Schetarship
ADDITIONS Trust Trast
Privaie donations 3 - ;3 92 834
District condributions 4,452 879 -
Investment income 1,104 10,577
Net decrease in fair market value of investments {23.388) -
Total Additions 4,470,595 103411
BEDUCTIONS
Benefit paymenis 3,961.470 -
Scholarships awarded - 179,988
Total Deductions 3,961,476 179,588
Change in Net Asgets : 508,125 (76,577}
Net Assets - Beginning 2,247 308 1,918,718
Net Assets - Ending 3 2,156,433 3 1,842,141

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Financial Reporting Entity

The Pajaro Valley Unified School District was unified in 1964 under the laws of the State of California. The
District operates under a loeally elected seven-member Board form of government and provides educational
services to grades K - 12 as mandated by the State and/or Federal agencies. The District operates sixiecen
elementary, six middie, three high school, one community day school, one continuation high school, an adult
education school, twelve childeare centers, & migrant center and five charter schools.

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that are
included to ensure the financial statements are not migleading. The primary government of the District consists of
all funds, departments, boards, and agencies that are not legally separate from the District. For Pajaro Vailey
Unified School District, this includes general operations, food service, and student related activities of the
District.

Component Units — Charter Schools

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable. Component
units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the District in that the District approves their
budget, the issuance of their debt or the Jevying of theiriaxes. Inaddition, component units are other lsgaily
separate organizations for which the District is not financially accountable but the nature and significance of the
organization’s relationship with the District is sueh'that-exclusion would cause the District’s financial staternents
to be misleading or mcompiete. For financial reporting purposes, the component units have a2 financial and
operational relationship which meets the reporting entity definition criteria of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and thus are included in the financial
statements of the District. The component units, although legaily separate entities, are reported in the financial
statements using the blended presentation method as if they were part of the District's operations because the
governing board of the component units is essentizlly the same as the governing board of the Pistrict and because
their purpose is to operate charter schools authorized by the Disirict.

The District has approved Charters for Academic Vocational, Alianza Elemeniary, Linscott Elementary,
Watsonville School of Aris and Pacific Coast Charter School pursuant to Bducation Code Section 47605, All
Charter Schools are operated by the District and their financial activities are accounted for in the charter school
special revenue fund.

Joint Powers Agepcies and Public Entity Risk Posls The Disirict 15 associated with Schools Association For
Excess Risk (SAFER), School Alliance for Workers” Compensation Excess 1I (SAWCXIE), and public entity risk
pools Benefit Liability Excess Fund (Bel.iEF) that provides msurance coverage to'the District: These
organizaiions do not meel the criteria for inelusion as component units of the District, The District also
participates in the Henry J. Mello Center for the Performing Arts Administration Agency {the JPA), through a
joint powers agresment with the City of Watsonville and the District. Each member’s board appoints three
directors. The JPA was established for the purpose of administering all functions necessary {or the operation and
maintenance of the Performing Aris Center {the Centery. On August 2, 1994, the JPA entered info a management,
operation and maintenance agreement with the Pajare Valley Performing Aris Association {PYPAA}, a tax
exempt, nonprofit public benefit corporation. The agreement was for a period of ten years and has been reviewed
and continued annually, whereby; PVPAA shall operate the Center and perform all services reasonably required
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOQL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 36, 2012

m connection with the management and operation of the Center. PVPAA shall pay costs and operating expenses
of every kind pertaining to the Center’s operation by PVPAA.

Basis of Presentation ~ Fund Accounting

‘The accounting system is organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is defined as a fiscal and aceounting
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities
or atfaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. The District's
funds are grouped into three broad fund categories: govemnmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds Governmental funds are those through which most governmental fungtions typically are
financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial Tesonrces.
Expendable assets are assigned to the various govermmental funds according to the purposes.dor which they may
or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference
between governmential fund assets and Habilities is reported as fund balance. The following ate the District's
major and non-maior governmental funds:

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund The General Fund 1s the chief operating fund for all districts. Jt is used to aceount for the ordinary
operations of the District, All transactions except those accounted for in another fund are accounted for in this
fund.

Cafeteria Fund The Cafeteria Fund is used to account separately for federal, State, and local resources 1o
operate the food service program (Education Code sections 38090-38093) and is used only for those
expenditures authorized by the governing board as necessary for the operation of the District's food service
program (Education Code Sectiens 38091 and 38100).

Nop-Major Governmental Fuads

Speciat Revenue Funds The Special Revenue funds are established to account for the proceeds from specific
revenue sources (other than trusts, major capital projects, or debt service) that are restricted or committed {o the
financing of particular activilies and that compose a substantial portion of the inflows of the fund. Additional
resources that are restricted, commitied, or assigned to the purpose of the fund may alse be reported in the fund.

Charter Schools Fund This fund may be used by authorizing Districts to account separately for the
activities of District-operated charter schools that woeuld otherwise be reporied in the authorizing District’s
General Fund.

Adult Education Fund The Adult Education Fund is used to account separately for federal, State, and
local resources committed for adult education programs and is to be expended for adult education DUrposes
only.

Child Development Fund The Child Development Fund is used to account sepasately for federal, State,

and local revenues o operate child development programs and is to be used only for expenditures for the
operation of chnld development programs.

27



PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

Deferred Maintenance Fund The Deferred Maintenance Fund is used to account separately for
resources committed for deferred maintenance purposes.

Trebhi Service Funds The Debt Service funds are used to account for the accumulation of restricted, comunitted,
or assigned resources for and the payment of principal and interest on general long-term obligations.

Bond Interest and Redemption Fund The Bond Interest and Redemption Fund is used for the repayment of
bonds issued for a District (Education Code sections 15125-15262).

Capital Project Funds The Capital Project: funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to the acquisition or constriction of capital Tacilities and other major capital
assets {other than those financed by proprictary funds and trust funds).

Building Fund The Building Fund exists primarily to account separately for proceeds from the sale of bonds
(Education Code Section 15146) and may not be used for any purposes other than those for which the bonds
were issued.

Capital Facilities Funrd The Capital Facilities Fund is used primarily to account separately for monies
received from fees levied on developers or other agencies as a condition of approving a development
(Education Code sections 17620-17626. Expenditures are testricted 1o the purposes specified in Government
Code sections 65970-65981 or to theitems specified in agreements with the developer (Government Code
Section 66006).

County Schoo! Facilitics Fund The County Schooil Facilities Fund 1s established pursuant to Education
Code Section 17070.43 to receive apportionments from the 1998 State School Facilities Fund (Proposition
1A), the 2002 State School Facilities Fund {Proposition 47), or the 2004 State School Facilities Fund
{(Proposition 55} authorized by the State Allocation Board for new school facility construction, modermization
projects, and facility hardship gramts, as provided in the Lerey F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998
(FEducarion Code Section. 17070 et seq.}.

Proprietary Funds Proprictary fund reporting focuses on the determination of dperating income, changes in net
assets, financial position, and cash flows. Proprietary funds are classified as enterprise or internal service. The
District has only one internal service fund which 1s Self-Insurance fund.

Seif-Fnsurance Fund Self-Insurance funds may be used to acoount for any activity for which goods or
services are provided to other funds of the District in retwrn for a fee fo cover the cost of operations. The
District operates workers” compensations, health, dental and vision programs that are accounted for in the
Self-Insurance fund.

Fiduciary Funds Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in frustee or agent capacity for others that
cannot be used 1o support the Digtrict's own programs. The fiduciary fund category 1s split into four
classifications: pension trust funds, investment trust funds, private-purpose trust funds, and agency funds. The
keyv distinction between trust and agency funds is that trust funds ave subject to a trust agreement that affects the
degree of management involvement and the length of time that the resources are held.



PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Trust fimds are used to account for the assets held by the District under a trust agreement for individuals, private
organizations, or other governments and are therefore, not available to support the District's own programs. The
District's trust funds are Retiree Benefits Trust and Private Purpose Scholarship Trust. Agency funds are
custodial in nature (assets equal Habilities) and do not involve measurement of resulis of operafions. Such funds
have no equity accounts since all assets are due to individuals or entities at some future fime. The District's
agency fund accounts for student body activities (ASB).

Basis of Accounting - Measorement Focus

Government-Wide Financial Statements The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the acerual basis of accounting. This is the same approach used in
the preparation of the proprietary fund financial statements, but differs from the manner in which govermmental
fund financial statements are prepared.

The government-wide statement of activities presents a2 comparison between expenses, both direct and ndirect,
and program-revenues for cach governmenta! function and excludes hiduciary activity, Direct expenses are those
that are specifically associated with a service, program, or department and are therefore, clearly identifiable to a
particular function. The District does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the Statement-of Activities,
except for depreciation. Program revenues include charges paid by the reciptents of the goods orservices offered
by the programs and grants and contributions that are restricted to meceting the operational or capital requirements
of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues.
The comparison of pregram revenues and expenses identifies the extent to which cach program or business
segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the District. Eliminations have been made o
minimize the double counting of miemal activities,

Net assets should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally imposed
by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments
orimposed by law through censtitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The net assets restricted for ofher
activities result from special revenue funds and the restrictions on their net asset use.

Fund Financial Statements Fund firancial statements report detailed information about the District. The focus
of govemnmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on major funds rather thap reporting funds by type.
Tach major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single
colurmm.

Governmental Fupds All governmental funds are accounted for using the flow of current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrval basis of accounting. With this measurement focus,
only current assets and-current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance reports on the sources (revenues and other financing
sources) and uses {expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This approach
differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide fimancial staterments are
prepared. Governmental fand financial statements, therefore, nclude reconciliations with brief explanations
to better identify the relationship between the government-wide financial statements, prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, and the governmental fund
financial statements, prepared using the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Proprietary Funds Proprietary funds are accounted for using the flow of economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. All assets and all Habilities associated with the operation of this
fund are included in the statement of net assets. The statement of changes in fund net assets presents
increases {revenues) and decreases {expenses) in nef total assets. The statement of cash flows provides
information about how the District finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary fund.

Fiduelary Funds Fiduciary funds are accounted for using the flow of economic resources measurement
focus and the acerual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements because they do not represent resources.of the District.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-Exchange Tragsactions Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in
which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange
takes place. On a modified acerual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are
measurable and become available. Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal
year or are expecied o be collected soon enough thereafter, to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year.
Generally, available is defined as collectible within 60 days. However, to achieve comparability of reporting
among California districis and 5o as not to distort normal revenue patierns, with specific respect 1o reipburserment
grants and comrections to State-aid apportiomments, the California Department of Education has defined available
for districts as-collectible within one vear. The following revemie sources are considered to be both measurable
and available at fiscal year-end: State apportiomments, interest, certain grants, and other local sources,

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in retum,
include property taxes, certain grants, entitlements, and donations. Revenue from property taxes is recognized in
the fiscal vear in which the taxes are received. Revenue from certain grants, entitlements, and donations is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements
inciude time and purpose restrictions. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from nen-exchange transactions must
also be available before it can be recognized.

Beferred Revernne Deferred revente arises when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and
*available” criteria for recognition in the current period or when resources are received by the District prior to the
incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criferia are met, or
when the District has a Iegal claim to the resources, the lability for deferred revenue 18 removed from the balance
sheet and revenue {8 recognized.

Certain grants received before the eligibility requirements are met are recorded as deferred revenue. On the
governmental fund financizl staiements, receivables that will not be collected within the available period are also
recorded as deferred revenue.

Expenses/Expeonditures On the acerual bagis of accounting, cxpenses are recognized at the time they are
incurred. The measorement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net fmancial resources
{expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized 1 the accounting period in whicl: the
related fund lability 1s incurred, if measurable, and typically paid within 90 days. Principal end interest on long-
term obligations, which has not matured, are recognized when paid mn the governmental funds as expenditures.
Alloeations of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds but are
recogmzedin the government-wide siatements.
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Cask and Cash Equivalents

The Disfrict's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Cash equivalents also
include cash with county treasury balances for purposes of the statement of cash flows.

Investments

Investments held at June 30, 2012, with original maturities greater than one year are stated af fair value, Fair
value is estirnated based on quoted roarket prices at vear-end. All investments not réquired to be reported at fair
value are stated at cost or amortized cost. Fair values of investments in County and State investment pools are
determsined by the program sponsor.

Prepaid Expenditures

Prepaid expenditures {expenses) represent amouents paid in advance of receivin g goods:or services, The District
has the option of reporting an expenditure in governmental funds for prepaid jtems either when purchased or
during the benefiting period. The District has chosen to report the expenditures/expenses over the bencfiting
periad.

Stores [nventories

Inventories consist of expendable food and supplies held for consumption. Fnventories are siated at cost, on the
first-in, first-out basis. The costs of inventory items are recorded as cxpenditures in the governmental type funds
and expenses in the proprietary type funds when ased.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund are determined by its
measurement focus. Capital assels are long-lived assets of the District. The District maintains a capitalization
threshold of $25,000 with the exception to federally funded equipment which has 2 threshold.of $2,000. The
District does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintensnce and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not capitalized, but arc
expensed as incumed.

When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and capitalized in the
government-wide statement of net assets. The valuation basis for capital assets is historical cost, or where
historical cost 1s notavailable, estimated historical cost based on replacement cost.

Depreciation 15 compuled using the straight-line method. Fstimated useful lives of the various classes of
depreciable capital assets are as follows: buildings, 20 1o 50 years; improvements, § to 50 years; equipment, 2 t¢
15 years.
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Interfond Balances

Own fumd financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term mterfund loans are classified as
“tnterfund receivables/payables”. These amounts are eliminated in the governmental colunm of the statemnent of
net assels.

Compeniated Absences

Compensaied absences are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned. The entire compensated absence
tiability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. For governmental funds, the current portion of
unpaid compensated absences is recognized upon the occurrence of relevant evenis such as emplovee resignations
and retirements that coenr-prior to year end that have not vet been paid with expendable availdble: financial
resources. “These amounts are reported in the fund from which the employees who have accumulated Teave are
paid.

Sick leave is-accumulated without Himit for each employee at the rate of one day for each month worked. Leave
with pay is provided when emyplovees are absent for health reasons; however, the emplovees do not gain 2 vested
right to accumulated sick leave. Employees are never paid for any sick leave balance at termination of
employment or any other time. Therefore, the value of accumulated sick leave is not recognized as 2 Hability in
the District's fimancial staiements. However, credit Tor vnused sick leave is applicable to all classified and
certificated school members who retire after January 1, 1999, Atvetivement; each member will receive serviae
credit for sach day of unused sick leave per STRE and PERS regulations.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the govemment-wide and proprietary
fundd financial statements. In general, governmental fimd payabies and acerued liabilities that, once incarred, are
paid in a timely manner and in full from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the
governmental funds.

However, claims and judgments, compensated absences, special termination benefits, and contracteally required
pension contributions that will be paid from governmental funds are reporied as a liability m the governmental
fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year. Bonds, capital
leagses, and other Jong-term obligations are recognized as liabilities in the governmental fund financial stalements
when due.

Dreferved Issuance Costs, Premiums and Discounts
In the government-wide {inancial statements, long-term-debt obligations and other long-term obligations are

reported as habilities in the applicable governmental activities. Bond premiumns and discounts, as well as issuance
casts, are deferred and arnortized over the life of the bonds using the straight line method.
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Fand Balanees - Governmental Funds
As of June 30, 2012, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form or because they are
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional pravisions ot enzbling
iegislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or
regulations of other governments.

Committed - amounts that can be used only for spectfic purposes determined by a formal action of the governing
board. The governing board is the highest level of decision-making authority for the District. Commitments may
be established, modified, or rescinded only through resolutions or other action as approved by the governin z
board.

Unassigned - all other spendable amounts.
Spending Order Policy

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available,
the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an-expenditure is incurred for which
commitied, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the District considers amounts to have been spent
first out of commitied funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned fimds, as needed, unless the gOVering
board has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

Met Assets

et assets represent the difference between assets and Habilities. Net agsets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any
borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on theiruse either through the enabling legisiation adopted by the
Dristrict or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other
governments. The Districtfirst applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net assets are availahle.

Gperating Revenues and Expenyes
Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the propristary

funds. For the District, these revenues are interfund insurance premiwm. Operaling expenses are necessary costs
meurred fo provide the good or service that are the primary activity of the fund.
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Enterfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the sefler funds and as expenditures/expenses in
the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are
reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfersiare reported as other fimancing sources/uses in governmentat
funds and afier non-operating revenues/expenses in proprietary funds. Repayments from funds responsible for
patticular expenditures/expenses to the funds that instially paid for them are not presented in the financial
staternents. Interfund transfers are eliminated in the gevernmental columms of the stalement of activities.

Estimateg

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in'the
Uhnited States of America Teguires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Budgetary Dala

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the California Education Code and requires the governing
board to hold a public hearing and adopt an operating budget no later than July 1 * of each year. The District
governing board satisfied these requirements. The adopted budget is subject to amendment throughout the year to
give copsideration to unanticipated revenue and expenditures primarily resulting from events unknown at the time
of budget adoption with the legal restriction that expenditures cannot exceed appropriations by major object
account,

The amonnts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts when the
original appropriations wers adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts 1n the budgetary
staterments tefiect the arnounts after all budget amendments have been accounted for. For budgel purposes on-
behalf payments have not been included as revenue and expenditures as required under generally accepted
accounting prinsiples.

Praperty Tax

Secured property taxes altach as an enforceable Hen on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable in two
installments on November 1 and February 1 and become delinguent on December 1) and April 10, respeciively.
Unsecured property taxes are payable i one installment on or before Auvgust 31. The County of Santa Cruz bills
and collects the taxes on behalf of the District. Local property tax revehues are recorded when received.

New Accouwting Proncuncements

In Novemiber 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus-an amendment
of GASE Statements No. 14 and No. 34. The objective of this Statement 1s to 1improve financial reporting for a
governrnental financial reporting entity. The requirements of Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity,
and the related financial reporting requirernents of Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and
Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments, were amended to betier meet user
needs and to address reporting entity issues that have arisen since the issuance of those Statements.
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This Statement modifies certain requirements for inclusion of component units in the financial reporfing entity.
For organizations that previously were required to be included as component units by meeting the fiscal
dependency criterion, a financial benefit or burden relationship also would need to be pregent between the primary
govemnment and that organization for it to be included in the reporting entity as 3 component wnit. Further, for
organizations that do not meet the financial accountability criteria for inclusion as component units but that,
nevertheless, should be included because the primary government's management determines that it would be
misleading to exclude them, this Staternert <larifies the manner in which that determination should be made and
the types of relationships that generally should be considered in making the determination.

This Statement also amends the criteria for reporting component units as if they were part of the primary
government (that is, blending) in certain circumstances. F. of commpenent units that currently are blended based on
the "substantively the same governing body" criterion, it additionally reguires that (1} the primary government
and the component unit have & financial benefit or burden relationship.or (2) management {below the level of the
clected officials) of the primary government have operational responsibility (as defined in paragraph &a) for the
activities of the component unit. New critera also are added Torequire blending of component units whose total
debt outstanding is expected to be repaid entirely or almost entirely with resources of the PHimary government.
The blending provisions are amended to clarify that funds of a blended component unit have the same financial
reporting requirements as a fund of the primary government. Lastly, additional reporting guidance is provided for
biending a component unit if the primary government is z business-type activity that uses a single column
presentation for financial reporting,

This Statement also clarifies the reporting of equity interests in legally separate organizations. it requires a
primaty government Lo report its equity interest in a component unit as an asset. The provisions of this Statement
are-eifective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2012. Early implementation is
encouraged,

In june 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Ouiflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This Statement provides financial reporting guidance for
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Concepts Statement No. 4, Elements of
Financial Statements, introduced and defined those elements 2s a consumption of net assets by the government
that is applicable to a future reporting period, and an acquisition of net assets by the government that is applicable
to a future reporting period, respectively. Previous financial reporting standards do not inchide guidance for
reporting those financial statement elements, which are distinct from assets and labilities.

Concepts Statement No. 4 also identifies net position as the residual of a1} other elements presented in a statement
of financial position. This Statement amends the net asset reporting requirements in Statement No. 34, Basie
Fingneial Siatements—and Managemen!’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, and other
pronouncements by mncorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources into the
defimtions of the required comnponents of the residual measure and by renaming that measure as net posttion,
rather than net assets.

The provisions of this Btatement are effective for financial staternents for periods beginning afier
December 15, 2011, Earlier implementation is encouraged.
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In March 2012, the GASR issued Statement No. 65, Jtems Previously Reporied as Assets and Liabilities. This
Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of
resources or deferred inflows of Tesources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and
recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certam items that were previously reported as assels
and hablities.

Concepts Statement No. 4, Elements of Financial Statements, introduced and defined the elements included in
financial statements, including deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. In addition,
Concepts Statement No. 4 provides that reporting a deferred outflow of resources or a deferred inflow of
resources showuld be fimited to those instances identified by the Board in authoritative pronouncements that are
established after applicable due process. Prior to the issuance of this Stdternent, only two such pronouncements
have been issued. Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, requires the
reporting of a deferred ouiflow of resources or a deferred inflow of resources for the changes in fair valze of
hedging derivative instruments, and Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service
Concession Arrangements, requires a deferred inflow of resources to be reported by a transferor government in a
qualifying service concession arrangement. This Statement amends the financial statement element classification
of certain items previously reported as assets and lizbilities to be consistent with the definitions in Concepts
Statement No. 4.

This Statement also provides other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the financial statement
elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, such as changes in the deterrmuination
of the major fund calculations and limiting the use of the term deferred in financial statement presentations.

The provisions-of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after
December 15, 2012, Farlier implementation is encouraged.

In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections-—2012——an amendment of GASE
Statements No. 10 and Ne. 62. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and fmancial reporting
for a governmental financial reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of
two pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and
No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989
FASE and AICPA Proncuncemenis,

This Statement amends Statement No. 10, decounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related
Insurance Issues, by removing the provision that limits fund-based reporting of an entity’s risk financing
activities to the General Fund and the internal service fund type. As aresult, governments should base their
decisions about fund type classification on the nature of the activity to be reported, as required in Statemenis No.
54 and Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements——and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State
and Loca! Governments.

This Statement also amends Staternent No. 62 by modifving the specific guidance on accounting for (1) operating
lease payments that vary from a straight-line basis, (2) the difference between the Initial investment (purchase
price) and the principal amount of a purchased loan or group of loans, and (3) servicing fees refated to mortgage
loans that are sold when the stated service fee rate differs significantly from a current (normal} servicing fee rate.
These changes clarify how to apply Statement No. 13, Accounting for Operating Leases with Scheduled Rent
Increases, and result in guidance that is consistent with the requirements in Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges
of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues, vespectively.
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The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after
December 15, 2012. Earlier implementation is encouraged.

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—sn
amendment of Statement No. 27. The primary objective of this Statement is to mmprove accounting and financial
reporting by state and local governments for pensions. i also fmproves information provided by State and Jocal
governmental employers about financial support for pensions that is provided by other entities. This Statement
results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existin g standards of accounting and financial
reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of
accountability and inter-period equity, and creating additional transparency.

This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Governmental Employers, as well as the requirernents of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to
pensions that are provided through pension plans administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements (hereaficr
jomtly referred to as trusts) that meet certain criteria. The requirements of Statements No. 27 and No. 50 remain
applicable for pensions that are not covered by the scope of this Statement.

Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, revises existing stanidards of financial reporting for
most pension plans. This Statement and Statement No. 67 establish a definition of a pension plan that reflects the
primary activities associated with the pension arrangement - determining pensions, accumulating and managing
assets dedicated for pensions, and paying benefits to plan members as they come due,

The scope of this Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for pensions that are provided to the
employees of State and local govermmental employers through pension plans that are administered through tristy
that have the following characteristics:

Contributions from employers and nonemployer contributing entities {o the pension plan and earnings on
those centributions. are irrevocabie.

Pension plan assets are dedicated to providing pensions to plan members in accordance with the henefit terins,
Pension plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, nonemployer contributing entities,
and the pension plan administrator. If the plan is a defined benefit pension plan, plan assets also are legally
protected from creditors of the plan members.
This Staternent establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, and
deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For defined benefit pensions, this Statement identifies
the methods and assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit

payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service,

This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014, Earlier implementation is encouraged.
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MOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Semmary of Depesits and Investments

Deposits and fnrvestments as of June 30, 2612, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

Governmenta! funds $ 16,677,021
Proprietry fund 24,179,534
Fiduciary funds 5,762,274

Total Deposits and Investinenis $ 46,618,879

Dieposits and investments as of Juue 30, 2012, consist of the following:

Cash on hand and in banks 3 2,679,753
Cash in revolving 120,000
Imvestments 42 819.074

Total Deposits and Investments $ 46,618.829

Pglicies and Praetices

The District ig authorived under California Government Code to make divect investments in local agency bonds,
notes, or warrants within the State; TLS. Tréasury melruments; registered Btate warranis or freasury notes;
securities ofthe U.S. Government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial paper; certificates of deposit
placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements;
medium term corporate notes; shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies,
certificates of participation, obligations with first prionity seourity; and collateralized mortgage obligations.

Investrment in County Trensury - The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external
mvestment pool as the District is required to deposit all receipts and collections of monies with their County
Treasurer { Educatioh Code Scetion 41001}, The fair value of the District's investment in the poo! is teporied in
the accounting financial staternents at amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided
by the County Treagurer for the entire portfolio {in relation to the ameoriized cost of that portfolic). The balance
available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is
recorded on the amortized cost basis.
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Geperal Anthorizations

Limitations as they relate to interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk are indicated in the schedules below:

Maxinmm Muaximum Maxirmum
Anthorized Remaining Percentage Investment
Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio i One Isseer

Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
Repistered State Bonds, Notes, Warrants & years None MNone
1.8, Treasury Cbligations 5 years None None
U.5. Agency Securitics : 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptance 120 days 4% _ 30%
Commercial Paper 276 days 25% 0%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% Mone
Repurchase Agreements ! year None Nene
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base None
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds MNiA 206% 16%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pocled Investment Funds N/a Mone Nene
Local Agency Investment Fund {(LAIF) RiA None None
Joimg Powers Authority Pools N/A MNons MNeone

© Credit Bisk

Credit 1isk is the risk that an issuer of aninvestment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The
District's investments in the U.S. Government bonds are not required to be rated, nor have they been rated as of
June 30, 2612, Pooled mvestments, such as the county pool and mutual funds were not rated.

Enterest Rate Risk
Interest rafe risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sengitivity of its fair value to

changes m market mierest rates. The District manages its exposure (o interest rate risk by investing m the county
pool.
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Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District's investments to market interest rate fluctuation
is provided by the following schedule that shows the distribution of the District’s investment by maturity:

Feaar Maturity
Investment Type Cost Value in Years
U.8. Government Bonds % 18908 § 27,454 4.88
Wiutuat Funds 2,018,083 2,109,208 0.00
County Pool 41,689,966 - 41,667,787 1.09
Total 3 43,728,949 % 43 804 449

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposite

This ig the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not be returned {o it. The District
does not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits. However, the California Government Code requires
that a financial institution secure deposits made by State or local governmental units by pledging securities in an
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so watved by the govermmental
wnit). The market value of the pledged securitics in the collateral pool must equal at feast 110 percent of the total
amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial mmstiubions to secure public
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent.of the secured public deposits
and letters of eredit issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco having a value of 105 percent of the
secured deposits. As of Tune 30, 2012, the Distriet's bank balance of $803,234 wav exposed to custodial credit
risk because it was uninsured but collateralized with securities held by the pisdging financial institution's trust
department ar agent, but not in the name of the District.

Custedial Credit Risk ~ Investinenis

Thiz is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the value
of itz investments or collateral securities that are in-possession of an outside party. The Distriet is exposed to
custodial credit risk related to investiments in the Santa Cruz County poo! and the District’s investments in mutual
funds related to the trust fund of the retivee benefits because these investments are held by the counter party’s
narme and not registered in the name of the Dhstrict.
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NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2012, consisted of intergovernmental grants, entitlemnents, interest and other local sources,

Al receivables are considered collectible in full

Nop-Major
Generasl Cafeteria  Governmental Proprietary  Fiduciary
Fund Fund Funds Total FPund Fupds
Federal Government
Categorical aid § 9705097  $1454,932 % 310,193 $11470222 § - % -
State Government
Apportionment 25,369,671 - 2,230,525 27:600,196 - -
Categorical aid 5,051,260 114,625 192,097 5,357,982 - .
Lottery 1,196,380 - 112,979 [,309.369 - -
Other Local Sources 486,130 - 126,069 606,199 299,660 1,066
Total 541,802,548  §$1.569,557 % 2,971,863 % 46,343,968 5299660 % 1,000
NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, was as foliows:
Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deductions June 30, 2012
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land S 17,055,144 % - 3 - 5 17,055 144
Construction in Progress 3,650,529 333,164 3,480,086 503,607
Total Capital Assets Not
Being Depreciated 20,705,673 333,164 3,480,086 17,558,751
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements 257,091,833 3,973,804 “ 261,065,637
Furnitare and Equipment 4,297 666 251,153 - 4,548,819
Total Capital Assets
Being Depreciated 261,389,499 4,224 8957 - 265,614,456
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and Improvements 113,311,416 11,161,438 - 124,473 854
Furniture and Equipment 3,231,402 197,256 - 3428 658
Total Accumulated Depreciation 116,542 818 11,358,694 - 127901512
Capital Assets Being Depreciated,
WNet 144 846,681 (7,133,737) - 137,712,944
Governrental Activities Capital
Assets, Net S 165552354 § (5,800,573} $ 3,480,086 8§ 155271695
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Depreciation expense was charged as a divect expense to govermmental fomctions as follows:

Governmential Activities
Instruction
Supervision of Instruction
instractional Library and Media
School Site Admimisiration
Home to School Transpiration
Food Services
Al Other Puapil Services
Ancillary Services
Community Services
Al General Administration
Data Processing Services
Plant Services

$ 6,618,103
1,102,567
189,726
763,348
319,738
470,602
569,853
41,024
847
281,972
66,938
33,976

Total Depreciation Expernse

$ 11.358,694

NOTE 5~ INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund Receivables/Payabies (Buelo/Bue From)

Interfund receivables and payable balances arise from interfund transactions and ave recorded by all funds
affected in the period which transactions are executed. Interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30,
2012, between major and non-major governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds are as follows:

e From
Men-Major
General Governmental  Proprietary
Due To Fund Funds Fund Total
General Fund % - % 2454063 % - § 245,403
Cafeteria Fund 925000 210,261 34,539 1,165,800
Non-WMajor Governmmental Funds - 72,695 148,028 221,723
Total $ 925000 § 528359 § 179567 § 1.632.976
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Operating Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2012, consisted of the following:

Transfer In

Non-Major
General Covernrpental
Transfer Out Fund  Funds Total
General Fund 3 -~ % 753,163 % 753,103
Internal Service Fund 517,020 - 517,020
Total 5 317,026 % 753,108 % 1,276,123
The General Fund transferred to the Charter Schools Fund for Supplemental School
Counseling Programs. $ 419,354
The General Fund transferred to the Adult Education Fund for centributions. 331,795
The General Fund transferred to the Child Development Fund
for sostremibursements. 1,054
The Self Insurance Fund trangferred to the General Fund for cost refrnbursement. 517,020
Total 3 1,270,123
NOTE 6 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Accounts payable at June 30, 2012, consisted of the following:
Hon-iagjor
(ieneral Cafeteria  Governmental Proprietary  Fiduciary
Fund Fund Funds Total Fund  Funds
Vendor payables $2,021.942 % 47,141 % 215249 § 2284332 % 570210 & 475,073
State apportionment - - - - - -
Salaries and benefits 994 400 28,620 406,138 1,429 158 - -
Total 3 3,0i6342 § 73,761 8 621,387 § 3713400 § 570210 3475073
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MOTE 7 - DEFERRED REVENUE

Dieferred revenue at June 30, 2012, consists of the following:

Non-Major
General GGovernmental
Funid Funds Total
Federal financial assistance $ 1,379,915 § 697 % 1,371,612
State categorical aid 106,425 23630 124,655
Oiher local 1,516,829 216,145 1,726,974
Total B 2988169 0§ 234,477 % 3,222,641
NOTE § - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Sommary
The changes in the District's long-term obligations during the year consisted of the following:
Balance Accretion/ Balance Due ia
June 30, 2011 Additions Deductions  June 30, 2012 One Year
General obligation bonds $58,161,068 § 1,066,745 & 1,755,000 § 57.472,813 & 1,970,000
Bond prerminm 705,793 - 61,112 644,681 61,112
Centificates of participation 2,709,534 - 114,103 2,505 431 121,107
Accumulated vacation - net 1,785,225 174,970 - 1,970,195 -
Capiial leases 623,506 - 280,858 339,648 168,025
Other postemnployement benefits 13,885,304 7,795,167 4,492 879 17,197 562 -
Supplemental einpleyees
retirement benefiis 7,108,659 4,611,435 3,349,456 8,370 838 3,338,852
Todal 384006289 §12,648317 SFI1C0533408 §F HB,591,198  § 5,659,096

Payments on the general obligation bonds are made by the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund with local
revenues. Payments on Certificate of Participation and the capital i¢ases are paid by the General Fund, the
Charter School Fund and the Adult Education Fund. The energy service contract payments are made by the
general fand, Accurnulated vacation and supplemental employees retirement benefits are paid by the funds for

which the emplaoyees worked.
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Bonded Debt

The outstanding general obligation bonded debt is as follows:

Bonds Bondg
issue platurity Interest Uriginal Outstanding Acereted/ Outstanding
Date Date Rate Issue June 30, 2011 Issued Redeemed  June 30, 2012
2005 2023 3.00%-531%  § 40,215,000 $34.650000 % - B L.6MG,000 33,040,000
2005 2036 3.00%-531% 18,254,288 23,511,068 1,066,745 145.000 24:432.813

$ 58,161,068 § 1,066,745 $1,755,000 $57.472813
Debt Service Reguirements to Maturity
The bonds mature through 2030 as follows:
Interest to
Fiscal Year Principal Matvrity Total
2613 5 1,970,000 % 1,822,251 3,792,251
2014 2,200,000 1,720;626 3,820,676
2015 2,445 080 1,607,344 4,052,244
2016 2,710,000 1,480,000 4,190,000
2617 2,920,000 1,333,763 4,323,763
2018-2022 18,713,064 4203338 23.95%6 402
2023-2027 13,104,117 15,028 483 28,132,600
2028-2G30 5,757,106 13,567,804 19,325 000
Sub Total 50,889,287 § 40,763,699 91,652 986
Accrstion to date 6,583,526
Tuotal general obligation bonds S 57472813

Certificates of Participation

b April 5, 20035, the Pajaro Valiey Unified School District issued certificates of participation in the amount of
$1,645,000 to finance construction related to the Adult Education Center. At June 30, 20172, the principal balance
outstanding was $1,275,000. During the current year the District redeerned 65,000 of the outstanding certificates.

In January 10, Z010, the Pajaro Valley Unified School District issued certificates of participation in the amount of
$1,415,000 to redeem existing cextificates of participation. Interest on this certificate of participation is set at
1.010%. At June 30, 2012 the principal balance outstanding was $1,320,431. Principal and interest payments are
due twice a year starting July 15, 2010 over the next twenty years and are expected fo be complete redeemed by
January 15, Z030. During the current year the District redeerned $49,103 of the outstanding certificates.
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The certificates mature through 2030 as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 121,107 b3 105,122 kS 226,229
2014 123,193 100,543 223,736
2015 130,364 95,603 225,967
2016 137,623 90,244 227 867
it 129,974 84,692 224 666
2018-2022 793,642 320,525 1,124,167
20232027 858,613 147,092 1,065,705
2028-2030 280,815 20,916 311,825
Total 3 2,595431 & 974,731 kS 3,570,162

Accumulated Unpaid Employee Vacation

The long-term portion of accumulated vnpaid employee vacation for the District at June 30, 2012, amounted to

31,970,195,

Capital Leases

The Dhstrict’s habilities on lease agreements with opttons (o puréchase are summarized below:

Porter Busand Cafeteria

Building SIS System Portables Total
Balance, July 1, 2011 $ 369470 3 297113 5 14,323 § 680,006
Payments 92368 204677 14,323 311,368
Balance, July 1, 2012 5 277,102 % 92,436 § - % 369,538

The capital leases have minimum lease payments as follows:
Year Ending Lease
Fune 30, Payment

2013 $ 184 807
2014 02,368
2015 592,368
Tatal 369 578
Less: Amount Representing Interest 28,890

Present Value of Mmimnm Lease Payments
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Supplemental Employees Retirement Plan (SERP)
The cutstanding balances for the Supplemental Employee Retitement Plans as of Jone 36, 2012, are as follows:

Year Ending

Jume 30, 2008 Plan 2010 Plan 20171 Plan 2012 Plan Total
2013 $ 1,242,832 5 82341 § 1,091392 h 822 287 % 3,338,852
2074 - 82,341 1,091,392 Q22 287 2,086,020
2015 - - 1,691 382 822287 2,013,679
2816 - - - 822,287 - 822287
Subtoial $ 1,242,832 _§ 164,682 $ 3,274,176 $ 3689148 5 8,370,838
Defensed Debt

in 20035, The District defeased the 2002, Series A bond in the amount of $39,995,542 by creating an frrevocable
trust fund. New debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S. government securities
that were placed in the trust fund. The investments and fixed carnings from the investments are sufficient to fully
service the defeased debt until the debt is.called or matures. For financial reportin g purposes, the debihas been
considered defessed and, therefore, removed ag hiability from the Bistrict’s Long-Term Obligations. As.of Iune
36, 2012, the amount of defeased debt outstanding that was removed from the Long Term Debt Obligations and
the related frust fund account balance amounted to $35,020,003 and $35,302,493, respectively.
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NOTE ¢ - FUND BALANCES

Fund balances are composed of the followng elements:

MNonspendable
Revolving cash
Stores inventories
Prevaid expenditures
Total Nonspendable
Restricted
Legally restricted programs
Special revenues
Capital projects
Diebt sorvices
Total Restricted
Comrmitied
Adult education program
Preferred mamienance program.
Instructional Material
Tier IH programs
Total Cormmiited
Unassigned
Reserve for economic uncertainties
Remaining unassigned
Total Unassigned
Total

Non-Major
General Cafeteria (Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Total
$ 120,600 3 - & - $ 120,000
196,997 207,783 - 404, 750
1,880,552 - - 1,880,552
2,197,549 207,783 - 2 405,532
5,132 350 - - 5,132,350
- 2,611,612 3,000,364 5,611,976
- - 735,942 736,942
- - 2,913,322 2,513,322
5,132,350 2,611,612 6,653,628 14,297 590
- - 1,029,753 1,029,753
- - 3,039,141 3,038,141
1,895,386 - - 1,895,366
1,295,437 - - 1,295,437
3,190,803 - 4,068 804 7,259,697
5,011,863 - - 5,011,863
28,116,201 - - 29,116,201
34,128,004 - - 34,128,004

$ 44,648,706

5 2819395

$ 10,722,522

$ 58,190,623
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NOTE 10 - POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE PLAN AND OTHER POSTEMPLOVMENT
BENEFITS (OPEB) OBLIGATION

Plan Description

The Posternployment Benefit Plan (the "Plan™) is a single-emplover defined benefit healtheare plan administered
by the Pajaro Valley Unified School District. The Plan provides medical and dental insurance benefits to eli gible
retirees and their spouses. Membership of the Plan consists of 275 retirees and beneficiaries currently receivin Iz
benefits and 1,672 active plan members. The Plan is presented in these financial statements as the Retiree
Benefits Trust Fund, Separate financial statements are not prepared for the Trust.

Contribution Information

The contributien requirements of plan members and the Diistrict are established and may be amended by the
District and the Teachers Association (PVFT), the local California Service Employzes Association (CSEAJ, and
unrepresented groups. The required contribution is based on projecied pay-as-you-go financing requirements,
with an additional amount to prefund benefits as determined anneally through the agreements betwesn the
District, PYFT, CSEA and the unrepresented groups. For fistal year 2011-2012, the District contributed
$4,492,879 to the plan, all of which was used for cumrent premiurms {approximately T00% percent of total
premiums incurred by retirees plus one eligible dependent).

Anpuai OPEB Cost and Wet OPEB Obligation

The District's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost {expense) is calculated based on the annual
required contribution of the empioyer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASE Staternent No. 45. The ARC represenis a level of funding that, i paid on an ongoing basis,
1s projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (UAAL) (or
funding excess) over a periodnot to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the
District's anmual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Districl's
net OPEB obligation to the Plan:

Arnual required contribution $  0.822.466
Interest on net OPER obligation ' 972,671
Avnnual OPEB cost {expense) 795,167
Contribuiions made {4,492, 879
increase m net OPEB obligation. 3,302,288
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of vear 13,895 304
Net OPEB cbligation, end of year $ 17,197.5452

The annual GPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB obligation
for 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, was as follows:

Year BEnded Amount Percentage MNet OPER

June 30, 2012 OPER Cost Coniributed Contributed Obligation
2012 $ 7795167 % (4,492,879} -57.64% ¢ 17,197,592
2011 6,539,254 3,080,172 46.26% 13,895,304
2410 6,367,435 2.917,171 45.81% 10,446,227
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Funded States and Funding Progress

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples inchude assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Arnounts determined regarding the fumded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual resulis are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress,
presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents
muitiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued Habilities for benefits. The following shows the funded status for the most recert
actuarial valuation:

Actuarial Unfunded Uaal asa
Actuarial Accrued AAL Funded Percentage of
Valuation Actuarial Value Liability {UAAL) Ratio Covered Covered Payroll
Date of Assets (a) {AALY {B) (b - a) {a/l) Payroll (¢} {ib-al/c)
April 1,2011  § 1,913,997 $ 64,844,554 $ 62,930,557 293%  §50.439.263 69 58%

Actuarial Metheds and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substentive plan {the plan as understood
bythe employer and the plan membersy and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation
and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include technigues that are designed io reduce the effects-of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective
of the calculations.

In the April 1, 2011, actuarial valuation, the Entry age normal actuarial cost method was used. The actuarnial
assumptions included a 7% percent investment rate of return (net of adminmistrative expenses}, based on the plan
being funded in an irrevocable employee benefit trust invested in a combined equity and fixed tncome portfolio.
Healthcare, dental, and vision cost trend rates were averaged at 4% percent. The UAAL is being amortized at a
teve] percentage of payroll method on an open basis. The remaining open amortization period at Apnl 1, 2011,
was 30 vears. The actuarial value of assets as of April 1, 2011 was $1,913.997.

MOTE 11 - RISK. MANAGEMENT

Property and Liability

The Disirict is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage fo, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injunes t¢ employees and natural disasters. During fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, the District
contracted with Schools Association For Excess Risk for property and liability insurance coverage. Settled claims

have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three years. There has not been a significant
reduction in coverage from the prior year,
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Workers' Compensation

The District’s workers’ compensation activities are recorded in the Internal Service Fund, The purpose of the
fund 1s to administer workers’ compensation on a cost reimbursement basis. The prograny accounts for the risk
financing activities of the District.

Coverage provided by the Schools Association for Excess Risk for Property and Liability and the Pujaro Valley
Unified Scheol District Worker™s Compensation Self-Insurance Program is as follows:

insurance Program / Company Name Type of Coverage Limits

Pajaro Villey Unified School Disirict Workers' Compensation 3 500,000
Workers' Compensation Self-Insurance Program

School Alliance Workers” Compensation Excess Excess Workers' Compenstation State Statutory Limit
Benefit Lisbility Excess Fund Excess Medioal 260,000
Schools Association For Fxcess Risk Property 250,600,000
Schiools Association For Excess Risk Liability 25,600,000
Schools Association For Excess Risk Excess Liability 24,000,000

Clntms Lishilitics

The District records an estimated hability for workers’ compensation, health care, dental and vision. Claims
liabilities are based on estimates .of the tltimate cost of reported claims (including future claim adjustment
expenses} and an estimate for claims incurred, but not reported based on historical experience.

Unpatd Claimns Liabilities
The fund establishes a Hability for both reported and unreported events, which includes estimates of both future

payments of losses and related claim adjustment expenses. The following represent the changes in approximate
apgregate liabilities for the District from July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2012;

Liability Balance, July 1, 2010 § 13,866,236
Claims and changes in estimates 38,173,909
Claims payments (38,173,909)

Fiabihty Balance, June 30, 2011 13,866,236
{laims and changes in estimates 38,571,941
Claims payments (37,765,043)

Liabihty Bailance, June 30, 2012 & 14,673 134

Asscts available to pay claims at Yune 30, 2012 $  2408R 551
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NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Qualified emplovees are covered wnder muliiple-employer contributory retirement plans mamtained by agencies
of the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the California State Teachers' Retirement
System (CalSTRS) and classified employees are members of the California Public Employees' Retirement System
(CalPERS).

CalSTRS
Plan Deseription

The Trstrict contributes to the California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRES), a cost-sharing multiple-
emplover public employee retirement systern defined benefit pension plan administered by CalSTRS. The plan
provides retirement and disability benefits and smrvivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are
established by State statotes, as Jegislatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. CalSTRS
issues a separate comprehensive annuel financial report that includes financial staternents and requived
supplementary information. Copies of the CalSTRS annual financial report may be oblained fom CalSTRS,
7667 Folsom Blvd., Sacramento, CA 95826,

Funding Pelicy

Active plan members are required to contribute 8.0 percent of their salary and the District is required to contnibute
an actuarially deterrmined rdte. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those
adopled by CalSTRS Teachers' Retirement Board. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2011-
2012 was 8.25 percernit ofannual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan mermbers are established by
State statute. The District's contributions to-CalSTRS for the fiscal vears ending June 3¢, 20172, 2011, and 2010,
were $6,154,839, §5,909 444, and $6,238,163, yespectively, and egual 100 percent of the reguired contributions
for each vear,

CalPERS
Plan Description

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retivement system defined benefit pension plan
administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living
adjustmenits, and survivor benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State
statutes,as legisiatively amended, within the Public Employees' Retirerent Laws. CalPERS issues a separate
comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and requived supplementary information.
Copies of the CalPERS' annual financial report may be oblained from the CalPERS Executive Office,

400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95811,
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Funding Pelicy

Active plan members are required to contribute 7.0 percent of their salary. At Pajaro Valley Unified School
Distriet, the district contributes the 7.0 percent on their behalf. The District is required to confribite an actuarially
determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the
CalPERS Board of Adminisiration. The requived employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2011-2012 was
16.923 percent of covered payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by State
statute. The District's contributions to CalPERS for the fiseal vears ending June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010, were
$2,900,530, $2,812,325, and $2,595,131, respectively, and equal 100 percent of the required contributions for
each year.

Secial Security

As established by Federal law, all public sector employees whe are not wiembers of their employer's existing
retirement system (CalSTRS or CalPERS) must be covered by Secial Security or an altemative plan. The Digirict
has elected to use the Social Security asits alternative plan.

O Behall Payments

The State of California makes contributions to CalSTRS and CalPERS on behalf of the District. These payments
consist of State General Fund contributions fo STRS in the amount of $3,664,078, $3,053,855, and $3,220,581,
respectively, for 2012, 2011 and 2010 (4.855 percent of annual payreil for 2012, 4.267 percent for 201 i, and
4.517 percent for 2010, respectively). Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, these amounts are to be reported as revenues and expenditures, however, guidance received from the
California Department of Education advises local educational agencics not to record these amounts in the Anmual
Financial and Budget Report. These amounts have been recorded in the fnancial staterents. These amounts
have not been included in the actual or budgeted amounts reported in the General Fund Budgetary Comparisen
Schedule. On behalf payments bave been excluded from the caleulation of available reserves.

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Grapts

The District received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement
of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified m the
grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disaliowed claims resulting from such
audits could become a liability of the general fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of
management, any such-disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect on the overall financial position
of the District at June 30, 2012,
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Litigation

The District is Iovolved in various hitigations arising from the normal course of business. In the opinion of
management and legal counsel, the disposition of all litigation pending is not expected to have 2 material adverse
effect on the overall financial position ol the district at June 30, 2012,

NOTE 14 - PARTICIPATION IN PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOLS, JOINT POWER AUTHORITIES
AND OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The District 1 a member of the Schools Asseciation For Excess Risk (SAFER), School Alliance for Workers’

- Compensation Excess I (SAWCXID), Benefit Liability Excess Fund (BeLiEF) public entity risk pools (JPAs}.
The District pays an annoal premiwn to the applicable entity for ifs property and hability coverage, excess
workers” compensation and excess medical insurance. The velationship between the District and the JPAs1s such
that the JPAs are not component units of the District for financial reporting purposes.

The JPA has a budgeting and financial reporting requiréments independent of member units and their financial
statements are not presented in these financial statements; however, fund transactions between the entities and the
Pristrict are mcluded in these statements. Duringthe yvear ended June 30, 2012, the District made payments of
$126,359 to SAWCKI for excess workers” compensation insurance; $1,895,657 to BeLiEF for excess medical
insurance and $718,143 1o SAFER for excess property and hability insurance.
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

GENERAL FUKRD
BUBGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3¢, 2012

Variances-
Favorable
{Unfavorable)
Budgeted Ameounts Final
Original Final Actnal to Avtual
REVENUES
Revenue it sources $90,201,222  $90,793,904 § 91,453,887 659,983
Federal sources 27,312,435 34,791,660 29,660,332 {5,131,328)
Crher State sources 46.059,175 48,827,204 AR 422,862 {404,342)
Other Iocal sources 2,048,878 3,595,227 3,308,313 (286,914)
Total Revenues 165,601,711 178,007,995 172,845,394 (5,162,601)
EXPENDITURES
Certificated salanies 66,605,661 70,673,649 68,806,543 1,867,106
Classified calaries 24,355,540 25,206,928 24,193,097 1,007,831
Employee benefits 43.081,726 49,544 367 47,392,686 2,151,681
Books and supplies 7,598,626 13,957,839 7,187,133 8,770,706
Services and operating expenditures 15,883,542 20,257,556 18,204,388 1,993,208
Ciher cules - - 45892 {45,892)
Capital cutlay 158,725 60,077 16,273 43,804
Diebt service - principal 116,675 316,675 313,029 3,646
Drebt service - interest 84,314 84,314 87,959 (3.645}
Total Expeadifures ! 164,184,809 182,005445 166,307,000 15,788,445
Excess of Bevenues Over Expendlitures 1,416,902 (4,087,450} 6,538,394 10,625,844
Other Finsncing Seurces (Uses)
Transfers in 550,000 540,914 517,020 {32,894)
Transfers out (1,009,849 (164,471 {753,103} {588,632)
Metl Financing Sources {Lses) {459,849 385,443 {236,083) (621,526}
NET CHARGE IN FUND BALANCES 957,053 (3,702,007} 6,302,311 106,004,318
Fund Balance - Beginning 38,346,395 38,346,395 38,346,305 -
Fund Balance - Ending $39.303,448 $34,644388 544648706 3 10,004,318

" On behalf payments of 3,604,078 in the General Fund are excluded from the actual revenues and expenditures, buf have been included
irvthe basic financial staternents.
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PAJARC VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPER) FUNDING

PROGRESS ‘
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Actuarial Unfimded

UAAL 2z a
Actuarial Accrued AAL Funded Percentage of
Yatuation Actuarial Value Liability {UAALY Ratio Coverad Covered Payroll
Drate of Assets (a) (AAL) (b) {b - 2} {a/b} Payroll {c) (qb-al/¢)
April 1,261 F 1,913,997 § 64,844 554 § 62,930,557 2.95%%  $50,439.263 69 58%
March 1, 2009 1,650,064 65,626,212 63,976,148 2.51% 113,529,631 56.35%
March 1, 2007 2,208,048 52,884,097 50,676,049 4.18% 114,434,798 44.28%
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Pass-Through

Federal Entity
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Identifving Federal
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title MNumber Number Expenditures
US. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed through California Department of Education (CDE):
Adult Bducation Act:
Adult Basic Bducation & HSL 84.0024 14508 $ 122,600
Priority 5, Adult Secondary Education 34.002 13978 19168
English Literacy & Civies Education 84.002A 4110 25,534
No Child Left Behind Act:
Title I-Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected 34,010 14329 5,890,028
Title I-ARRA, Part A, Basic Grants Low Income
and Neglected 84 389 15005 117,721
Title I-ARRA, Part A, School Site Improvements 34.388 15004 2,204,024
Title I-Migrant Education {Regular and Summer
Program) B4.017 14306 4,007,936
Title I-Even Start Migrant Fducation £4.214 14768 269476
Title I-Schoel Site Inprovements 84.377 14571 394,080
Title H-Teachey Quality 84.367 14343 863,379
Title I-ARR A, Enhancing Education Through
Technology, Part D, Competitive Grants 84.386 15126 143,993
Title Il-Mathematics and Science Parmerships 84.366 14512 588,218
Title MI-Bilinguat Education Discretionary Grant 84.280 10008 117,861
Title HI-Limited English Proficiency Student 84.385 10084 1,379,656
Title IV-2 st Century Community Centers Learning 84,287 14349 3,860,412
Jitle X-McKimey-Vento Homeless Assistance £4.196 14332 63,632
LEA 84.000 7 534,765
Alcohol Abuse Reduction Grant B4 1844 1 G2.083
Individuals with Disability Agt:
Basic Local Assistance Entitlement 84.077 13379 3,521,056
Local Assistance, Part' B, Section 611 Private Schools 84.027 16115 84,767
Mental Health Allocation Plan, Part B, Section
611 Private Schools 84,027 14468 49650
Preschool Granis 84.173 13430 178 446
Preschool Lecal Entitlement RE02TA 13682 365522
Early Intervention Grants 54.181 23761 246,523
Workability T} 84.158 16006 221,285

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2012

Pass-Through

Federal Entity
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA identifying Federal
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures
ARRA: TDFA Part B, Section 611, Preschoo! Local 84391 156072 54,137
ARRA:IDEA Part B, Section 619, Preschoo] Grants 84.392 15060 25,845
Carl Perkins Act:
Vaocational Programs 84.048 13570 4556
Vocational and Applied Technology Secondary 84.048 13924 {23,539
ARRA: State Fiscal Stabifization Fund 84.394 25008 522,575
Education Jobs Fund Act 54410 25152 3,598,975
Subtotal 29,544 340
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed through California Department of Education:
Child Development Act:
Federal Child:-Care Center Hase 93.596 13609 357 662
Head Start 23600 10016 5,900,717
Medi-Cal Billing Option 93.778 10013 405,861
Subtetal 6,704,240
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed through California Department of Education:
National School Lunch Act:
National School Lunch Program 14,555 13396 5,019,643
National School Breakiast 10553 13350 112
Meal Supplemnents 16.553 133590 477,896
Especially Needy Breakfast 10.553 13526 1,964,781
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 23165 211,626
Fresh Fruits and Vegatables 10.558 149468 386,701
Commodity srants at fairmarket vatue 10.555 13394 207,783
Subtotal B,268,542

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

: Pass-Through Emtity ldemifying Number not available

See acoompanying note to supplementary mformation.
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL BISTRICT

LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
JUNE 340, 2612

ORGANIZATION

The Pajaro Valley Unified School District was established in 1964 and consists of an area comprising
approzimately 150 square miles. The District operates sixteen elementary, six middie, three high schools, one
community day school, one continuation high school, an adult education school, twelve childeare centers, a
migrant center and five charter schools.

GOVERNING BOARD
MEMBER QFFICE TERM EXPIRTS
Leslie e Rose Prestdent 2014
Jeff Urgino Vice President 2014
Sandra Michols Wember 2012
Karen Osmundson Member 2012
Willie Yahiro Member 2014
Kim De Serpa _ Mermber 2014
Doug Keegan Member : 2012
ADMINISTRATION
Dorma Baker Superintendent

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2032

BELEMENTARY
Kindergarien
First through third
Fourth through sixth
Seventh and eighth
Home and hospital
Special education
Total Elementary
SECONDARY
Regular classes
Continuation sduecation
Home and hospital
Community day schools
Special education
Total Secondary
Total B-12

CLASSES FOR ADULTE
Adults in correctional facilities
Crand Total

CHARTER SCHOOL
Classroom-Based
Mom Classroom-Based
Total Charter School

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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Second
Period Avmual
Report Heport
1,478 1,480
4312 4,312
3,834 3841
2,358 2,354
5 5
393 394
12,380 12,386
4,393 4351
167 172
5 5
46 45
208 207
4,819 4,780
17,199 17,166
49 48
17.248 17,214
1,180 1,134
248 251
1,438 1,385




PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Redoced Reduced Number
1982-83 1OR2-R3 1986-87 1986-87 20112012 of Drays
Actual Agtual Minutes Mimnutes Actual Traditional
Grade Level  Minutes Minutes  Requirement Requircmen?  Minutes Calendar Status

Kindergarien 31,500 30,625 36,060 33,600 36,000 175 In Comnpliance
Grades | -3

Grade 1 31,500 30,625 50,400 47,440 49.050 175 In Compliance

Grade 2 31,500 40,833 50,400 47 040 48 050 175 I Compliance

Grade 3 31,500 40,833 50,400 47 040 45 050 173 In Commplance
(rades 4 -6

Grade 4 47,000 40,833 54,000 50,400 52,820 175 In Compliance

Crrudes 5 42,000 51042 54,6000 50,400 52,811 175 In Compliance

Grade 6 42,000 51,042 54,000 50,400 32,811 175 In Comphance
Grades 7 - 8

Grade 7 52,300 51,042 54,000 56,400 32,811 175 In Compliance

Grade 8 52.500 51,042 54,0040 50,400 52811 175 b Complance
Grades 9- 12

Grade 2 59,500 57,847 &4, 800 60,480 G5,160 175 In Compliance

(rrade 10 59,500 57,847 &4, 800 60,480 65,160 175 In CompHance

Cirade 11 59,500 57,847 44 BOC 60 480 65160 175 In Complhance

Grade 12 59,500 57,847 64,800 60,480 65,168 175 In Complisnce

See accompanying note 1o supplementary micrmation.
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOGL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT WITH
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YVEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Summuarized below are the fund bdlance reconciliations between the Unaudited Actual Financial Report and the
audited financial statements.

Internal
Service Fund

FUND BALANCE: Major Funds

Balance, June 30, 2012, Unaundited Actuals 3 10,222,315
Increase in:
Claims Liability {806,898}
Balance, fime 38, 2012, Audited Fimancial Statement % 9415417

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2012

{Budget)
2013 2012 2011 2010
GENERAL FUND
Revenues §163,486,221  $172,845394  $ 170,530,502  § 170,059333
Other sources and fransfers in 124 167 517,020 546,279 10,894
Totz] Revenues
and Other Sources 163,610,388 193,362,414 171,076,781 170,070,227
Expenditures 172,020,890 166,307,000 161,403,134 160,386,072
Otheruses and transfers out 551,239 753,103 691,927 3,656,980
Total Bxpenditures
and Other Uses 172,572,129 167,060,103 162,095,061 164,043 052
INCREASE (DBECREASE) '
IN FUND BALANCE $ (8,961,741) $ 6302311 § 8981720 § 6,027:175
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 35686965 § 44,648,706 $ 38346395 § 20,364,675
AVATLABLE RESERVES ? £ 20,965,903  § 34,128:004 $ 20494310 § 18,548,483
AVAILABLE RESERVES AS A
PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL 0UTGO 12.15% 20.43% 18.20% 11.31%
LONGTERM DERT $ 82,932,102 § 88,501,198 § 84996289 & 79222113
K-12 AVERAGE DAILY
ATTENDANCE AT P2 * 17,156 17,199 16,970 16,841

Kl

The General Fund balance hes increased by $15,284,031 over the past'two years. The fiscal year 2012-2013
budget projects a decrease of $8,961,741. For a district this size, the State recommends available reserves of at
least 3 percent of total (General Fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outge).

The District has incurred three operating surpluses in the past three years, but anticipates incurring an operating
deficit during the 2012-2013 fiscal year. Total Jong-term obligations have increased by 59,369,085 over the past

twor vears.

Average daily attendance has increased by 358 over the past two vears. A decline of 43 ADA is anticipated

durmng fiscal year 2002-2013,

' Budget 2013 is included for analytical purposes only and has not been subjected to audit.

? Available reserves consist of all unassigned fund balances including all armounts reserved for sconomic unceriainties contained with the

General Fund,

T Onebehalf peyments of $3,664,078, $3,053,855, and £3,220,581, in the Genersf Fund have been sxsluded from the revenves and
expenditures for fiscal years ending June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

* Excludes Adult Education and Charter Schools ADA,

See accompanymng note 1o supplementary information.
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PAJARG VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL BISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS
HOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2012

Incloded
Name of Charter School Audit Report
Academic Vocational Charter Institute Yes
Alanya Blementary Yes
Linzeott Blementary Yes
Pacific Coast Charter School Yes
Watsonville School of Arts Yes
Ceiba College Preparatory Acadery No

See accompanying note io supplementary information.
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

CHARTER SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2612

Linscott Watsonville  Pacific Coast Alianza Academic
Blementary  School of Arts  Charter School  Elementary  Vocational Total
Fund balance, beginning  $ 445668 § 289,798 § 835,104 §$1,358460 $ (75838) § 2.853,192
Reverues 1,730,537 1,692,860 1,618,990 4,396,790 698,108 10,137,285
Expenditures (1,532 6065) (1,763,725} (1,611,694) (4496,494)  (617487) (10022,065)

Hund balance, ending § 643540 & 218933 % 842400 §$1258756 & 4783 $ 2968412

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIRST 5 MONTEREY GRANT
SCHEDULE OF GRANT REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Girantor/Program Reveme Expenditures

First 5 Monterey 3 93589 % 93,589

See accompanying note to supplementary information

68



PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 36, 2012
Charter Adult Chiid Deferred
Sehool Education Development Maintenance
Fund Fund Fund Fupdd
ASSETS
Dieposizs and investments § 367,177 % 6562506 % 444 903§ 2057742
Receivables 2,609.315 125,743 236,805 -
Due from other funds 28,104 351,227 - 112,858
Total Asseis 3 3004596 § 1133220 § 681,708 % 3,170,600
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Aceonnts payable b 36184 % 52307 % 393748 % 131,450
Prue to other funds - - 72,685 -
Dicferred revenue - 51,160 183312 -
Total Liabilities 36,184 FO3,467 649,756 131,455
Fund Balances:
Restrictad 2968412 - 31,852 -
Commitied - 1,029,753 - 3,039,141
Tatal Fund Balances 2,968,412 1028753 31,952 3,039,141
Total Liahilities and
Fund Balances P 3,004,586 § 131337206 % 681708 § 3,170,600

See accompanying note to supplementary information
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Capital County Schosel Bond Interest Total Non-Major
Building Facifities Facilities and Redemption Governmental
Fund Fand Fund Foand Funds
3 78,639 5 776,57 § 5278 % 2,913,322 % 8,299,882
- - - “ 2,971,863
- - 36,170 - 528,359
8 78638 % 776,571 % 41,448 & z913322 & 11,800,104
Y - & 3975 % 3,713 - % 621,387
78,639 70,389 - - 221,773
- - - - 234472
78,638 74,364 3,713 - 1,077,582
- T02,307 37,735 2,913,322 6,653,628
- - - - 4,068,804
- 702,207 37,735 2913322 10,722,522
$ . 78639 % 776,571 3 41,448 2513322 § 11,800,104
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES
Revenue limit sources
Federal sources
Other State sources
Other local sources
Total Revenues
EEPENDITURES
Crrrent
Instruction
Instruction-related activities:
Supervision of instruction
Instructional lbrary, medis, and technology
School site adrministration
Pupil services:
Food services
All other pupil services
Admmustration:
A1 other admimistration
Plant services
Facility acqusition and construction
Ancillary services
Community services
Fretit service
Principal
Interest and other
Total Expenditures
Excess {[reficiency) of
Hevenues Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources {Lses)
Transfers m
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
Fund Bulance - Beginning
Fund Balusce - Endiog

See zccompanying note to supplementary information

Charter Adult Child Deferred
School Edwucation Development  Maintenance
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2 7,704,409 5 - % - % -
- 167,302 6,298,379 -
1,928,187 867,575 2,833,036 -
84,336 523,831 358,316 15,256
717,832 1,558,708 9489731 15,256
6,227,603 1,168,767 5,848,967 -
124,626 357,458 1,889,298 -
207.75G 47,574 125,365 -
3,130,508 566,676 82,497 -
- - 70 -
2,914 1,405 831,010 -
4,554 43,921 251,812 -
287,665 10,597 461,774 643,046
3,962 6,558 17,086 103,115
3,359 - - -
1,400 - - -
13,286 £5,000 - -
1,038 54,609 - -
10,022,066 2,316,565 9 508,870 746,161
£304,134) (757.85T) {15,148} (730,905}
415,354 331,795 1,954 -
115,228 {426,062} {17,184} {730,905)
2,853,192 1,455.815 49,146 3,970,046
b 2968412 § 1029753 § 31,852 & 3,029,141
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Capital County School  Bond Interest  Total Nen-Major

Euilding Facilities Faeilities and Redemption  Governmental

Fund Fomd Fond Fund Funds

- 8 - B - % - ¥ 7,704,408

- - - - 5,465,681

- - - 32,068 5,661,866

787 1,150,372 236 3,781,415 5514,559

797 1,150,372 236 3,813,483 25,746,515

- - - - 13,246,337

- - - - 2,376,782

- . - - 380,689

- - - - 3,773,681

- - - - 70

- - - - 835,325

- - - - 300,292

- 620,740 - - 2033822

273,835 87,237 35,120 - 528,913

- - - - 3,359

- - - - 1,400

- - 1,755,000 1,833,286

- - 1,913725 1,969,372

273835 TO7.977 35,128 3,668,725 27279328
(273,038} 447,395 (34,884) 144,758 (1,532,813)

- . . - 753,103
(273,038) 447,395 {34,584} 144,758 (779,710}

273,038 259,812 72,619 2,768,564 11,502,232

- % 7T 8 37735 % 2,913,322 % 16,722,522




PAJARG VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTE TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FJUNE 30, 2012

NOTE I - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal awards includes the Federal grant activity of the District
and is presented on the modifted acerual basis of accounting, The information in this schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of the United States Gffice of Management and Budyet Circular A-] 33, Audits
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.

The sollowing schedule provides reconciliation between revenues reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance and the related expenditures reported on the Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards. Theé reconciling amounts represent Federal funds that had been recorded as revenues in the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 then spent during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, The nnspent balances are
reported as legally restricted ending fund balances within the Geners! Fund.

CFBA
Number Armournt
Desoription

Total Federal Revenues per Statement of Revenues, Expenditares
and Changes in Fund Balance: $ 44186,773

Add: Expenditures for State Fiscal Stablization Funds in excess of

arnoonts received 84.394 522,575

Add: Fair Market Value of Commodities niot recorded in the financial

statements 10.555 207,783
Total Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 44617 131

i.ecal Education Agency Urganization Structere

This schedule provides information about the District's boundaries and schools operated, members of the
governing board, and members of the administration.

Hechedule of Average [aily Attendance (ADA)
Average daily attendance (ADA) is a2 measurement of the mumber of pupils attending classes of the District. The
purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of

State funds are made to school districts. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students
at various grade levels and in different programs.
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PAJARC VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AATION

NOTE TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFOR
JUNE 36, 2012

Schedule of Instructional Time

The District has received incentive funding for increasing mstructional time as provided by the Incentives for
Longer Instructional Day. This schedule presents mnformation on the amount of instructional time offered by the
District and whether the District complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46206.

Dristricts must maintain thein instructional minutes at erther the 1982-83 actual minutes or the 1986-87
requirement, whichever is greater, as required by Education Code Section 46201.

Reconciliation of Ansual Financizl and Budsel Report with Audited Financial Statements

This schedule provides the information necessary io reconcile the fund balance of all funds reported on the
Unandited Actual Financial Report o the audited financial statements.

Schedale of Financial Trends and Apsiysis

This schedule discloses the District's fimaneial trends by displaying past years' data along with-current year budget
information. These financial trend disclesures are used fo evaluate the District's ability to confinue as a going
concern for 2 reasonable period of time.

Scheduleof Charter Schiools

This schedule lists all Charter Schools chartered by the School District, and displays information for each Charter
School on whether or not the Charter School is included in the School District aundit.

Charter School Statement of Changes in Fund Balances

The charter school sehedule of changes in fund balances provides information about the changes in fund balance
in each of the five charier schools operated by the District.

First 5 Monterey Grant Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

The First 5 Monterey grant schedule of revenues and expenditures provides information about the carrent year
revenues and expenses of the grant program operated by the District.

Non-Major Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet apd Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fand Balance

The Non-Major Governmental Funds Combining Balance Sheet and Combining Staternent of Revenues,
Expenditures end Changes in Fund Belance is included io provide information regarding the individual funds that
have been included in the Non-Major Governmental Funds eolumn on the Governmpental Funds Balance Sheet
and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 1 Fund Balance.

74



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS




Vavringk, Tring, Day & Co., LLP

Ceriified Peblic Agcountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Governing Board
Pajaro Valley Unified School Dhstrict
Watsonville, California

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Pajare Valley Unified School District as of and for the vear ended June 30, 2012,
which collectively comprise Pajaro Valley Unified School District's basic financial statements and have issuped
our report-thereon dated December 14, 2012 We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standords, issued by the Comptroller General of the Urndted States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Pajaro Valley Unified School District 15 responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control ever financial reporting. In planming and performing our audit, we considered Pajare Valley
Unified School District's internal conirol over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures
for the purpose of expressing our opiniens on the financial statements, but not for the purpese of expressing an
opmion on the effectiveness of the Pajaro Valley Unified School District's internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Pajare Valley Unified School
District's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstaiements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will mot be prevented, or detected and corrected on 2 fmely basis,

Our consideration of infernal control over financial reporting was for the Hmited purpose described in-the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies i miternal centrol over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
previously.
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Cempliance and Other Matters

As part of oblaining reasonable assurance about whether Pajaro Valley Unified School District's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, coniracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect iy
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuits of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required o be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the governing board, management, the California

Department of Education, the State Coniroller's Office, Pederal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities, and
15 not ntended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Palo Alto, California
December 14, 2012
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Yavrinek, Trine, Day & Ce., LLP

Gertifisd Public Accountanis

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL
EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Governing Board
Pajaro Valley Unified School District
Watsonvifle, California

Complisnce

We have audited Pajaro Valley Unified School District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U5, Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Cireular 4-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a dire¢t and material effect on each of Pajaro Valley Unified School Distriet’s major Federal programs
for the year ended June 30, 2012, Pajaro Valley School District's major Federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors' resulis section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major Federal programs
is the responsibility of Pajare Valley Unified School District's management. Our responsibility is'to express:an
opmion on Pajaro Valley Unified School Dstrict's compliance hased on our audit,

¥ e conducted our-audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally aceepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circnlar A-133, Audits of Staies, Local
Governmenis, and Non-Prafit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Cireular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obizin reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major Federal program-ocourred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Pajarc Valley Unified School District's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that-our sudit provides a reasenable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of Pajare Valley Unified School District's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Pajaro Valiey Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance

requirements referred to above that conld have a direct and material effect on each of its major Federal programs
for the vear ended June 30, 2012,
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Interpal Control Over Compliance

The munagement of Pajaro Valley Unified School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to Federal programs. In planming and performing our audit, we considered Pajaro Valley Unified
School District's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on a major Federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on compliance and (o test and report on mternal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-
133, but not for the purpese of expressing an epinion on the effectiveness of infernal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the offectiveness of Pajaro Valley Unified School District’s internal
controls over compliance.

Acdeficiency in infernal conirol ever compliaonce exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management ar employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with atype of compliance requirement of a Federal program on 2
timely basis. A muterial veerdness in internol control.over compliance is o deficiency, o combination of
deficiencies, in inférpal ¢control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility thal material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a Federal proeram will not be nrevented, or detected and
corredted, ona tumely basis,

Onr consideration of internal control over compliance was for the loited purpese deseribed in the first paragraph
of this sectiors and was not designed to identify afl deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies,
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal contro] over
compliance that we consider o be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report i3 ntended solely for the mformation and use of the governing board, management, the California

Department of Edueation, the State Confroller's Office, Federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

R
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Palo Alte, California
December 14, 2012



Vayrinek, Trine, Day & Ca., LLP

Gerfitied Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Governing Board
Pajare Valley Unified School District
Watsonville, California

We have audited Pataro Valley Unified School District's compliance with the requirements as identified in the
Standards and Procedures jfor Auvdit of California K-72 Local Educational Agencies, applicable to Pajare Valley
Unified Scheol Distrcet's government programs as noted below for the year ended June 30, 2012, Compliance
with the requirements referred to above is the responsibility of Pajaro Valley Unified School District's
management. Our responsilility is to express anopinton on Pajaro Valley Unified School District's compliance
based-on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in the Uniled States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the Standards and Procedures for Audits af California K-12 Lecal
Educaiional Agencies 201 1-201 2 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasenable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred (o above that coulid have a material effect on
the applicable government programs noted below. An audit ncludes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Pajare Valley Unified School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We behieve that our audit provides 2 reasondble basis for our
opinions. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Pajaro Valley Umnified School District's complance
with those requirements.

In our opinion, Pajare Valley Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with'the compliance
requirements referred to above that are applicable to the government programs noted below that were avdited for
the year ended Tune 30, 2012, except as described in the Schedule of State Awards Findings and Questioned Costs
section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

In connection with the audit referred to abaove, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine the
Pajaro Valley Umified School District's comphiance with the State laws and regulations applicable to the followmg
items:

Provedures inn Procedures
Audit Guide Performed
Astendance Accounting:
Attendance reporiing 6 Yes
Teacher Certification and Misassignments 3 Yes
Kindergarten continuance 3 Yes
Independent study 23 Yes
Continuation education 10 Vs
Instructional Time:
mchool districts 6 Yes
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Procedures in
Audit Guide

Procedures
Performed

County offices of education 3 Not Applicable
hostructional Materials:

(General requirements H Yes
Ratics of Admimistrative Employvees te Teachers 1 Yes
Classroom Teacher Salaries i Yes
Early Retirement Incentive 4 Not Applicable
CGann Limt Calculation 1 Yes
School Accountability Report Card 3 Yes
Pubtic Hearing Reguirement - Receipt of Funds 1 Yes
Juvenile Court Schools 8 Mot Applicable
Exclusion of Pupils - Pertussis bmmunization 2 Yes
Class B1ze Reduction Program (including in charter schools):

General requirements 7 Yes

Option one classes 3 Yes

Option two classes 4 Not Applicable

Diistricts or charter schools with-only one school serving K-3 4 Not Applicable
After School Education and Safety Program:

General requirements 4 Yes

After school 5 Yes

Before school 6 Nat Applicable
Charter Schools:

Contemporaneous records of attendance 3 Yes

Muode of instruction 1 Yes

MNon classroom-based instruction/independent study i3 Yes

Deternmnation of funding for non classroom-based instruction 3 Yes

Anmual instruction minutes classroom based 4 Yes

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the governing board, management, the California
Department of Education, the State Controiler's Office, the California Department of Finance, Federal awarding
agencies, and pass-through entities and 1s not intended to be and should not be used by anyene other than these
specified parties.

Palo Alto, California
December 14, 2012
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FPAJARC VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified?
MNoncompliance material to financial statements noted?

FEDERAL AWARDS
Interpal control over major programs:
Matenal weakress{cs) identified?
Significant deficiency(fes)?

Tvpe of auditor's réport issued on comphiance for major programs:
Any audit findings disclosed that are reguired 1o be reported in accordance with

of OMB Circular A-133, Section .510(a)
Identification of major programs:

Ungualified

No

MNone reported

No

No

None reporfed

Unguahified

Mo

84.010 & 84385 (ARRA) Title 1 - Basic Grants, Low Income and Neglected
84377 £ 84388 (ARRA) Title I - School Site Improvement Grant
84.410 Education Jobs Fund _

84,365 Title 1T - Limited English Proficiency

10:553 &10.555 National School Lunch Program

84.394 (ARRA) State Fiscal Stablization Funds

84,386 {ARRA} Title II - Hrhancing Education Though Technology

Doliar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as Jow-risk auditee?

STATE AWARDS
Type of anditor’s report issued on compliance for programs:

Unqualified for 2!l programs except for the independent study program which

was qualified.
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PAJARC VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

None reported.
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2012

None reported.



PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATE AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2012

The following findings represent instances of noncompliance and/or guestioned costs relating to State program
laws and regulations. The findings have been coded as follows:

2012-1

Five Digit Code AB 3627 Finding Tvpe
446000 State Compliance

Code : 40888 State Compliance

Criteria or Specific Reguiremaents

Local Educationzl Agencies that offer short-termn independent study to students must obtain a-written
agreemerit with-signatures affixed before the commencement of the independent study by the pupil,
the pupils parents or guardian, the certificated ernployee who has been designated as having
responsibility for the general supervision of independent study, and any other person(s) who had
direct responsibihity for providing assistance to the pupil.or adult education student.

Condition
Written agreements for independent study altowed did not have the pupil’s signature affixed to the
document.

Suestioned Costs
510,400,

Context
Anditors inspected the records for three of the short<term independent study agresments entered into.
Of those, two did not have signatures by the pupils.

Effect
The California Bducational Code requires signatures by the pupils to validate the pupil understands
the nature and extend of the work to be completed outside of school.

Cause
School site personnel wers unaware of this requirement.

Recommendation

We recormend that the Distnet provide regular and updated training and information (o schoel site
personnel in-charge of attendance and short-term independent study programs regarding the
requirements for shori-term independent study programs on a regular basis.

Corrective Action Plan

Implement recommendations.
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FORT

YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2012

Except as specified in previous sections of this report, summarized below is the current status of all audit findings
reported moihe prior year's schedule of financial statement findimngs.

Financial Statement Findings

2011-1

2611-2

Code 30000
Frzernal Controf

Finding
An estimate for the costs related to IBNR claims was not generated for the fiscal year ended June 38,
2011,

Recompmendation
The District needs {o estimate the claims Hability themselves on at least an anntial basis, or contract
out to an actuary to prepare the estimate at the end of the fiscal vear, EVEeTy year,

Current Status
The recornmendation has been implemented.

Code 30000
Fnternal Control

Finding

It was noted that a significant number of employees’ time off for vacation was not properly reflected
in the time accounting system of the Pistrict. In 2ddition, the District has no cap on the number of
vacation hours that can be acerned.

Reeommendation

The District should consider the establishment of maximum caps for vacation acerual. BEmployees
that hit the cap would be encouraged to use vacation to lower overall vacation liabilities throughout
the District. This policy is in place in other schoo! districts and public agencies. Finally, supervisors
and snanagers must ensure that all employees reporting to them are filing their vacation request forms
on time with the District. District leadership should establish appropriate controls and/or systems to
make sure this is occurring.

Current Status
‘The recommendation has been implemented.

Federal Awards Findings
Nome reported.

State Awards Findings
None reported.
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PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHQOOL DISTRICT

Ttem No: 12.2

Date: January 16, 2013

Item: Appoint Members to Board Standing Committees and Organizations

Overview: Attached for your information is the list of the current members attending
each standing committee, At its Annual Organization Board meeting, this
item was discussed and appointments were to be officially made at this
January meeting,.

The following committees are in place:
1. Community Advisory Commitiee — SELPA
2. District English Learners Advisory Committee (DELAC)
3. [Fringe Benefits
4. GATE Advisory Committee
5. Governmental Relations
6. Mello Center JPA

7. Migrant Head Start Policy Advisory

8. Pajaro Valley Prevention and Student Assistance (PVPSA)

9. Safety Committee

10. SPECTRA

Attached is the list of the committees for 2012 that includes trustees who were
part of them. The 2013 sheet, also attached, includes the names of trustees who
have contacted the Superintendent’s office and asked to be on those committees.

Recommendation:  Appoint members to Board standing committees.

Prepared By:  Dorma Baker, Superintendent

Superintendent’s Signature: Q)Z)k’/% /:5va




PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

] :
COMMITTEE | NAMES J Dates/Times
Board Agenda Committee Willie Yahiro Tuesdays of week prior
(Elected/Appointed Officers) Leslie DeRose to Board meeting, 9:00
Superintendent's Office Jeff Ursino am, Superintendent’s

Office

Community Advisory Committee SELPA (CAC)

(Joji Muramoto, joji®ucsc.edu; 728-4532)
(Elvira Martinez, 786-2100 x2782)

Sandra Nichols
Kim De Serpa
Karen Osmundson

Once/Month
Days Vary 6:30 pm

District English Learner Advisory
Committee (ELAC)
(Ruby Vasquez 786-2100 x2614)

Doug Keegan
Karen Osmundson

Once/Month
Tuesday 7:00 pm

Fringe Benefits
(Maria Burnett 786-2100 x2550)

Open for observation

See calendar for time
and place

GATE Advisory Committee Kim De Serpa Three meetings per year
(Lynn Olson, Coordinator Jeff Ursino Tuesday, 7:00 pm
786-2100 x 2580 )

Inter-Governmental Relations Willie Yahiro Once Every Two Months
(City Library, 2" Floor, Elizabeth 768-3010 Sandra Nichols First Monday 4:30 pm
elizabeth.padilla@cityofwatsonville.org) Jeff Ursino

Mello Center JPA (City of Watsonville) Doug Keegan Once/Quarter

(City Library, 2™ Floor, Willie Ychiro Third Monday 5:30 pm

Elizabeth 768-3010)

Migrant Head Start Policy Advisory
(Carole Clarke 786-2186)

Sandra Nichols
Karen Osmundson

See calendar for time
and place

Pajaro Valley Prevention
Student Assistance (PVPSA)
(Monica Torres - 728-6300 x 302)

Doug Keegan
Kim De Serpa (altérnate)

Once/Month
3™ Tuesday @ 4 pm

Safety | Committee not active TBD
(Rich Buse, x2195)

| Arts Education Advisory Committee - SPECTRA | Leslie De Rose Quarterly
(Cultural Council of SCZ County, Sonia Deetz, | Kim De Serpa 4:30 pm

475-9600 x20 e-mail: artsedcoord@ccsce.org)
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: Iteri No: 12.4

Ftem:

Prepared by:

Date:

Background:

January 16, 2013
First Reading of the Student Calendar for the 2013-2014 School Year

A District Calendar Committee met in December 2012 to complete a partially drafied
2013-14 Student Calendar. The Committee is comprised of a broad representation of
District personnel, including parents, and union leadership.

A Calendar Committee was initially formed in January of 2012 with the charge of creating
3 calendars for the 2012-13, 2013-14, and 2014-15 years. Last spring the Committee
brought forward the 2012-13 with the intent of continuing the work to complete the
successive years at a later time. The Committee was convened in December 2012 and
completed the 2013-14 calendar which is the subject of this Board Item. The 2014-15
calendar will be forthcoming as soon as possible in order to complete the intended 3-year

cyele.

This submittal is in alignment with Article V of the collective bargaining agreement
between the Pajaro Valley Unified School District and the Pajaro Valley Federation of

Teachers. The process states that

“D. Within ten (10) days after presentation to the Board either the District or the Union
may provide written notice to the other party of intent o meet and negotiate on any and
all of the recommendations of the calendar committee that are within the scope of
negotiations.

E. If neither party notifies the other in writing, the Calendar committee report shall be
considered for adoption by the Governing Board at the next regular meeting following
expiration of the ten (10) day notification period. If the Board does not adopt the
recommended calendars, they shall be resubmitted for further negotiations. The calendar
shall be subject to ratification by both the District and PVFT after completion of the
process.”

Recommendation: This is a first reading of the Student Calendar for the 2013-2014 school year.

Sharon Roddick, Asmstant Supermtendent

Superintendent’s Signature: ./ 7 /ﬁfg_/i»-
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FIRST READING - DRAFT
JULY JANUARY

18t New Year's Day
20th Martin Luther King Jr. Day

CODE:

Stu/Tohr Recess & % 18 17
Teacher Work Day ot 21 22 22 24

Begin/End Qir/Sem 7 28 20 30 31 14 StudentDays
£ Trimesters

3BC Days FEBRUARY

g8 & 10 111 12 5 Legal Holiday
1B 1B 17 18 18
22 23 24 25 28
28 30 3

3 4 5 & 7 10th Lincoln's Birthday

1 2 S 11 12 13 14 17th President's Day
7 8 9 15th SBC Day M 18 18 20 2
14 <G> 34  16th Teacher Work Day 24 25 26 27 28 18 Student Days
21 22 23  18th Begin/End Qtr/Sem

28 28 3C

10 Studert Days
e 2nd Labor Day
L] 10 11 12 13
16 17 18 18 20 21 Student Days
23 24 25 26 27
30 20 Student Days
14-21 Spring Break
14 o 18 Student Days
21 22 23 24 25
28 28 30 3 23 Student Days
NOVEMBER
11th Veterans Day 26th Memorial Day

21 Student Days

4 & 7 8 28-29 Thanksgiving Break
13 14 45 27-29 8tufTchr Recess

18 19 20 21 22

a5 28 17 Student Days
DECEMBER Bt End QirfSemester
2 3 4 &5 8 23rd Classified Floater Holiday
8 10 11 12 13 24-25 Christmas Holidays 23 24 25 28 27 5§ Student Days
6 17 18 19 20 31st Holiday 30
12/23M13-01/10/14 Winter Break 180 Instructional Days
15 Student Days
1st Semester: 85 Student Days 2nd Semester: 85 Student Days

Revised: 01/10/13
Board First Reading: 01/16/13



PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMMITTEE NAMES Dates/Times
Board Agenda Committee Willie Yahiro Tuesdays of week prior
(Elected/Appointed Officers) Kim De Serpa to Board meeting, 8:30
Superintendent's Office Maria Orozco am, Superintendent's

Office

Community Advisory Committee SELPA (CAC) Once/Month
(Joji Muramoto, joji@ucsc.edy; 728-4532) Days Vary 6:30 pm
(Elvira Martinez, 786-2100 x2782)

District English Learner Advisory Maria Orozco Once/Month
Committee (ELAC) Tuesday 7:00 pm
(Ruby Vasquez 786-2100 x2614)

Fringe Benefits See calendar for time
(Maria Burnett 786-2100 x2550) and place
GATE Advisory Committee Maria Orozco Three meetings per year
(Lynn Olson, Coordinator Tuesday, 7:00 pm
786-2100 x 2580 )

Inter-Governmental Relations Willie Yahiro Once Every Two Months
(City Library, 2 Floor, Elizabeth 768-3010 Maria Orozco First Monday 4:30 pm
elizabeth padilla@cityofwatsonville.org)

Mello Center JPA (City of Watsonville) Once/Quarter
(City Library, 2" Floor, Third Monday 5:30 pm

Elizabeth 768-3010)

Migrant Head Start Policy Advisory See calendar for time

(Carole Clarke 786-2186) and place
Pajaro Valley Prevention Once/Month
Student Assistance (PVPSA) 3" Tuesday @ 4 pm
(Monica Torres - 728-6300 x 302)

Safety TBD
(Rich Buse, x2195)

Arts Education Advisory Committee - SPECTRA Quarterly
(Cultural Council of SCZ County, Sonia Deetz, 4:30 pm
475-9600 x20 e-mail: artsedcoord@ccscc.org)




PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

1 Item No: 13.1

Date:  January 16, 2013

Item: Canine Detection Program — Demonstration and Discussion

Overview: There has been some interest in reviewing a canine detection program for
some school districts are using canines to serve as a deterrent to the use of
drugs and weapons.

Proactive K-9 is a company that has extensive experience in districts like
ours in utilizing canines to sniff lockers, clothing, backpacks etc.
Company representative, Julia Ford, will present one or two of her canines
and demonstrate the use of their program. More information is attached
to this Board Agenda Backup.

Recommendation:  Receive Report

Budget Considerations: None

Funding Source:

Budgeted: VYes: D No: D

Amount: $

Prepared By: Murry Schekman

Superintendent’s Signature: @;3,/,4«_, /5 (;_,f_
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Request for Proposal; Canine contraband detection services.
Pajaro Valley Unified School District
I would like to take this time to thank you for the opportunity to provide a proposal of canine detection services to :
your district, Pajaro Valley Unified School District. 1 believe our program is both cost effective and provides a
renewed quality of service necessary for an effective deterrent program in your schools.

The Proactive K-9's program: The purpose of Proactive K-9's is to provide a safe and secure leaning environment
for all in the educational process. We are committed to providing an effective deterrent program to promote safety
it your schools. The success of our program can be greatly measuared by the reduction in the random incidence of
finding contraband on campus. We want to build a positive relationship with students while maintaining a drug,
alcohol and weapon free environment.

Legal considerations: Desiring legal parameters we recommend unannounced handler/canine inspections. The
process is accomplished by having each school site submit a calendar denoting inappropriate visit dates. We suggest
that Proactive K-9's select the dates of inspection without district knowledge. All areas on your campus should be
checked in a random nature. Qur canines are not trained to sniff people. When students are near the canines are not
on their work command and react to students as any normal friendly dog would react.

Our handlers: As a brief matter of introduction, my name is Julia Ford. I have provided a high quality of canine
detection services in schools since 1993. I would thoroughly enjoy providing you with the same excellent guality of
service for many years {o come.

Along with having canine handler experience I have also held the position as a training coordinator, responsible for
personnel and canine training. ! am currently training contraband, drug and explosive canines and have done so for
the last 10 years. With this knowledge and experience will ensure the quality of our canines. It is my opinion that
you are getting the highest quality of service available.

QOur Canines: The breed of canines we use are Labrador retriever and Golden Retrievers. They are trained to
detect the presence of illegal drugs, drinking alcohol, gun powdered bases items and a select group of abused
medications. Our canines are all non-aggressive and must pass a temperament test prior to servicing. They are
highly trained and certified through nationally recognized testing agencies every year.

Licensing and Insurance: Proactive K-9's is licensed and insured in accordance with state and company j
requirements.

Insurance Includes: General lability $ 2,000,000 (aggregate)
Workers compensation
Auntomobile insurance

Alert record: Each canine alert will be recorded on a report. A copy of this is provided to the campus location at
the end of each visit. A duplicate copy of this report is entered into the database for purposes of providing canine
statistics and comparisons to the district as requested.

A document will provide a record of where a handler and canine have visited with the district, including the amount
of time spent at each campus. A copy of this document accompanies the invoicing at the end of the month in which
service is provided.

1n the event of any student expuision or prosecution, the Proactive K-9's handler will be available to assist with any
testimony, records or other activities as required by the district office.

Service cost: Concerning your request for a copy proposal from January 16" thru June 15, We will provide 13 fuil
day visits of service for § 350.00/full day service per team, which consists of | handler and 1 canine.

This proposal was submitted by:

Proactive K-9's

Julia Ford-owner

19768 Astoria drive

Hilmar, Ca 95324

Business phone: (209) 678-7116
E-mail: Proactivek9@aol.com

e e e e e e e L



Date:

Etem:

Overview:
Recommendation:

PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

— Item No: 13.2

January 16, 2013

Update on Governor’s Proposed January 2013-14 State Budget

On Thursday January 10, Governor Brown released his January 2013-14 Budget
Proposal. This event marks the kick-off to the annual state budget deliberation
process. Since public education represents over 43 percent of the state budget, the
January proposal sets the stage for the major issues surrounding the upcoming state
education budget.

District staff will attend several workshops provided by education finance experts
and conduct a thorough analysis of the proposal’s potential impact on district
programs. Staff’ will present these findings at the board meeting. Attached are
summary documents made available from various organizations representing school
districts at the state level.

Staff notes the following observations specific to the district:

e The district has undergone six consecutive years with no COLA increase to
state revenue limit and categorical program funding.

e The district’s revenue limit and most categorical programs are currently
funded below their 2007-08 per student levels.

e The governor’s budget strategy will require the district to make assumptions
for its June budget with the possibility of significant changes during the state
budget process.

The governor has the first and last say in the state budget adoption process so the
January proposal sets the framework for general budget development at the school
district level. District staff will use the proposal to develop budget year assumptions
and multi-year fiscal projections. All school districts are required by law to adopt
balanced budgets no later than July 1 of each year.

Report and discussion only.

Prepared By: Brett W. McFadden, Chief Business Officer

Superintendent’s Signature: KQ@;/},M‘ /j@//
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Governor Releases Proposed State Budget for 2013-14
January 10, 2013
By Jeff Vaca and Sara C. Bachez, Governmental Relations

This morning, Governor Jerry Brown released his proposed state budget for 2013-14, stating at a press
conference that California has come through great fiscal difficulty but has now achieved a balanced budget

that reflects a state that is living within its means.

This report provides a high-level overview of the governor’s proposals for K-12 education. Many questions
will no doubt remain regarding the finer details of the proposed budget, and we will continue to provide

additional details (and address those questions) in the days and weeks to come.

Key Components

The budget proposes a total Proposition 98 funding level of $56.2 billion for 2013-14, an increase of $2.7

billion: over current year funding, and includes the following key components:

- Provides an increase of approximately $1.8 billion to reduce inter-year budgetary deferrals.
Combined with the $2.2 billion provided in 2012-13 to retire inter-year deferrals, the total outstanding
deferral debt for K-12 will be reduced to $5.6 billion at the end of the 2013-14 fiscal year. itis
intended that all remaining deferrals would be paid off by the end of the 2016-17 fiscal year.

« Provides an increase of approximately $1.6 billion in “growth funding” for school districts and charter

schools.

+ Dedicates $400.5 million of revenues generated through the passage of Proposition 39 {o K-12
schools for energy efficiency projects (and $498.5 million to Community Colleges). As a result, the

Proposition 88 minimum guarantee increases by $526 million in 2013-14.

¢ Provides an increase of $100 million to the K-12 portion of the mandates block grant to support costs

with the Graduation Requirements and Behavioral Intervention Plans mandates.

« Provides an increase of $28.2 mitlion to support first-year implementation of a new funding formula for

county offices of education in 2013-14.

+ Provides an increase of $48.5 million to support projected charter school ADA growth,

Local Control Funding Formula

http://www.casbo.org/displaycommon.cfm?an=1&subarticlenbr=1437&printpage=true 1/11/2013
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As was the case in 2012, the centerpisce of the proposed K-12 budget is the enactment and impiementation

3]

of a new K-12 school finance system, beginning in 2013-14. Now titled the “Local Control Funding Formula,”
the proposal is similar to the Weighted Student Formula included in last year's budget — the basic premise
being the distribution of combined resources to schools through a base revenue limit grant with additional
supplemental funging allocated to local educationat agencies based on their proportion of English language
learner and free and reduced-price meat eligible students. During his press conference this morning, the

governor stated that his proposal was “controversial, but fair.” During today’s budget briefings, the
Administration emphasized on several occasions the "enormous flexibility” that the formula will provide

district in how they utilize their funding.
The governor's budget summary identifies the following specific elements in the proposal;

= The proposed formula will provide every schoof district a base grant adjusted for grade span cost
differentials, multipiied by Average Daily Attendance (ADA). The average base grant when fully

implemented will be equal to the current average undeficited revenue [imit.

= Growth funding will be used to restore district and county office of education base grants to their
average 2007-08 undeficited revenue limits.

= As noted above, the formula distributes resources to schools through a base revenue fimit funding
grant per unit of ADA with additional suppiemental funding based on the proportion of English

language learner and free and reduced-price meal eligible students in the district.

« The formtula provides supplemental funding to districis based on the proportion of English language
learners and free and reduced-price meal eligible students they serve. Supplemental funding is equal
to 35 percent of the base grant. When the proportion of English language learners and economically
disadvaniaged studenis exceeds 50 percent of its total student population, the school district will
receive an additional “concentration grant” equal to 35 percent of the base grant for each English
language learner and economically disadvantaged student above the 50-percent thresheld. The
“concentration grant” has been one of the most controversial aspects of the governor's proposal, with
observers noting that it funds equally disadvantaged students at sharply different funding rates, and

adds unnecessary complexity to the formula.

+ Local educational agencies are authorized to receive supplemental and concentration funding for an
English language learner student for no more than five years. Charter schools would be treated
essentially the same as a school district, but would not be eligible {0 receive a higher concentration

grant than the school district in which it resides.

« While most categorical program funding is redistributed through the new funding formuia, the
Targeted Instructional improvement Grant program and Home-to-School Transportation program
funding allocations will be distributed as permanent add-on programs to the new funding formula
allocations for each district. Schools will be provided with discretion to use these funds for any

purpose.

= The formula links funding in the K-3 grade span adjustment to maximum class sizes. A student-to-

- teacher ratio of 24 to 1 is established as the maximum standard in grades K-3 upon full

Page 2 of 5
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implementation of the new formula. This ratio may be exceeded if agreed to at the iocal tevel,

according to local priorities.

« The 8-12 grade span adjustment is enhanced to include a career technical education component, but

the use of those funds would be at the discretion of the local board.

« Base funding will be used by each district at their discretion to fulfill local educatianal priorities.
Under the new farmula, basic aid districts would be defined as districts whose local property taxes
equal or exceed their district's formula allocation. Those districts would continue o retain jocal

property taxes in excess of their new formula allocation.

+ The formula includes an accountability component that will require a local academic plan be approved
by the beard that is based on the district budget and concentrates on common core and career and

college readiness.

Adult Education

On the fundamental policy premise that adult learners should be served in the insiitution responsible for aduit
learning, the budget proposes an increase of $30C million to support the program within the community
colieges. The budget summary siates the Administration’s belief the community colleges are better
positioned than K-12 schools to address the needs of adult learners, because that is their core function.
Funding will be allocated for a new adult education block grant based on the number of students served,

and the colleges will be encouraged to leverage the capacity and expertise currently available at K-12 district

adult schools.

Buring budget briefings held today, Administration representatives emphasized that this proposal will not be
taking any allocations away from school districts that they are now receiving, with those dollars now being
“flexed.” They anticipate that many local discussions will need to occur, recognizing how adult education has

evolved diffsrently in different areas.

Special Education

The proposed budget for special education funding proposes to change the AB 602 formula by eliminating
the integration of federal funds in that formula. Currently, federal funds are used as an offset when
calcuiating the amount of state aid each SELPA recefves. Under the new proposal, the governor
recommends treating both special education funding streams (state and federal) separately. The
administration states that this proposal will "remove unnecessary complications in the formula and halp

equalize funding among special education local plan areas.”

In addition, the proposal recommends eliminating or consolidating some existing special education
categorical requirements for several special education program add-ons inio the base of the AB 802 formula
calculation. These add-ons are currently similar to grants based on specific student needs. The governor's

budget summary does not specify which special education add-ons would be eliminated or modified.

Flexibility

The budget proposes the following permanent changes with respect to flexibility:

Page 3 of 5
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« Routine Maintenance Contributions — Eliminate the minimum contribution requirement for routine
maintenance.

+ Deferred Maintenance Program Matching Requirement — Eliminate the required local district set-aside
for deferred maintenance contributions.

« Surplus Property — Allow districts to use the proceeds from the saie of any real and personal surplus
property for any one-time General Fund purposes.

The budget summary states that the Administration will “engage local school officials and education

stakeholders in a discussion of the need for additional flexibility until funding returns to the 2007-08 level.”
School Facilities

The budget summary states that now is an appropriate time to engage in a dialogue on the future of school
facilities funding, and in briefings today Administration representatives stated that the governor is not yet
ready to support a K-12 facilities bond, until there is an examination of the state’s role in financing school
facilities.

To that end, the Administration suggests the following guiding principles:

+ From a state perspective, future K-12 facilities funding needs must be considered in the context of
other competing education and non-education priorities and needs.

+ The school facilities construction process should be easy to understand and efficient.

+ School districts and their respective localities should have appropriate control of the school facilities
construction process and priorities.

As noted in the introduction to this article, many details regarding the budget remain to be fleshed out in the
days and weeks to come. We will continue to provide additicnal information and clarification as needed, and
as events warrant,

Alt CASBO NewsBreaks are posted on the CASBO website at www.casbo.org. The legisiative
status indicated for the bills in this report reflect the location of each of these measures as of the
day the report was posted. To get up-to-the-minute status of bills including additional information
on bills, bili text, analyses, legislative vole records, and veto messages, log on to the state’s
Official Legislative Information website at www.leginfo.ca.gov. For other guestions regarding topics
covered, you may contact Jeff Vaca, Deputy Executive Director, Governmental Relations, at
fvaca@casbo.org or Sara C. Bachez, Legislative Advocate, Governmental Relations, at
shachez@casbo.org.

http://'www.casbo.org/displaycommon.cfm?an=1&subarticlenbr=1437&printpage=true 1/11/2013
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Governor’s 2013-14 January Budget Proposal
January 10, 2013

Today, Governor Brown released his annual January budget proposal. After
weeks of speculation, the state has a concrete look at the governor's proposals,
There are a few surprises and major changes to education programs and funding.
This begins the annual conversation regarding the state’s finances.

Overall

When the governor came into office, the state faced ongoing budget deficits that
reached approximately $20 billion. After major reductions to state expenditures
and the passage of Proposition 30, the state is now on the verge of seeing budget
surpluses with a balanced budget for the coming years. Proposition 30 used
public education as the linchpin to pass the initiative and the governor is
proposing a budget that invests those additional dollars in public education, K-
12 and higher education. The governor is sticking with the same game plan he
used when elected to office -~ pay down debt and invest in education.

The governor is proposing to provide more local control to school districts
through a new funding formula. Further, he is moving to pay down more of the
state’s debt by paying off deferrals. On the non-Proposition 98 side, the governor
intends to expand health care coverage and continue to strengthen California
fiscal house.

Education Budget

The governor’s proposal provides $56.2 billion for the 2013-14 fiscal year. This is
an increase of $2.7 billion from the 2012-13 fiscal year. This increase includes $6
billion from the passage of Proposition 30. Proposition 98 also includes an
increase of $526 million from the passage of Proposition 39.



However, $450 million of the increase will be allocated to school districts and
community colleges specifically for energy efficiency projects. Finally, the
governor is proposes to repay $1.8 billion in inter-year deferrals.

The governor continues to pursue education finance reform through weighted
student formula, which is renamed “Local Control Funding Formula.” The
proposed reform will fund districts through a base grant with additional
supplemental funding weighted based on English Language Learners, Social
Economic Students (i.e. those on Free and Reduced Priced Lunch) and foster
youth. These weights will be equal to 35 percent of the base grant. In addition,
districts with more than fifty percent of the subgroups will receive a
concentration grant that is also 35 percent of the base grant. There are several
programs that are excluded from this proposal and will remain separate add-ons
to district funding. These include the Targeted Instructional Improvement
Grant, Special Education, school nutrition, and school transportation. Other
changes include the following:

» Allocating half of the available Proposition 98 growth funding to move
local educational agencies towards their respective formula allocation.

» TFolding current career technical education funding into a 9-12 grade span
adjustment.

» Authorizing local educational agencies to receive supplemental and
concentration grant funding for an English language learner student for
no more than five years.

» Linking funding in the K-3 grade span adjustment to maximum class
sizes. A student-to-teacher ratio of 24 to 1 is established as the maximum
standard in grades K-3 upon full implementation of the new formula. This
ratio may be exceeded if agreed to at the local level according to local
priorities,

The governor’s budget proposes several other reforms:

Accountability — Districts will need to have a plan that describes 1) Basic
conditions for student achievement (having qualified teachers at each school site,
sufficient instructional materials available for students, and school facilities in
good repair). 2) Programs or instruction that benefit low-income students and
English language learners. 3) Implementation of Common Core content



standards and progress toward college and career readiness (as measured by the
Academic Performance Index, graduation rates, and completion of
college-preparatory and career technical education courses).

Charter Schools - Shifting the Charter School Facility Grant Program and the
Charter School Revolving Loan Program from the Department of Education to
the California School Finance Authority to improve the efficiency of charter
school program administration and disbursement of funds to local charter
schools. The Authority already administers similar programs. Expanding the
Charter Schools Facility Grant Program to include eligibility for non-classroom
based charter.

Special Education Finance — Eliminates the integration of federal funds in the
state’s AB 602 calculation and treating both funding streams separately to
remove unnecessary complications in the formula and help equalize funding
among special education local plan areas. Consolidates funding for several
special education program add-ons into the base AB 602 formula calculation,
while collapsing another 15 special education add-on programs into 10 based on
similar activities.

Adult Education -- Moves the primary responsibility for Adult Education from
K-12 to the community college system.

Online Education — Authorizes school districts to provide asynchronous online
course through outcome-focused independent study agreements.

ACSA Perspective

ACSA is still reviewing the governor’s proposal and will provide an in depth
analysis of the governor budget proposal in the coming days. For more
information, please contact Adonai Mack at amack@acsa.org.



Date:

Ttem:

Overview:

[tem No: 13.3

January 16, 2013

Review of Safety/Emergency Preparedness Procedures and Practices

In light of the tragedy at Newtown, Connecticut, it is a good time to
review our level of preparedness at each of our schools and other facilities.
Board Policy 3516 was adopted in May of 2008. Tonight we will review
the process, Board Policy and specific examples of practices at our school
sites.

Our district works well with all agencies to ensure and enhance safety on
our campuses. We have School Resource Officers at our three
comprehensive high schools. We work closely with all law enforcement
agencies to plan proactively for both prevention and suppression. We
also work with a variety of counseling agencies, including Pajaro Valley
Prevention and Student Assistance and Youth Services, as two examples.
The cuts in the last few years have affected our district and all of the
agencies mentioned, including the law enforcement, but we have kept
safety and security as ligh priorities in our district. But this network has
been vital in maintaining security and safety on our campuses.

Our policy calls for regular practice drills with emphasis on the following

seven situations:

I. Fire on or off school grounds which endangers students and staff

2. Earthquake or other natural disasters

3. Environmental hazards

4. Attack or disturbance, or threat of attack or disturbance, by an

individual or group

Bomb threat or actual detonation

Biological, radiological, chemical, and other activities, or heightened

warning of such activities

7. Medical emergencies and quarantines, such as a pandemic influenza
outbreak

S

The district policy also ensures that the district’s procedures include
strategies and activities such as the regular inspection of school facilities,
instruction and practice for students and employees regarding emergency
plans, providing emergency supplies in each classroom, identifying
specific staff member’s responsibilities in case of a disaster and more.

Cuts and position consolidation in personnel at the site and at the district
level have impacted all aspects of our district. The passing of Measure L.




& will assist with some of the security neceds. Measure L’s emphasis on
safety will lead needed upgrades to our facilities that will enhance security
and safety. Classroom doors that can be locked from the inside of the
classroom are but one example.

Tonight’s presentation will highlight the policy and practices in our district

and provide a basic foundation of information for our Board of Trustees
and the community.

Recommendation:  Accept Report.

Budget Considerations: None

Funding Source:

Budgeted: Yes: D No: D

Amount: $

Prepared By: Murry Schekman

' 7
Superintendent’s Signature; _\ / \ﬁ&m /,%c»/j,

T T e B S T S R e A AR g



